Troy

TROY CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA

DECEMBER 5, 2011
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M.

Submitted By
The City Manager

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations.
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TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Troy, Michigan

FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager

SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your
consideration and possible amendment and adoption.

Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by
department directors and staff members. | am indebted to them for their

efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration.

As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your
deliberations may require.

Respectfully submitted,

ksl

John Szerlag, City Manager
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A Cit)@/ ’ TROY CITY COUNCIL
J T[‘()y VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS

Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011

VISION:
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business.

GOALS:

Provide a safe, clean, and livable city
Practice good stewardship of infrastructure
Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection
Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner
Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community

Provide effective and efficient local government

Demonstrate excellence in community services

Maintain fiscally sustainable government

Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce

Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners
Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and
transparent manner

Build a sense of community
Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner
Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community
conversations
Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities
Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement
Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008

Attract and retain business investment
Clearly articulate an economic development plan
Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally
Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles
Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing
economic sectors
Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships




' CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA
December 5, 2011 — 7:30 PM

Council Chambers
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver
Troy, Michigan 48084

(248) 524-3317

INVOCATION: Pastor A. C. Phipps from Evanswood Church of God

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
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CALL TO ORDER:

ROLL CALL:

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:

Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

a) Service Commendation to the Smith Middle School Sylvan Glen Green Team...
b) Submittal of the 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).............

CARRYOVER ITEMS:

No Carryover ltems

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

No Public Hearings

PUBLIC COMMENT:

RESPONSE /REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT

POSTPONED ITEMS:

No Postponed Items




REGULAR BUSINESS:

[-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled

[-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled

-3 Request for Closed Session

-4 Application for Transfer of SDD License to Rite Aid of Michigan

-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts

-6 Resolution Recommending That the State of Michigan Require Michigan
Municipalities to Adopt the City of Troy’s Template for Transparency in
Government

CONSENT AGENDA:

|~

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes

J-3  Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted

J-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted

J-5 Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Water Main Easement and
Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement — Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018,
Sunset Plaza Shopping Center, LLC

J-6  Request for Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds, Three Easements and
Declaration of a Non-Access Greenbelt Easement from CP Ventures Limited
Partnership, Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:

|~

K-1  Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
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Memorandums (ltems submitted to City Council that may require consideration at
some future point in time): None Submitted

COUNCIL REFERRALS:

Council Referrals:

a) Mayor Daniels Submitted a PowerPoint Presentation by David Wisz ..................
b) Mayor Daniels Submitted Proposed Amendments to the City Council Rules of
e 0T o [ 1] = U

COUNCIL COMMENTS

No Council Comments Advanced

REPORTS

Minutes — Boards and Committees:
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final — September 15, 2011 ....................

Department Reports: None Submitted

Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted

Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed

STUDY ITEMS

City Council Rules of Procedure
a) 2010-2011 City Council Rules of Procedure ..............ooiiiiiiiiieiiiieeee e

CLOSED SESSION:

T.R. Pieprzak v. Troy




Q. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS:

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:

Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting..........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiie e,
Monday, January 9, 2012 Regular Meeting.........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiee
Monday, January 23, 2012 Regular Meeting..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiicee e
Monday, February 6, 2012 Regular Meeting ...
Monday, February 20, 2012 Regular Meeting ..........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiieee e,
Monday, March 5, 2012 Regular Meeting..........cooooviiiiiiiiiiie
Monday, March 19, 2012 Regular Meeting.............ccoieiiiiiiiiiicieee e,
Monday, April 2, 2012 Regular Meeting ..........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee
Monday, April 16, 2012 Regular Meeting .......ccovvvieiiiieiieieeee e
Monday, May 7, 2012 Regular Meeting..........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee
Monday, May 14, 2012 Regular Meeting.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiii e,
Monday, June 4, 2012 Regular Meeting...........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee
Monday, June 18, 2012 Regular Meeting.........oovvvviiiiiiiiiiceeee e
Monday, July 9, 2012 Regular Meeting ........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiieee
Monday, July 23, 2012 Regular Meeting ..........ooovmeiiiiiiiiiiceeee e
Monday, August 13, 2012 Regular Meeting ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee
Monday, August 27, 2012 Regular Meeting .........ouviieiiiiiiieieceeee e
Monday, September 10, 2012 Regular Meeting ...
Monday, September 24, 2012 Regular Meeting.......cccccoevviviiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e
Monday, October 8, 2012 Regular Meeting..........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee
Monday, October 22, 2012 Regular Meeting..........ccooeeiiiiiiiiiiicieeeeeeeeeeeeee e
Monday, November 12, 2012 Regular Meeting ...
Monday, November 26, 2012 Regular Meeting ..........cccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e
Monday, December 3, 2012 Regular Meeting ...
Monday, December 17, 2012 Regular Meeting..........ccccoovviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee e

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:

Monday, April 23, 2012 Special Budget Study Session...........cccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiniinnnnn.
Monday, April 30, 2012 Special Budget Study Session...........ccccoeveeiiiiiiiiiiiicieee.




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 5, 2011

INVOCATION: Pastor A. C. Phipps from Evanswood Church of God
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
A. CALL TO ORDER:

B. ROLL CALL:

a) Mayor Janice Daniels
Jim Campbell
Wade Fleming
Dave Henderson
Maureen McGinnis
Dane Slater
Doug Tietz

b) Excuse Absent Council Members:

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-
Moved by

Seconded by

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of at
the Regular City Council Meeting of December 5, 2011 due to

Yes:
No:

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

a) Service Commendation to the Smith Middle School Sylvan Glen Green Team
b) Submittal of the 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

CARRYOVER ITEMS:

D-1 No Carryover Items

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
E-1 No Public Hearings

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 — Members of
the Public and Visitors:

-1-



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 5, 2011

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s)
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to
the Mayor and Council.

Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with
the majority consent of City Council.

Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five
(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item.

Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five
minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda.
City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council
members.

City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to
topics where there is significant public input anticipated.

Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda.

RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
POSTPONED ITEMS:

H-1 No Postponed Iltems

REGULAR BUSINESS:

-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
[-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
-3 Request for Closed Session

Suggested Resolution

Resolution #2011-12-
Moved by
Seconded by

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation — T.R. Pieprzak v. Troy.

Yes:
No:




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 5, 2011

I-4  Application for Transfer of SDD License to Rite Aid of Michigan

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-
Moved by

Seconded by

(@) Transfer SDD License

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.

Liquor License Applicant : | Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc.

Transfer escrowed SDD License from Perry Drug Stores, Inc;
Transfer location from 805 E. Big Beaver, Troy, Ml 48084 to
1981 W. South Blvd., Troy, Ml 48098, to be held in
conjunction with existing SDM license.

Located at : | 1981 W. South Blvd., Troy, MI 48098
MLCC Request # : | 625424

Type of License Requested :

and

(b) Agreement

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-

WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.

Yes:
No:

I-5 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-
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Moved by
Seconded by

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Investment Policy and
Establishment of Investment Accounts as outlined in the memorandum and revised from
Interim Director of Finance and Administrative Services, Tom Darling dated November 22,
2011; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.

Yes:
No:

I-6 Resolution Recommending That the State of Michigan Require Michigan
Municipalities to Adopt the City of Troy's Template for Transparency in
Government

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-
Moved by

Seconded by

WHEREAS, The City believes an open government facilitates communication and
collaboration, both internally with employees and externally with residents and the businesses,
leading to a more responsive, efficient government; and

WHEREAS, The State of Michigan has declared on its website that government transparency
and fiscal accountability are defining principles of Michigan state government; and

WHEREAS, The State of Michigan strives to meet a high standard for financial transparency
online; and

WHEREAS, Other Michigan communities can help support the State of Michigan goal of
financial transparency by creating local government transparency sites;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ENCOURAGES other Michigan
communities to support a similar template for Transparency in Government; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council REQUESTS that the State of Michigan
mandate a similar Transparency in Government template to be used by all Michigan
communities to ensure a more responsive, efficient government, as well as create a data base
so as to make a comprehensive analysis.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward
a copy of this resolution to Governor Rick Snyder, Secretary of State Ruth Johnson, Senator
John Pappageorge, and State Representative Marty Knollenberg.

Yes:
No:




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 5, 2011

J. CONSENT AGENDA:

J-la Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-
Moved by

Seconded by

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as
presented with the exception of Item(s) , which SHALL BE
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (1) items, as printed.

Yes:
No:

J-1b Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted:

a. Regular City Council Meeting of November 28, 2011

J-3  Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted

J-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted

J-5 Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Water Main Easement and
Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement — Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018,
Sunset Plaza Shopping Center, LLC

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received a request from Sunset Plaza Shopping Center,
LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018, to abandon a portion of a
permanent water main easement as recorded in Liber 15191, Pages 262 with Oakland County
Register of Deeds; and

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received in its place a permanent easement for water main
from the property owner of Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018, Sunset Plaza Shopping Center, LLC;
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THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the portion of the permanent water main easement as
recorded in Liber 15191, Page 262 is hereby ABANDONED, and that City Council
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE a Quit Claim deed to the property
owners Sunset Plaza Shopping Center, LLC for that portion of the abandoned water main
easement; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for water main from Sunset
Plaza Shopping Center, LLC, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018 is
hereby ACCEPTED; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall RECORD both the Quit Claim Deed and
permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.

J-6 Request for Acceptance of Two Warranty Deeds, Three Easements and
Declaration of a Non-Access Greenbelt Easement from CP Ventures Limited
Partnership, Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2011-12-

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council herby ACCEPTS two warranty deeds for a detention pond
and road right-of-way, three easements for water mains, sanitary sewers and storm, and the
declaration of a non-access greenbelt easement from CP Ventures Limited Partnership,
owners of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the warranty
deeds, easements and declaration with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.

K.  MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:

K-1  Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at
some future point in time): None Submitted

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:

Iltems Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for
Placement on the Agenda

L-1 Council Referrals:

a) Mayor Daniels Submitted a PowerPoint Presentation by David Wisz
(Mr. Wisz will have the opportunity to speak and show the presentation under
Public Comment for the allowed 5 minutes. City Council has the option to allow
him additional time through a waiver of the Rules of Procedure.)

-6 -
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b) Mayor Daniels Submitted Proposed Amendments to the City Council Rules of
Procedure

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS

M-1  No Council Comments Advanced

N. REPORTS

N-1 Minutes — Boards and Committees:

a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final — September 15, 2011

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted

N-3 Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted

N-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed

0. STUDY ITEMS

O-1 City Council Rules of Procedure

a) 2010-2011 City Council Rules of Procedure

b) City Council Rules of Procedure with Tracked Changes Proposed by Mayor
Daniels

P. CLOSED SESSION:

P-1 T.R.Pieprzak v. Troy

Q. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully submitted,

3

John Szerlag, City Manager

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS:
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SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:

Monday, December 19, 2011 . ... Regular Meeting
Monday, January 9, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, January 23, 2012........o oo aeaaaes Regular Meeting
Monday, February 6, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, February 20, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, March 5, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, March 19, 2012.........eeee e e e e e e aeaes Regular Meeting
Monday, April 2, 20712 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, APril 16, 2012 ... e e e e e eaeaes Regular Meeting
Monday, May 7, 20712......eeeee Regular Meeting
Monday, May 14, 2012 Regular Meeting
Monday, JUNE 4, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, June 18, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, JUuly 9, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, July 23, 2012 .. ..o aaaaae Regular Meeting
Monday, August 13, 20712 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, AuguUSt 27, 2012 ..o e Regular Meeting
Monday, September 10, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, September 24, 2012.........coooiiieeee e Regular Meeting
Monday, October 8, 2012.......coooeeeeeeeee e Regular Meeting
Monday, October 22, 2012.........oo e Regular Meeting
Monday, November 12, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, November 26, 2012 ........cooo e Regular Meeting
Monday, December 3, 2012 ... Regular Meeting
Monday, December 17, 2012 ... Regular Meeting

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:

Monday, April 23, 2012 ... Special Budget Study Session
Monday, April 30, 2012 ... Special Budget Study Session
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SERVICE COMMENDATION Eg ,
SMITH MIDDLE SCHOOL
SYLVAN GLEN GREEN TEAM

WHEREAS, A group of Smith Middle School Students decided to become involved in a
project to clean the nature trail at Sylvan Glen Lake Park to raise public awareness that
pollution should not ignored, and that it is every person’s responsibility to stop it; and

WHEREAS, The Sylvan Glen Green Team included Andrew William, Chase Linton,
Nicole Setelia, Kayla Clowney, Claire Sexton, Hannah Malone, Julia Howard-Doney and
Dalton Shoan; and

WHEREAS, The Green Team got the idea after seeing the number of recyclables on the trail
and about how they could clean up the park by disposing unwanted waste and collecting the
money from recyclable cans and bottles to further help out their community; and

WHEREAS, The students, with the authorization from the City of Troy, began a campaign to
clean up Sylvan Glen Park including creating a website (www.sylvanglencleanup webs.com)
and facebook page to increase awareness about the need to stop pollution from harming
nature and the importance of recycling; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this
opportunity to express its appreciation to the Smith Middle School Sylvan Glen Green
Team - Andrew William, Chase Linton, Nicole Setelia, Kayla Clowney, Claire Sexton,
Hannah Malone, Julia Howard-Doney and Dalton Shoan, for their community
contributions; and

BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves,
City management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends heartfelt appreciation to the
Smith Middle School Sylvan Glen Green Team as well as the additional volunteers they
recruited to clean up the park as well as educate others on the importance of recycling.

Presented the 5" day of December 2011.
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December 2, 2011

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

From: John Szerlag, City Manager
Tom Darling, Interim Director of Financial and Administrative Services

Subject: Submittal of the 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) prepared by City
staff and reviewed by the City’s auditors, the Rehmann Robson Group, for the period ending June 30,
2011.

The auditors have issued an unqualified or “clean” opinion on the CAFR. This is the highest opinion
that can be issued from an independent auditor.

Hard copies of the CAFR are attached to your agenda materials, and are available for public viewing
at the City Clerk’s Office, the Library and on the City’s web site.

If you have any questions about the information contained within this document, please contact us.

TD/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\12.05.11 - Submittal of the 2011 CAFR
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500 W. Blg Beaver
Troy, Ml 48084
(248) 524-3300

The City of Tomorrow...

November 23, 2011

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Troy, Michigan for the year
ended June 30, 2011 is hereby submitted. The report represents a comprehensive and detailed
picture of our financial transactions during fiscal year 2010/11 and the financial condition of the
various funds as of fiscal year end. This report was prepared by a team of City staff led by
Thomas E. Darling, Interim Director of Finance and Administration Services. Troy's staff is
responsible for the accuracy of data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,

including all disclosures.

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report (MD&A), as well as entity-wide, full accrual
financial statements have been added to the front of the financial statement section. The fund
statements have been altered to provide reporting under the “Major/Non-major Fund” concept.
Reconciliation between the two presentations is included and the note disclosures have been
expanded to provide appropriate information on both the entity-wide and fund financial

statements.

The information presented is accurate in all material respects. Financial data presented is
designed to provide the reader with information to assist in determining both the long-term fiscal
health of the City of Troy and the City of Troy’s ability to meet obligations on a short-term basis.

As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), these financial statements
present the City of Troy and related component units. The individual component units are
included in the City of Troy’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or
financial relationships with the City of Troy.

The financial reporting entity includes all of the primary government (the City of Troy as legally
defined). The criteria used in determining the reporting entity are consistent with current GAAP
guidelines. Based on these criteria, the various funds of the City are shown in the table of
contents and are included in this report. We have addressed all component units.

The City of Troy was incorporated in 1955 and has always operated under the Council-Manager
form of government. The Mayor and six members of the City Council are elected to staggered

four-year terms.

The City Manager is appointed by a majority vote of the City Council and is responsible for all
administrative functions. The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police,
fire, water distribution, wastewater collection, street maintenance, public improvements,
planning, zoning, recreation and general administration.
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EcoNomic CONDITION
AND OUTLOOK

The economic condition of the City of Troy has reflected the downturn of the State and National
economies to some degree. Our unemployment rate is well below the state and metro area
average.

July 2011
Troy 9.5%
Oakland County 10.9%
Metro Area* 12.5%
Michigan 11.0%
National 9.3%

*The Metro Area includes Lapeer, Livingston, Macomb, Monroe, Oakland, St. Clair and
Wayne Counties

The growth in taxable value has slowed and even turned negative in recent years indicative of
the overall real estate market compared to the 1980s, 1990s and the highpoint in 2008. The
taxable value for the 2011 levy (to fund the 2012 fiscal year) decreased 8.2% or $395 million.
This compares to the prior 2010 levy (that funded 2011 fiscal year) which decreased 11.3% or
$616 million In Michigan, only the City of Detroit has a higher taxable value than the City of
Troy. However, in this era of competition for business retention and attraction, we need to
advance a preferred future in which residents and businesses continue to aspire to locate here.

The City has expanded upon its budgeting practices by including five-year budget projections
and the adoption of a three-year budget. Our approach to funding major capital projects is to
accumulate funds over a number of years to avoid the issuance of debt. The City has adopted a
policy to maintain our Unassigned General Fund Balance at 15% of General Fund Expenditures.

Other significant economic events occurring during the fiscal year include the following major
initiatives, which more often than not span several years:

Multi-Modal Transit Center

This project will feature a multi-model center for high speed train, bus, cab and limousine
service. Design and construction costs are fully funded through the Federal Rail Administration
and the Michigan Department of Transportation. Please note that City Council is going to decide
whether to proceed with this project or abandon it. Should City Council proceed with the project,
the project is expected to be complete by October 2014 at a cost of approximately $8.3 million.

Dialogue-Marketing, Inc.

Dialogue-Marketing, Inc., a provider of customer relationship management services, is planning
to invest $5.0 million to expand their call center and customized software development
operations in Troy. The project is expected to create up to 230 direct new jobs.
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Magna Steyr, L.L.C.

This operating unit of Magna International, plans to invest $765 thousand to expand operations
in Troy and create up to 200 direct new jobs.

Inteva Products, L.L.C.

This leading OEM world supplier (formerly Delphi Interiors & Closures) plans to invest $4.9
million to expand and renovate its world headquarters and technical center in Troy. The project
is expected to create up to 67 total jobs, including 35 directly at the company. The MEDC
estimates the increased economic activity created by the project has the potential to create an
additional 32 indirect jobs.

Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, L.L.C. — Arvin Meritor, Inc.

This global supplier of systems and components to commercial truck, industrial and aftermarket
customers plans to invest more than $23 million over five years in its technology center located
in Troy. This project is expected to create 125 jobs at the company. The MEDC estimates the
increased economic activity created by this program has the potential to create an additional
122 indirect jobs. This growth will augment more than 700 technical and professional employees
at the company’s headquarters.

FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) The cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 2) The valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit

As a recipient of Federal, State, and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal control is in place to ensure and document compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. This internal control is subject to
periodic evaluation by management and the independent auditors of the City.

As a part of the single audit process, tests are made by the auditors to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to Federal financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied with the applicable laws and

regulations.
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Budgeting Controls

The object of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council.

Activities of the General and Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated
budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function for the General Fund and fund level
for special revenue funds.

General Government Functions

Generally accepted accounting standards require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany these basic financial statements in the form of

the MD&A letter.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Troy’'s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors. Since the MD&A focuses on the government-wide financial
statements, the balance of this letter will be directed at the fund or activity level.

The General Fund receives all City of Troy revenues not designated for special uses by statutes
or the City Charter and accounts for most of the services provided to residents. Overall General
Fund revenues decreased by $4.9 million or 8.9% from the prior year. Property taxes in the
General Fund decreased by $3.8 million or 10.5%.

State sources remained level from the prior year at approximately $5.8 million. State shared
revenue is the major source of revenue, which is a return to local governments of a portion of
state sales tax and is not restricted to use.

Other revenues decreased by $1.0 million or 37.9% due to a one time transfer from the
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority in the prior year.

Total General Fund operating expenditures decreased by 8.4%. This reduction was achieved
primarily through payroll and related benefit decreases through employee layoffs, wage
concessions and early retirement incentive programs.

General Fund Balance

Fund balance of the General Fund increased by $1.9 million to a balance of $27,465,155. Of
this amount, $4,034,119 is nonspendable for such items as inventory and prepaid items;
$1,508,257 is restricted for budget stabilization, $3,610,131 has been committed to the
subsequent years budget and Volunteer Firefighters Incentive Reserve at $2,610,131 and
$1,000,000, respectively, and $5,953,000 has been assigned for insurance claims at $3,753,000
and tax appeals at $2,200,000. The $12,359,648 remaining unassigned amount represents
23.0% of General Fund expenditures. This amount exceeds our 15% goal and is considered
adequate to provide funds for unforeseen future negative events, and any upcoming budget
shortfalls.
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes. The Special Revenue Funds of the City include:

Major Street Fund — Gas and weight tax revenues received in this fund from the State of
Michigan are used for repairs, maintenance, snow and ice removal, and construction of all
streets classified as “major” within the city.

Local Street Fund — Gas and weight taxes as well as a transfer of funds from the Major Street
Fund to finance the repairs, maintenance, snow and ice removal, and construction of all streets
classified as “local” within the city.

Refuse Fund - This fund has been established to account for property tax revenues restricted for
rubbish and garbage collection and service charges for recycling.

Community Development Block Grant — This fund accounts for grant revenues from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development to be used for residential and other capital
improvements. Major activities in this fund include minor home chore program for seniors and
infrastructure improvements.

Enterprise Operations

The City operates five separate enterprise operations: Water Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund,
Aquatic Center Fund, Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Funds.

Water Fund - Operating revenues remained level at $14.1 million compared to prior year.
Operating expenses also remained consistent with prior year at $12.4 million. The economy
and weather conditions can have a significant effect on our water consumption.

Sanitary Sewer Fund - Generated $11.9 million in operating revenues as compared to $10.4
million in the prior year due to an increase in sewage disposal fees. Operating expenses
increased proportionally with revenues totaling $10.4 million, compared to $9.1 million last fiscal
year. These rates are reviewed annually during budget time to ensure proper funding for
operations and maintenance and improvements to the system.

Aquatic Center - Continues to operate at a loss. The operating loss of $62,496 shows
improvement compared to a net loss of $116,174 last fiscal year. Operating revenues increased
$52,000 compared to prior year due to favorable weather conditions for this activity. Operating
expenses remained level at $566,000. The City has taken measures to increase usage and
continues to look at ways to reduce the net loss.

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund - Ended the year with an increase in net assets of $14,296. This
amount compares to an increase of $50,389 last fiscal year.
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Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund - Ended the year with a decrease in net assets of $582,841
compared to a $664,226 decrease in net assets last fiscal year. Steps have been taken to
increase play and continue to reduce the loss, with the hiring of Billy Casper Golf to manage and
operate both golf courses.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department to other departments of the government, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Compensated Absences Fund — This fund accounts for the charges to other departments based
on sick and vacation accruals. The expenses of accumulated sick pay and vacation pay are
then recorded in this fund.

Unemployment Compensation Fund — This fund accounts for the charges to other departments
and the expenses to provide unemployment compensation insurance.

Custodial Services Fund — This fund charges other departments on a square footage basis to
account for the custodial services and maintenance provided to all City-owned buildings.

Information Technology Fund — This fund accounts for charges to other departments based on
the number of workstations to cover the expenses for providing computer services, including
support, training and replacement.

Motor Equipment Fund — Rental charges of City-owned equipment to other City departments are
accounted for in this fund. The fund provides maintenance, insurance and replacement of all
City-owned vehicles.

Workers’ Compensation Fund — Departments are charged a percentage of payroll based on
premiums established by our provider to account for pooled insurance expenses.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are established to account for assets held by the governmental unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental
units and/or funds.

Pension Trust — Employees’ Retirement Fund — This fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for pension benefit payments to qualified general and public safety
employees. The Employees Retirement Fund reported end-of-the-year net assets held in trust
for pension and health care benefits of $181 million compared to the beginning amount of $152
million. As of December 31, 2010, the fund is 95.8% funded.

Pension Trust — Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve Fund — This fund is used to account for
accumulation of resources for incentive payments to qualified volunteer firefighters.
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Retiree Health Care Trust Fund - The Retiree Health Care Trust Fund was established in fiscal
year 2006 to account for medical benefits provided to employees during retirement. This fund
will accumulate revenue until the reserves are depleted in the employee’s retirement fund. This
plan and trust is created under the authority of the Public Employee Health Care Fund
Investment Act, Public Act 149 of 1999.

Agency Fund — This fund is used to account for taxes collected on behalf of other governmental
units and contractors’ performance deposits.

Component Units

Component units, as defined by GASB No. 14, are so classified due to their relationship with the
primary government relative to financial accountability of the reporting agency.

Downtown Development Authority Fund — The Authority generates revenue from property value
increases within the district compared to the initial taxable value established in 1993. These
funds are used for the purpose of providing for the construction and financing of necessary
improvements to prevent further deterioration of the development area while preserving and
promoting economic growth.

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority — This fund was established in 2002 to account for projects
that will improve environmentally distressed areas within the City of Troy.

Local Development Financing Authority — This fund was established to capture tax increment
revenues in the Automation Alley Smart Park, to encourage local development, to prevent
conditions of unemployment and to promote economic growth. The purpose of the authority is
to provide for the construction and financing of public facilities within the City of Troy necessary
for the project.

Tax Rate Limitations

The City Charter provides tax rate limitations for general operations. In addition, the City of
Troy may levy taxes in excess of the Charter limitation for refuse collection and debt service.

Rate Per $1,000

Purpose Authority of Taxable Value
General Operating City Charter $8.10*
Refuse Collection Act 298, P.A. of Michigan 1917 as 3.00*
Amended,
Disposal Article IX, Section 56 of Michigan
Constitution
Debt Service City Charter Amount
Necessary for
debt payment

*The maximum permitted general operating and refuse collection and disposal per Headlee Amendment
of the Michigan Constitution for fiscal year 2010 was 8.1000 and 2.5522, respectively.
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OTHER
INFORMATION

Independent Audit

The City Charter and State statutes require an annual audit of all accounts of the City by
certified public accountants. The accounting firm of Rehmann Robson, was selected by the City
Council. The City received an “unqualified opinion” from Rehmann Robson, which is the best
opinion that an organization can receive on its financial statements. It indicates that the
auditor’'s examination has disclosed no conditions that cause them to believe that the financial
statements are not fairly stated in all material respects.

Additionally, during the current year an audit was performed in accordance with the
requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104456). The auditor’s reports
related to the single audit are issued as a part of this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Troy,
Michigan for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

This was the fourteenth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a certificate of achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The City has also received the GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual
Financial Reporting (PAFR).

Acknowledgements

The timely preparation of the CAFR was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire
staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation
for the contributions made in preparation of this report.
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? Re h m a n n 1500 W. Big Beaver Rd.
2" Floor
Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan (the “City”), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for
the general fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

CPAs Business Consultants Financial Advisors s
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 1, 2011, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis presented on pages 3-10 and the Schedules of
Funding Progress and Employer’s Contributions on pages 70-72 are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables as listed in the table
of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables, as listed in the table of contents,
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Troy’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter and City’s financial statements as listed in the table of

contents.

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

e The City’s combined total net assets are reported as $395.1 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011, compared to $391.0 last fiscal year.

e In the City’s governmental activities, revenues generated $72.2 million, while expenses totaled
$71.3 million.

e In the City’s business-type activities, revenues generated $29.1 million, while expenses totaled
$25.9 million.

e The total cost of all of the City’s programs, including governmental activities and business-type
activities was $97.2 million, down $3.2 million from last fiscal year, this compares to a $4.3

million decrease last year.

e Total net assets increased $4.1 million. Note that this is not cash or spendable resources of
itself.

OVERVIEW OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The first two statements, the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, provide information about the activities of
the City of Troy as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. The remaining
statements, including governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds focus on how City
services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements report the City of Troy’'s operations in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements.

The financial statements include notes that explain and provide more detailed data about some of
the information found in the financial statements. The statements are followed by a section of other
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements.

In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that
provide details about our nonmajor governmental, nonmajor business-type, internal service, and
fiduciary funds, each of which are added together and presented in single columns in the basic
financial statements.

www.troymi.gov 3



MANAGEMENT’S DiSCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the City of Troy as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or

paid.

The two government-wide statements report the change in the difference between the City’s assets
and liabilities. This change in net assets is an indicator of whether the City’s financial health is
improving or deteriorating. In order to assess the overall health of the City, you need to consider
additional non-financial factors such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of
the City’s roads and other infrastructure.

The government-wide financial statements of the City of Troy are divided into two categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as police, fire,
public works, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes, state shared
revenue, and charges for services finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities — The City charges fees to customers to help cover the cost of certain
services it provides. The City’s business-type activities include water, sanitary sewer, Aquatic
Center, and two public golf courses.

FuND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds, not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

The City of Troy has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on how cash, and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in and
out. The funds also show the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.

The governmental fund statements focus on a short-term view rather than the long-term focus of
the government-wide statements, so additional information is provided after the governmental fund
statements that explain the relationship or differences between the fund and government-wide

statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Proprietary Funds — Proprietary funds are used to report services where the City charges
Customers a fee for services rendered. Proprietary funds provide both long- and short-term
financial information. The two types of proprietary funds are enterprise and internal service funds:

e Enterprise funds and business-type activities are the same, but the fund statements provide
more detail and additional information such as cash flows.

e Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and service for the
City’s other programs. Examples of internal service funds would be Motor Equipment and

Information Technology.

Fiduciary Funds — The City of Troy is trustee for its employee pension plans. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These activities are excluded from the
City’s government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance

operations.

THE CITY OF TROY
AS A WHOLE

The City’s combined total net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is $395.1 million.
Business-type activities comprise $162.7 million and governmental activities make up $232.4
million of the total net assets.

Combined unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations, is reported as $83.5 million. $38.4 million is the amount of unrestricted net assets
reported for the City of Troy’s governmental activities while $45.1 is reported in the City’s business-
type activities.

The table on the following page shows the comparison of total assets, total liabilities, and total net
assets (in millions of dollars) in a condensed format as of June 30, 2011 to the prior year.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Assets:

Current Assets $ 68.3| % 7201 $% 486 | % 46.4 1169 $ 118.4

Capital Assets 202.4 201.5 127.9 127.6 330.3 329.1
Total Assets $ 270.7 | $ 2735 $ 176.5 | $ 174.0 447.2 | $ 447.5
Liabilities:

Long-tern Debt

Outstanding $ 3251% 36.5 (9% 10.3 ] % 10.7 4281 $% 47.2

Other Liabilities 5.8 6.0 3.5 3.3 9.3 9.3
Total Liabilities $ 38.3| % 425 | $ 13.8 | $ 14.0 521 | $ 56.5
Net Assets:

Invested in

Capital Assets,

Net of Debt $ 1746 | $ 170.8 | $ 1176 $ 116.9 2022 $ 287.7

Restricted 19.4 26.3 - - 19.4 26.3

Unrestricted 38.4 33.9 451 43.1 83.5 77.0
Total Net Assets $ 232.4 231.0 | $ 162.7 160.0 395.1 | $ 391.0

Total assets decreased by $0.3 million during the year, made up of a decrease of $2.8 million in
governmental activities and an increase of $2.5 million in business type activities. The decrease in
governmental current assets was due primarily to the use of cash and investments to reduce debt
obligations and purchase of capital assets.

Total liabilities decreased by $4.4 million primarily due to the reduction in long-term debt through
annual debt payments.

Net assets show an increase in investments in capital assets net of debt of $4.5 million and
unrestricted net assets increased by $6.5 million. Restricted net assets decreased by $6.9 million.

www.troymi.gov



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

The following table shows the comparison of the change in net assets (in millions of dollars) as of
June 30, 2011 to the prior year, in a condensed format:

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
State-shared Revenues
Interest Earnings
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

Program Expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Engineering & Public Services
Community & Economic Dev
Sanitation
Recreation and Culture
Interest Expense
Water
Sanitary Sewer
Golf Courses
Aquatic Center

Total Expenses

Inc in Net Assets before Transfers
Transfers

Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

11.5 11.8 28.5 26.9 40.0 | $ 38.7
1.5 1.1 - - 1.5 1.1
6.9 8.6 0.2 0.3 7.1 8.9
46.0 50.7 - - 46.0 50.7
5.6 5.6 - - 5.6 5.6
0.5 0.8 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.3
0.2 1.4 - - 0.2 1.4
72.2 80.0 29.1 27.7 101.3 107.7
10.1 10.5 - - 10.1 10.5
30.8 31:3 - - 30.8 31.3
14.8 15.0 - - 14.8 15.0
1.0 1.5 - - 1.0 1.5
4.1 4.0 - - 4.1 4.0
9.8 12.6 - - 9.8 12.6
0.7 0.6 - - 0.7 0.6
- - 12.4 12.5 12.4 12.5
- - 10.4 9.1 10.4 9.1
- - 2.5 2.7 2.5 2.7
- - 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
71.3 75.5 25.9 24.9 97.2 100.4
0.9 4.5 3.2 2.8 4.1 7.3
0.5 0.6 (0.5) (0.6) - -
1.4 5.1 2.7 2.2 4.1 7.3
231.0 225.9 160.0 157.8 391.0 383.7
232.4 231.0 162.7 160.0 | $ 395.1| $ 391.0
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

The City of Troy’s total governmental revenue is reported at $72.2 million, a decrease of $7.8
million from the prior year. The decrease is attributable primarily to a reduction in property taxes.

Expenses decreased by $4.2 million compared to last fiscal year. The net decrease of $4.2 million
is spread over several divisions, of which $2.8 million is attributable to recreation and cultural

activities.

During the year the City continued meeting the actuarial required contributions for the defined
benefit pension system and the discretionary fire incentive reserve fund as well as pre-funding
retiree healthcare benefits. This is important for the City because future taxpayers should not be
required to fund benefit payments that were earned in the past.

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

The City of Troy’s business-type activities consist of water, sanitary sewer, Aquatic Center, and golf
courses. Water and sanitary sewer services classified as Major Funds are provided to City
residents through the Detroit water system and sewerage treatment plants. Change in net assets
for business-type activities increased by $2.7 million. The Water and Sewer Fund increased by
$1.9 million and $1.4 million respectively. The City’s two golf courses recorded a net decrease in
net assets of $.6 million.

THE CITY OF TROY’S
FunDs

Analysis of the City of Troy’s major funds begins following the government-wide financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. The fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the City of Troy as a whole. Funds are created to
help manage money for specific purposes, as well as to show accountability for certain activities,
such as specific property tax millages and restricted receipts from outside sources.

The City’s General Fund balance increased by $1.9 million to a balance of $27.5 million. The
increase was attributable to a one time transfer of excess Brownfield Redevelopment Authority tax
increments and reduction in staff of on demand service departments and ten percent reduction in
pay through the use of furlough days, employee concessions and early retirement incentives for

several employee groups.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $4.8 million due to the timing and
completion of various projects.

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, City Council amended the budget to take into account events during
the year. These amendments from the original budget were minimal for both revenues and

expenditures.

Overall actual revenues were in line with amended budget amounts showing a slight increase over
budget of $0.9 million or 1.8%. Expenses for the City were $4.5 million or 7.8% under amended
budget amounts due to a conservative spending policy, delays in filling vacant positions, staff
reductions, reduction in benefit levels for new hires and 10% wage reductions in the form of
furlough days, employee concessions and early retirement incentives for several employee groups.

CAPITAL ASSET AND
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of 2011, the City of Troy had $330.4 million invested in a broad range of capital assets
including land, buildings, police and fire equipment, water and sewer lines, roads, sidewalks, and
other infrastructure, net of debt. The increase in capital assets during the year was attributable to
the excess of additions in streets, drains and water/sewer systems over the recognition of

depreciation.

The City of Troy’s debt rating is excellent. The City maintains a AAA rating on unlimited tax general
obligation bonds by Standard and Poor's. The City of Troy’s bond indebtedness totaled $42.8
million at June 30, 2011, a decrease of $4.4 million from the prior year resulting from debt

retirement payments.

Additional information about the City’s capital assets and debt administration is presented in the
notes to financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CURRENT EcoNOMIC
EVENTS

The City of Troy’s budget for 2012 calls for a tax rate of 9.49, a .09 mill increase from the current
year. The general operating total tax rate has remained the same or lower since July 1, 1996.
Property taxes make up approximately 65.5% of our General Fund budget. Because of the impact
of Proposal A, State of Michigan budget woes, and a decrease in taxable values due to the drop in
property values, the City of Troy budgeted to reduce its full-time work force by an additional 36
positions in 2011/12 through attrition and layoffs. The statewide tax reform act limits growth in
taxable value on any individual property to the lesser of inflation or five percent.

The electors of Troy passed a charter amendment on November 4, 2008 freezing the existing
operating rate unless voters approve an increase.

Because most properties decreased in market value due to utilizing a one-year sales study versus
two years, the mathematical result of this is that the total taxable value for the City of Troy will result
in a reduction of taxable value. With conservative budget forecasting of revenues and realistic
expenditure estimates, reduction of workforce, utilization of fund balance and employee
concessions, we have a balanced budget.

State shared revenue payments are expected to decrease by an additional $300,000 to $5.3
million. When comparing this annual amount to the amount we received five years ago, we are
receiving $1.5 million less. The State is still experiencing financial woes so we have adjusted our
revenue forecast to reflect the State’s economy, and the likelihood of future reductions.

The City purchases its water and sewer services from the City of Detroit. Historically, we have
passed along the full water and sewer rate increase or decrease to our customers. The City’s rate
structure enables us to provide water and sewer service to our citizens as well as pay for
operations, maintenance and improvements to the system.

The City still prides itself on having one of the lowest combined water and sewer rates of any
southeastern Michigan community.

CONTACTING THE CITY OF TROY’S
MANAGEMENT

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors with a
general overview of the City of Troy’s financial condition.

If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact
the administrative offices at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Mi. 48084. Additional information
can be obtained at the City of Troy’s web site, www.troymi.gov.

www.troymi.gov
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,054,776 $ 37,365,836 $ 67,420,612 $ 10,465,039
Investments 27,070,812 5,482,095 32,552,907 -
Receivables (net) 6,317,518 8,643,486 14,961,004 91,945
Internal balances 3,438,608 (3,438,608) - -
Other assets 1,066,088 522,103 1,588,191 -
Postemployment benefits asset 281,188 - 281,188 -
Capital assets
Assets not being depreciated 43,442,773 16,519,655 59,962,428 -
Assets being depreciated, net 158,997,617 111,393,339 270,390,956 -
Total assets 270,669,380 176,487,906 447,157,286 10,556,984
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,305,148 3,192,807 6,497,955 -
Accrued payroll 1,965,730 - 1,965,730 -
Accrued liabilities 262,340 242,805 505,145 165,365
Unearned revenue 186,793 86,721 273,514 -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 5,051,513 400,000 5,451,513 2,215,000
Due in more than one year 27,518,656 9,900,000 37,418,656 19,815,000
Total liabilities 38,290,180 13,822,333 52,112,513 22,195,365
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 174,656,911 117,612,994 292,269,905 -
Restricted for
Debt service 2,586,721 - 2,586,721 -
Highways and streets 3,857,177 - 3,857,177 -
Capital projects 12,542,798 - 12,542,798 -
Perpetual care 222,655 - 222,655 -
Other purposes 83,897 - 83,897 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 38,429,041 45,052,579 83,481,620 (11,638,381)

Total net assets (deficit)

$ 232,379,200

$ 162,665,573

$ 395,044,773

$ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions / Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 10,057,545 $ 3,017,126 $ 223) $ - $ (7,040,642)
Public safety 30,776,101 2,912,838 225,018 62,351 (27,575,894)
Public works 14,812,707 1,696,240 - 6,721,702 (6,394,765)
Sanitation 4,110,330 4,860 - - (4,105,470)
Community and economic
development 1,030,929 - 665,515 89,922 (275,492)
Recreation and culture 9,865,320 3,850,470 584,640 21,677 (5,408,533)
Interest on long-term debt 665,356 - - - (665,356)
Total governmental activities 71,318,288 11,481,534 1,474,950 6,895,652 (51,466,152)
Business-type activities
Water 12,439,089 14,139,274 - 81,067 1,781,252
Sewer 10,400,332 11,917,175 - 140,494 1,657,337
Aquatic center 565,873 503,685 - - (62,188)
Sylvan Glen golf course 1,021,420 1,024,216 - - 2,796
Sanctuary Lake golf course 1,523,616 940,775 - - (582,841)
Total business-type activities 25,950,330 28,525,125 - 221,561 2,796,356
Total primary government $ 97,268,618 $40,006,659 $ 1,474950 § 7,117,213  $(48,669,796)
Component units
Downtown development authority $ 2,187,039 § -3 -3 - $ (2,187,039
Local development financing authority 160,004 - - - (160,004)
Brownfield redevelopment authority 9,211 - - - (9,211)
Total component units $ 2,356,254 $ - 3 - - % (2,356,254)

continued...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONCLUDED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Changes in net assets
Net (expense) revenue

General revenues
Property taxes
Property taxes for sanitary purposes
Property taxes for economic development
Property taxes for capital projects
Property taxes for debt service
State shared revenue, unrestricted
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers - internal activities

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Total

Component
Units

$ (51,466,152) § 2,796,356

$ (48,669,796)

$ (2,356,254)

32,550,858 - 32,550,858 -
4,057,573 - 4,057,573 -
s . - 2,325,431
7,137,343 - 7,137,343 -
2,321,601 - 2,321,601 -
5,615,666 - 5,615,666 -
8,652 - 8,652 -
537,935 384,561 922,496 65,370
123,038 - 123,038 -
492,020 (492,020) - -
52,844,686 (107,459) 52,737,227 2,390,801
1,378,534 2,688,897 4,067,431 34,547
231,000,666 159,976,676 390,977,342 (11,672,928)

$ 232,379,200 $ 162,665,573

$ 395,044,773

$ (11,638,381)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Other Total
Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,384 $ 9,005,526 $ 6,019,020 $ 15,036,930
Investments 24,167,116 2,903,696 - 27,070,812
Receivables:
Accounts receivable (net) 847,726 1,592,275 - 2,440,001
Taxes-delinquent 257,709 - - 257,709
Special assessments - 267,162 - 267,162
Due from other funds 3,318,614 - - 3,318,614
Due from other governments 2,350,122 - 911,577 3,261,699
Inventory 255,019 - - 255,019
Prepaid expenditures 460,486 - - 460,486

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 31,669,176

$ 13,768,659

$ 6,930,597

$ 52,368,432

$ 1,784,424 $ 1,133,673 $ 180,147 $ 3,098,244
1,965,730 = 5 1,965,730
9,235 - - 9,235
444,632 92,188 - 536,820
4,204,021 1,225,861 180,147 5,610,029
4,034,119 - : 4,034,119
1,508,257 6,381,438 5,666,250 13,555,945
3,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200 10,855,691
5,953,000 - - 5,953,000
12,359,648 - - 12,359,648
27,465,155 12,542,798 6,750,450 46,758,403

$ 31,669,176

$ 13,768,659

$ 6,930,597

$ 52,368,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES ON THE BALANCE SHEET
FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES ON THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 46,758,403

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: capital assets not being depreciated 43,432,525
Add: capital assets being depreciated 354,626,469
Deduct: accumulated depreciation (198,747,937)

Contributions to Trust Funds in excess of actuarially required amounts create an
asset that can be applied to future required contributions in the statement of net
assets but are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: postemployment benefit asset 281,188

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets
will not be available to pay for current-period expenditures. Those assets (such as
certain receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds, and
thus are not included in fund balance.

Add: deferred revenues 350,027

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
equipment usage, public service department and retiree health care costs to
individual governmental funds. A portion of the assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of

Add: net assets of governmental activities accounted for in the internal service
funds. 14,542,491

Add: due from business-type activities for internal service fund activities 119,994

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct: accrued interest payable (253,106)

Deduct: bonds payable (27,783,479)

Deduct: claims incurred but not reported (947,375)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 232,379,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
Property taxes $ 32,550,858 $ 7,137,343 $ 6,394,472 $ 46,082,673
Licenses and permits 1,259,748 - - 1,259,748
Intergovernmental
Federal sources 531,619 1,491,214 148,800 2,171,633
State sources 5,776,780 - 4,727,605 10,504,385
Local sources 508,444 531,265 - 1,039,709
Charges for services 7,016,206 312,043 7,510 7,335,759
Fines and forfeitures 1,277,705 - - 1,277,705
Investment earnings 225,715 144,482 60,702 430,899
Other 1,683,054 62,846 221,175 1,967,075
Total revenues 50,830,129 9,679,193 11,560,264 72,069,586
Expenditures
Current
General government 8,172,962 59,829 - 8,232,791
Public safety 29,899,440 - - 29,899,440
Public works 6,555,525 - - 6,555,525
Sanitation - - 4,109,985 4,109,985
Community development - - 148,800 148,800
Recreation and culture 9,067,491 - - 9,067,491
Debt service
Principal - 196,586 2,300,000 2,496,586
Interest and fees - 2,690 1,245,789 1,248,479
Capital outlay - 14,244,384 - 14,244,384
Total expenditures 53,695,418 14,503,489 7,804,574 76,003,481
Revenues (under) over expenditures (2,865,289) (4,824,296) 3,755,690 (3,933,895)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt - - 9,110,000 9,110,000
Payments to escrow agents - - (9,919,004) (9,919,004)
Premium on debt issuance - - 947,639 947,639
Transfers in 4,781,563 1,000,000 3,447,677 9,229,240
Transfers out - (1,034,905) (7,737,220) (8,772,125)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 61,373 - 61,373
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,781,563 26,468 (4,150,908) 657,123
Net change in fund balances 1,916,274 (4,797,828) (395,218) (3,276,772)
Fund balances, beginning of year (restated) 25,548,881 17,340,626 7,145,668 50,035,175
Fund balances, end of year $ 27,465,155 $ 12,542,798 $ 6,750,450 $ 46,758,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.

Add: capital outlay

Deduct: depreciation expense

Pension contributions in excess of actuarially determined amounts are reported as
expenditures. However, these expenditures are not recognized until they are actuarially
required in the statement of activities.

Add: net difference in postemployment benefit assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds, but rather are deferred to the following fiscal year.

Deduct: net difference in deferred revenue

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the period
issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Add: principal payments on long-term liabilities
Deduct: proceeds from bond issuance for refunding
Add: proceeds transferred to bond agent for refunding

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain equipment,
public service department and employee insurance costs to individual governmental funds.
The net revenue attributable to those funds are reported with governmental activities.

Add: net gain from governmental activities in the internal service funds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds.

Add: decrease in accrued interest expense
Deduct: increase in accrued claims payable

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-17 -

(3,276,772)

14,244,383
(12,718,437)

281,188

(94,858)

2,496,586
(9,110,000)
9,919,004

22,332

(364,516)
(20,376)

1,378,534




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Federal sources
State sources
Local sources
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Council and executive administration
Finance
Other

Total general government
Public safety

Police

Fire

Building inspection
Total public safety

Public works
Roads and streets
Engineering
Total public works

Culture and recreation
Parks and recreation
Library and museum

Total culture and recreation
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year, restated

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 32,622,500 $ 32,622,500 $ 32,550,858 $ (71,642)
1,080,000 1,080,000 1,259,748 179,748
12,000 112,000 531,619 419,619
5,248,100 5,248,100 5,776,780 528,680
541,560 541,560 508,444 (33,116)
7,158,250 7,158,250 7,016,206 (142,044)
1,212,000 1,241,270 1,277,705 36,435
305,000 255,000 225,715 (29,285)
1,641,840 1,654,060 1,683,054 28,994
49,821,250 49,912,740 50,830,129 917,389
3,548,978 3,548,977 3,199,444 349,533
2,825,836 3,175,836 3,064,514 111,322
1,882,140 1,979,201 1,909,004 70,197
8,256,954 8,704,014 8,172,962 531,052
27,008,140 26,899,630 24,718,988 2,180,642
4,238,338 4,338,338 4,038,500 299,838
962,513 965,453 1,141,952 (176,499)
32,208,991 32,203,421 29,899,440 2,303,981
5,376,569 5,376,569 4,799,035 577,534
1,951,997 1,951,997 1,756,490 195,507
7,328,566 7,328,566 6,555,525 773,041
7,524,747 7,524,747 6,779,136 745,611
2,478,241 2,478,241 2,288,355 189,886
10,002,988 10,002,988 9,067,491 935,497
57,797,500 58,238,990 53,695,418 4,543,572
(7,976,250) (8,326,250) (2,865,289) 5,460,961
7,976,250 8,326,250 4,781,563 (3,544,687)
0) ) 1,916,274 1,916,274
25,548,881 25,548,881 25,548,881 -

$ 25,548,881

$ 25,548,881

$ 27,465,155

$ 1,916,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Interest receivable

Accounts receivable
Billed
Unbilled

Due from other funds

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Contracts receivable
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
net ot accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Unearned revenue
Current portion of bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences
Bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Investment in capital assets,

net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
d>anctuary
Lake Nonmajor
Sanitary Golf Enterprise Internal

Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
$ 9,538,089 $ 26,021,477 $ - $ 1,806,270 $ 37,365,836 $ 15,017,846
5,482,095 - - - 5,482,095 -
1,564 4,336 - - 5,900 -
2,220,119 7,666 257 16,597 2,244,639 90,947
3,148,319 2,707,145 - - 5,855,464 -
- - - 1,139,845 1,139,845 -

387,055 50,692 31,667 25,536 494,950 350,583

- - 13,262 13,891 27,153 -
20,777,241 28,791,316 45,186 3,002,139 52,615,882 15,459,376
117,618 419,865 - - 537,483 -
8,810,574 3,601,066 2,213,463 1,894,552 16,519,655 10,248
68,633,672 32,747,959 7,794,749 2,216,959 111,393,339 3,119,085
77,444,246 36,349,025 10,008,212 4,111,511 127,912,994 3,129,333
77,561,864 36,768,890 10,008,212 4,111,511 128,450,477 3,129,333
98,339,105 65,560,206 10,053,398 7,113,650 181,066,359 18,588,709
1,486,004 1.531.230 92,737 82,827 3,192,807 206,904
- - 4,134,127 324,332 4,458,459 -

9,459 - 104,554 128,792 242,805 -

- - - - - 2,025,941

86,721 - - - 86,721 -

) ; 400,000 - 400,000 -
1,582,184 1,531,239 4,731,418 535,951 8,380,792 2,232,845
- . “ = - 1,813,373

- - 9,900,000 - 9,900,000 -

- - 9,900,000 - 9,900,000 1,813,373
1,582,184 1,531,239 14,631,418 535,951 18,280,792 4,046,218
77,444,246 36,349,025 (291,788) 4,111,511 117,612,994 3,129,333
19,312,675 27,679,942 (4,286,232) 2,466,188 45,172,573 11,413,158
$ 96,756,921 $ 64,028,967 § (4,578,020) $ 6,577,699 162,785,567 $ 14,542,491

(119,994)

service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of business type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Sanctuary Nonmajor
Sanitary Lake Golf Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 13,517,973 § 11,917,175 895,932 $ 1,128,613 $§ 27,459,693 $ 7,025,106
Rental -
Golf course - - 38,558 183,183 221,741 -
Restaurant - - 6,285 87,720 94,005 -
Hydrant 2,000 - - - 2,000 -
Building - - - - - 152,708
Equipment - - - - - 2,924,654
Tap and connections fees 183,101 - - - 183,101 -
Penalties 417,244 - - - 417,244 -
Other services 18,956 - - 128,385 147,341 -
Other services to city funds - - - - - 686,745
Total operating revenues 14,139,274 11,917,175 940,775 1,527,901 28,525,125 10,789,213
Operating expenses
Cost of sales and services 7,302,189 7,962,199 - - 15,264,388 7,038,642
General and administrative 826,828 581,257 - - 1,408,085 736,735
Operations 2,258,254 624,054 726,640 1,271,914 4,886,362 2,300,172
Depreciation 2,022,429 1,217,991 297,642 309,687 3,847,749 938,850
Total operating expenses 12,409,700 10,385,501 1,024,282 1,587,601 25,407,084 11,014,399
Operating income (loss) 1,729,574 1,531,674 (83,507) (59,700) 3,118,041 (225,186)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment earnings 164,631 208,430 - 11,500 384,561 107,036
Interest expense - - (499,334) - (499,334) -
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - - - 61,665
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 164,631 208,430 (499,334) 11,500 (114,773) 168,701
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 1,894,205 1,740,104 (582,841) (48,200) 3,003,268 (56,485)
Developer contributions 81,067 140,494 - - 221,561 -
Transfers in - - - - - 34,905
Transfers out - (492,020) - - (492,020) -
Change in net assets 1,975,272 1,388,578 (582,841) (48,200) 2,732,809 (21,580)
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year 94,781,649 62,640,389 (3,995,179) 6,625,899 14,564,071
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ 96,756,921 $ 64,028,967 $ (4,578,020) $ 6,577,699 $ 14,542,491
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund actvities related to enterprise funds (43,912)

Change in net assets of business-type activities

$ 2,688,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and others
Cash received from interfund services
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Bond principal payments
Bond note interest payments

Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Investment earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Sanctuary Nonmajor
Sanitary Lake Golf Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Course Funds Total Service Funds
$ 13,760,813 $ 11,630,114 § 1,585,139  $ 1,528,305 $ 28,504,371 $ -
- - - - - 10,789,965
(1,745,154) (648,427) (297,256) (527,689) (3,218,526) (8,695,077)
(8,751,555) (7,712,842) (404,050) (725,254) (17,593,701) (2,526,444)
(360,130) (176,462) (9,999) (35,007) (581,598) =
2,903,974 3,092,383 873,834 240,355 7,110,546 (431,556)
- - - - - 34,905
- (492,020) - - (492,020) -
- (492,020) - - (492,020) 34,905
(3,239,422) (584,688) - (85,152) (3,909,262) (353,542)
- - - - - 61,665
- - (400,000) - (400,000) -
- - (499,334) - (499,334) -
(3,239,422) (584,688) (899,334) (85,152) (4,808,596) (291,877)
887,482 6,073,459 - 420,780 7,381,721 4,076,210
(2,675,062) - - - (2,675,062) -
165,090 209,412 - 11,578 386,080 73,739
(1,622,490) 6,282,871 - 432,358 5,092,739 4,149,949
(1,957,938) 8,298,546 (25,500) 587,561 6,902,669 3,461,421
11,496,027 17,722,931 25,500 1,218,709 30,463,167 11,556,425
$ 9,538,080 § 26,021,477 § - $ 1,806,270 $ 37,365,836 $ 15,017,846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor
Sanctuary Business-
Sanitary Lake Golf Type Internal
Water Sewer Course Activities Total Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 1,729,574 $ 1,531,674 § (83,507) $ (59,700) $ 3,118,041 $  (225,186)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 2,022,429 1,217,991 297,642 309,687 3,847,749 938,850
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (410,054) (311,452) 15,903 404 (705,199) 752
Inventories 155,242 (35,066) (12,119) (13,716) 94,341 (37,160)
Prepaid items - - (13,262) (13,891) (27,153) -
Contracts receivable 19,749 24,391 - - 44,140 -
Accounts payable (626,544) 664,845 (21,322) (58,997) (42,018) (2,505)
Due to other funds - - 628,461 (52,224) 576,237 -
Accrued liabilities 1,734 - 62,038 128,792 192,564 (1,106,307)
Uneamed revenue 11,844 - - - 11,844 -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2903974 $§ 3,092,383 § 873,834 § 240355 $§ 7,110,546 § (431,556)
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Contributions of capital assets 3 81,067 § 140,494  § - 3 - § 221,561 $ =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Pension
Trusts Agency

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,022,408 $ 1,787,506
Interest receivable 203,556 -
Taxes receivable - 945,910
Investments

U.S. Government securities 15,483,604 -

Corporate bonds 16,458,682 -

Corporate equities, preferred 1,932,390 -

Corporate equities, common 104,354,242 -

Mutual funds 61,692,312 -

Municipal bonds 3,241,336 -
Total assets 211,388,530 $ 2,733,416
Liabilities

Accounts payable 22,940 $ 36,020

Performance deposits - 2,697,396
Total liabilities 22,940 $2,733,416
Net assets

Held in trust for pension benefits

Held in trust for postemployment

healthcare benefits

Total net assets

152,332,621

59,032,969

S 211,365,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Pension
Trusts
Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions $ 6,903,705
Employee contributions 1,285,812
Total contributions 8,189,517
Investment income
Interest 2,030,935
Dividends 3,115,468
Net adjustment in fair value of investments 36,359,811
Total investment income 41,506,214
Total additions 49,695,731
Deductions
Benefits 11,960,883
Administrative expenses 121,948
Total deductions 12,082,831
Net increase in plan net assets 37,612,900
Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for
Pension benefits 119,011,331
Postemployment healthcare benefits 54,741,359
Total net assets held in trust, beginning of year 173,752,690
Net assets held in trust, end of year for
Pension benefits 152,332,621
Postemployment healthcare benefits 59,032,969
Total net assets held in trust, end of year $ 211,365,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Local
Downtown Development Brownfield
Development Financing  Redevelopment
Authority Authority Authority Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,419,831 $ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ 10,465,039
Receivables
Taxes receivable 91,945 - - 91,945
Total assets 9,511,776 255,139 790,069 10,556,984
Liabilities
Interest payable 165,365 - - 165,365
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 2,215,000 - - 2,215,000
Due after one year 19,815,000 - - 19,815,000
Total liabilities 22,195,365 - - 22,195,365
Net assets (deficit)
Unrestricted (12,683,589) 255,139 790,069 (11,638,381)
Total net assets (deficit) $ (12,683,589) $ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues
Expenses
Economic development

Interest

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit),
beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

Local
Downtown Development Brownfield
Development Financing Redevelopment
Authority Authority Authority Total
§ 2,124,678 $ 196,186 $ 4,567 $ 2,325,431
56,838 2,665 5,867 65,370
2,181,516 198,851 10,434 2,390,801
1,128,968 160,004 9,211 1,298,183
1,058,071 - - 1,058,071
2,187,039 160,004 9,211 2,356,254
(5,523) 38,847 1,223 34,547
(12,678,066) 216,292 788,846 (11,672,928)
$ (12,683,589) $ 255,139 $ 790,069 $ (11,638,381)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Troy, Michigan have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The following
is a summary of the significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

The City of Troy, Michigan was incorporated in 1955, and was formerly known as Troy Township
since it was organized in 1821. The City is governed by an elected mayor and six-member

council.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
City of Troy and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be

financially accountable.

Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the
government's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units are also legally separate entities, but are not in
substance part of the government operation. The City of Troy has three component units, the
Downtown Development Authority, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and the Local
Development Financing Authority, which meet the criteria for discretely presented component
units. The Authorities are also reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Financial statements for each
of the individual component units are included in the supplemental information section as listed in
the table of contents of this report. Separately issued audited financial statements are not available.

The purpose of the Downtown Development Authority is to issue bonds and use tax increment
financing in the accomplishment of specific Downtown Development improvements to City-
owned facilities and infrastructure, which are contained in the locally adopted development plan.
The Downtown Development Authority may participate in projects for private development as
long as it is for a public purpose. The Authority’s governing body, which consists of thirteen
individuals, is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City Council sets the annual budget.

The purpose of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is to provide assistance for the
redevelopment of abandoned, idled, or under-utilized industrial or commercial properties, which
are complicated by real or perceived environmental contamination. The Authority’s governing
body, which consists of seven individuals, is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City
Council sets the annual budget for the Authority.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

The Local Development Financing Authority is a multi-jurisdictional authority that was
established to encourage local development in order to prevent conditions of unemployment and
to promote economic growth. The Authority’s governing body, which consists of five individuals,
is selected by the City Council. In addition, the City Council sets the annual budget.

Included within the reporting entity is the Troy Municipal Building Authority. The City feels that
this authority meets the minimum requirements to be considered a blended component unit. The
governing body of this authority is appointed by City Council. Its” budget and any bond issuance
authorizations also are approved by the City Council and the legal liability for any general
obligation debt remains with the City. There have been no assets, liabilities, equity (beginning or
ending) or financial transactions during the year ended June 30™ Accordingly, this blended
component unit is not represented for financial reporting purposes.

The purpose of the Troy Municipal Building Authority is to issue bonds for City-owned facilities
and infrastructure, which are limited tax full faith and credit general obligations of the City.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33.

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as a
whole. The statements include all funds of the primary government and its component units,
except for its fiduciary funds. Those funds are reported in the statements of fiduciary net assets
and changes in fiduciary net assets.

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are presented to distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues. These activities are
reported in governmental and internal service funds. Business-type activities are financed by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services. These activities are reported in the City's
enterprise funds.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Capital assets are reported in the government-wide statements at historical cost. Capital assets
include land, improvements to land, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery,
equipment, library collection, infrastructure and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used
in operations and have initial useful lives beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets
are long-lived capital assets that normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of
years than most capital assets.

Capital assets that are being depreciated are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the
statement of net assets. Capital assets not being depreciated, such as land and construction in

progress, are reported separately.

Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense is reported
in the statement of activities by allocating the net cost over the estimated useful life of the asset.
Assets are depreciated on an individual basis for equipment and buildings. Roads are depreciated
as a class with each class containing items based on their date of construction or reconstruction.
Sidewalks are depreciated by class with each class containing items based on the year of
construction.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other
charges between the government's water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental Funds

The City reports the following major and nonmajor governmental funds:

Major Funds
General Fund

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary

funds).

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to account for the resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for the benefit of the government or its
citizenry. The City has one permanent fund for cemetery perpetual care.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds, Aquatic Center, golf course funds and
the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses for the enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and service,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Proprietary funds
focus on limitations on the use of net assets, rather than on the source of those assets.

The following proprietary funds are reported:

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for City operations which are similar to those often found
in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City or other governments,
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The City operates six internal service funds. The unemployment and worker’s compensation
funds account for insurance costs provided to and charged to other departments. The
compensated absences fund accounts for the accrual of sick and vacation by all departments.
The information technology fund provides computer services, training and equipment to all
departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The motor equipment fund rents vehicles and
equipment to departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The custodial services fund
provides services to all funds on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund

The water fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's water supply
system, capital additions and improvements.

Sanitary Sewer Fund

The sanitary sewer fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's sewage
disposal system, capital additions and improvements.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2011

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund

The Sanctuary Lake golf course fund accounts for the operations of the new 18-hole links
style course with practice facility.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds

Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. These include
pension trust funds, a retiree health care trust fund and an agency fund. Pension and retiree
health care trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds,
since capital maintenance is critical. The pension trust funds account for the activities of the
general employees and volunteer fireman retirement systems, which accumulate resources for
pension benefits to qualified employees and volunteers during retirement. The agency fund is
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of
operations. Agency fund activity includes tax collections for other taxing jurisdictions for
which the City collects taxes and contractors performance deposits.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available.

Revenues are generally considered available when they are received in cash (unless legally
restricted to some future period) or when earned and expected to be collected soon enough after
year end to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City generally considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
The exception to this is state shared revenues and expenditure driven grants in which revenues are
recognized if received within 90 days and one year of the end of the fiscal period, respectively.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include reimbursement grants, state shared revenues

and charges for services.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred provided the liability normally would be liquidated with
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expendable available financial resources. The major exception to this general rule is principal and
interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due.

Certain indirect expenditures are included in the program expense reported for individual
functions and activities.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources"
measurement focus. This means that generally only current assets and current liabilities are
included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a
measure of "available spendable resources". Governmental fund operating statements present
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financial
uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of
"available spendable resources" during a period.

All proprietary funds, pension and retiree health care trust funds and agency funds are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned,
and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Unbilled water and sewer fund utility
service receivables are recorded at year-end.

All proprietary funds and the pension and retiree health care trust funds are accounted for on a
cost of services or "economic resources”" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their
statements of net assets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Budget Information

The City is legally subject to the budgetary control requirements of the State of Michigan P.A.
621 of 1978 (the Uniform Budgeting Act). The following is a summary of the requirements of
this Act according to the State Treasurer's "Bulletin for Audits of Local Units of Government in
Michigan" dated April 1984:

1. Budgets must be adopted for the general fund and special revenue funds.

2. The budgets must be balanced.

3. The budgets must be amended when necessary.

4. Public hearings must be held before budget adoptions.

5. Expenditures cannot exceed budget appropriations.
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6. Expenditures must be authorized by a budget before being incurred.

The City adopts its budget by function, which is in accordance with the State's legal requirement
and is the level of classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

1. On or before the third Monday in April, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1%. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing on the budget is held before its final adoption.

3. As provided for by the City Charter, on or before the third Monday in May, the budget is
legally adopted and by resolution designates the sum to be raised by taxation.

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within budgetary functions;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditure of any budgetary function must be
approved by the City Council.

Budget amounts of the revenues and expenditures presented for the governmental funds are a
summarization of the budgeted amounts as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council.
Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations that were
adopted, for the general and special revenue funds. Budget appropriations lapse at year end.
During the current year, the budget was amended in a legally permissible manner. Budgets have
been prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrance Accounting

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is
utilized in the capital projects fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as
restricted fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

-34-



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments
with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City.

The City is authorized by Michigan Public Act 20 of 1943 (as amended) to invest surplus monies
(of non-pension funds) in U.S. bonds and notes, domestic certificates of deposit, certain
commercial paper, U.S. government repurchase agreements, bankers acceptances, mutual funds
and investment pools that are composed of authorized investment vehicles.

The pension and retiree health care trust funds are authorized by Michigan Public Act 485 of 1996
and 149 of 1999 to invest in certain reverse repurchase agreements, real estate leased to public
agencies, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity investment contracts, mortgages,
certain state and local government obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles.

Investments are stated at fair value.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis which approximates market
value. Inventories in the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when the inventory
item is consumed. Inventories are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance designation
which indicates that such amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources".

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011, are
recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

Infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal years ended after June 30, 1980 is not reported in capital
assets.

-35-



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Estimated

Assets Classification Useful Life
Buildings 50 years

Water and sewer transmission and

distribution system 50 years
Service connections 20 years
Infrastructure 20 - 25 years
Land improvements 10 years
Building improvements 20 years
Golf course equipment 3 - 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 10 years
Vehicles and miscellaneous equipment 2 - 20 years

Accrued Vacation and Other Compensated Absences

The City maintains an internal service fund to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, vacation, compensatory time, holiday and sick pay. Earned but unpaid vacation
pay is fully accrued in the compensated absences fund, as it is due during the fiscal year
subsequent to the statement of net assets date.

The City charges departments incurring payroll costs for vacation pay benefits as they are earned
on a percent of payroll basis and transfers related proceeds into the compensated absences fund to
pay for eventual benefits to employees. Accumulated unpaid vacation pay due to the employees
of the City at June 30, 2011, was $1,110,794.

All other compensated absences which are currently due are also accrued in the compensated
absences fund since it has been earned by the employee as of the statement of net assets date. The

compensated absences fund also includes compensatory holiday and sick pay.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund-type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
material bond premium or discount. Material bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts and issuance costs are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity

Governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e. inventory or prepaid expenditures) or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e. corpus of permanent funds). Restricted fund
balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use of resources by
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Committed fund balance is
reported for amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council.
A formal resolution of the City Council is required to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance
commitment. The City reports assigned fund balance for amounts that are constrained by the
government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.

When the government incurs expenditures for purposes for which various fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the government’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, then
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and finally unassigned fund balance.

The City has established a policy to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund at a level of 15% of annual expenditures. This is to provide sufficient cash flow for City
operations and minimize the potential for short term tax anticipation borrowing. The City has not
currently established a policy to reinstate unassigned fund balance should the amount fall below

target levels.
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Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

State Construction Code Act

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State Construction Code Act,
including inspection of building construction and renovation to ensure compliance with the
building codes. The City charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these
fees be used only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs.

A summary of the current year activity and the cumulative shortfall generated since July 1, 2001 is
as follows:

Shortfall at July 1, 2010 $ (6,659,862)
Current year building permit revenue $1.192.329
Related expenses:

Direct costs 1,147,855

Estimated indirect costs 91.828

Total construction code expenses 1,239,683

Net shortfall for the year ended June 30, 2011 (47,354)
Cumulative shortfall at June 30, 2011 $ (6,707.216)

Deposits and Investments

Statutory Authority

State statutes authorize the City to make limited investments authorized by Michigan Compiled
Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended), and may invest in the following:

a. Bonds, securities, other obligations and repurchase agreements of the United States, or
an agency or instrumentality of the United States. Repurchase agreements consisting of

these same instruments.

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a
qualified financial institution.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services and that matures not more
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than 270 days after the date of purchase. Not more than fifty percent of any fund may
be invested in commercial paper at any time.

d. Bankers acceptances of United States banks.

& Obligations of the State of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions that, at the time
of purchase are rated as investment grade by at least one standard rating service.

f. Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority
to purchase only investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public
corporation.

g. External investment pools as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended througl2/31/97.

The investment policy adopted by the City Council in accordance with Public Act 20 of 1943, as
amended authorizes investments in all of the above investments with the following provision:
Authorized Depositories shall be designated by the City of Troy City Council.

The City of Troy’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. All investments are recorded at fair value.

The pension and retiree health care trust funds are also authorized to invest in stocks, annuity
investment contracts, mutual funds, commercial paper, corporate bonds, instrumentalities of the
United States, real estate (limited to five percent of the trust funds assets), certain state and local
government obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles.

Investment and Deposit Risk

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result
of arise in interest rates. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the
allowable investments. The City of Troy’s investment policy does not have specific limits in excess
of state law on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.
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At year end, the average maturities of debt security investments are as follows:

Investment

Government-wide
US Government or agency bond/note
Municipal bonds

Employees’ Retirement System
US Government or agency bond/note
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds

Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve
US Government or agency bond/note

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund

Fair Value

Average Maturity

Mutual funds only

$

22,020,381
5,021,639

10,752,503
3,241,336
16,458,682

4,572,123

N/A

Over 10 years
Over 10 years

1,095 days
350 days
1,059 days

912 days

N/A

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of deposits
and bank accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum
maturities and ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of specific financial institutions, qualified
mutual funds and qualified external investment pools. The City of Troy investment policy does not
have specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit risk. As of year-end, the credit quality

ratings of debt securities are as follows:
AAA AA to AA- A to A- BBB to BBB- BB to BB- B to B- Not Rated Total

Government-wide

US Government or agency $ 22,020,381 § - 8 - 8 $ $ - S $ 22,020,381

Municipal bonds 3,476,639 795,000 750,000 5,021,639
Employees' Retirement System

US Government or agency 10,752,503 - - - 10,752,503

Municipal bonds 1,726,806 - 292,161 - 1,222,369 3,241,336

Corporate bonds 502,105 9,921,035 2,779,583 229,946 2,581,026 444,987 16,458,682
Discretionary Fire Incentive Reserve

US Government or agency 4,572,123 = - - 4,572,123
Total $ 37,345,007 $ 5,705,550 $10,716,035 $ 3,071,744 $ 229946 $2,581,026 $ 2,417,356 _$ 62,066,664
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Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the City of Troy deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the City’s investment
policy does not directly address a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, $50,447,347 of
the City of Troy’s bank deposits (certificates of deposit, checking, and cash) of $53,850,923 was
exposed to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured and uncollateralized. The City believes
that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to
insure all deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits
funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable
estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the City of Troy will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does not
require and the City of Troy does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk. At year end
none of the City’s investments were subject to custodial credit risk due to one of the following:

Investments were part of an insured pool

Investments were book-entry only in the name of the City and were fully insured
Investments were part of a mutual fund

Investments were held by an agent in the City’s name

Concentration of Credit Risk. In compliance with State law, the City’s investment policy limits
investments to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.
Through its investment policy, the City places a five percent limit on the amount the City may invest
in any one issuer.
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Note 4 - Receivables

Receivables, which include amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2011, are

summarized as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Delinquent personal property taxes (net) $ 257,709
Billed accounts receivable 2,265,635
Special assessments 267,162
Due from Oakland County 144,392
Due from State of Michigan 2,573,632
Due from U.S. Government 394,875
Other receivables 414,113

Total governmental activities 6,317,518

Business-Type Activities
Billed accounts receivable 2,244,639
Unbilled accounts receivable 5,855,464
Contracts receivable 537,483
Other receivables 15,394

Total business-type activities 8,652,980

Total primary government

Component Units
Downtown Development Authority
Delinquent personal property taxes (net)
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Note S - Capital Assets

The capital asset activity of the primary government’s governmental and business-type activities
is as follows:

Balance Balance
July1.2010 Additions Deletions June 30,2011
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 31,849,182 $ 1,152,682 § - 3 33,001,864
Museum artifacts 2,084,666 - - 2,084,666
Construction-in-progress 8,533,229 7,053,266 7,230,252 8,356,243
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 42,467,077 8,205,948 7,230,252 43,442,773
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure-major/county/local roads 168,168,651 8,387,307 - 176,555,958
Infrastructure-local donated roads 33,551,524 - - 33,551,524
Infrastructure-sidewalks 30,499,101 508,183 - 31,007,284
Infrastructure-drains 1,853,098 3,200,636 - 5,053,734
Land improvements 7,188,038 314,922 - 7,502,960
Buildings and improvements 80,645,984 287,215 - 80,933,199
Miscellaneous equipment 4,999,958 200,417 - 5,200,375
Office equipment 2,887,836 104,486 - 2,992,322
Vehicles 18,656,284 322285 1,230,857 17,747,712
Library books/audio visual 6,969,393 296,778 - 7,266,171
Total capital assets being depreciated 355,419,867 13,622,229 1,230,857 367,811,239
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure-major/county/local roads 73,699,750 6,099,173 - 79,798,923
Infrastructure-local donated roads 23,546,157 1,291,022 - 24,837,179
Infrastructure-sidewalks 26,634,276 682,134 - 27,316,410
Infrastructure-drains 114,096 53,189 - 167,285
Land improvements 5,656,332 287,448 - 5,943,780
Buildings and improvements 41,911,132 2,938,296 - 44849428
Miscellaneous equipment 3,944,017 386,879 - 4,330,896
Office equipment 2,066,592 189,515 - 2,256,107
Vehicles 13,585,836 1,293,390 1,230,857 13,648,369
Library books/audio visual 5,229,004 436,241 - 5,665,245
Total accumulated depreciation 196,387,192 13,657,287 1,230,857 208,813,622
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 159,032,675 (35,058) - 158,997,617
Governmental activities capital assets, net 201,499,752 $ 8,170,890 § 7,230,252 202,440,390
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Note 5 - Capital Assets - Continued

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction-in-progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
W ater and sewer transmission and
distribution system
Service connections
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Miscellaneous equipment
Motor vehicles
Fumniture, fixtures and other
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
W ater and sewer transmission and
distribution system
Service connections
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Miscellaneous equipment
Motor vehicles
Fumniture, fixtures and other
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Total business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance

July 1,2010 Additions Deletions

Balance
June 30,2011

6,738,504 § - 8 - 3 6,738,504
11,823,082 3,453,582 5,495,513 9,781,151
18,561,586 3,453,582 5,495,513 16,519,655
158,595,628 5,918,223 - 164,513,851
750,121 - - 750,121
8,898,232 - - 8,898,232
7,319,908 31,534 - 7,351,442
2,738,123 175,594 - 2,913,717
557,613 47,403 - 605,016
261,330 - - 261,330
179,120,955 6,172,754 - 185,293,709
60,252,660 3,166,793 - 63,419,453
750,121 - - 750,121
2,089,675 223,763 - 2,313,438
3,952,007 282,787 - 4,234,794
2,302,123 141,316 - 2,443,439
444,705 33,090 - 477,795
261,330 - - 261,330
70,052,621 3,847,749 - 73,900,370
109,068,334 2,325,005 - 111,393,339
$ 127,629,920 § 5,778,587 §$ 5495513 § 127,912,994
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Note 5 - Capital Assets - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 3,902,481
Public safety 769,153
Public works 8,171,335
Community and economic development 17,790
Recreation and culture 796,528
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 13,657,287

Business-type activities:

Water $ 2,022,429
Sanitary Sewer 1,217,991
Aquatic Center 164,102
Sylvan Glen Golf Course 145,585
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 297,642
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 3,847,749

Note 6 - Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The amounts of interfund receivables, payables and transfers are as follows as of June 30, 2011:

Due to

Due from Other

Other Funds Funds
General Fund $ 3,318,614 § -

Enterprise Funds

Aquatic Center Fund - 324,332
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund - 4,134,127
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund 1,139,845 -

$§ 4458459 § 4,458,459

Interfund balances represent routine and temporary cash flow assistance from mainly the general
fund until amounts are transferred from fund investment accounts. The Sylvan Glen golf course
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fund and General Fund provide funds for the Sanctuary Lake golf course fund until its operations
provide enough funding to cover expenses.

Interfund transfers reported in the fund statements are as follows as of June 30, 2011:

Fund Transferred from Fund Transferred to Amount
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund $ 3,289,543
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,447,677
Capital Projects Fund 1,000,000
7,737,220
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 1,000,000
Internal Service Funds 34,905
1,034,905
Sewer Fund General Fund 492,020
Total $ 9,264,145

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Major streets fund transfer to general fund for routine road maintenance in the amount of
$1,830,794. Major streets fund transfer to capital projects fund of $1,000,000 representing funding
of road improvements. Major streets transfer to local streets of $332,750 representing allowable
redirection of state funding. Local streets fund transfer to general fund for routine road
maintenance in the amount of $1,458,749. General debt service fund transfer to Proposal A, B, and
C debt service funds in the amount of $3,114,927 for principal and interest payments on
outstanding debt.

Capital Projects Fund

Transfer to general fund per budget amendment for items that fell under the threshold to be
considered capital purchases.

Sewer Fund

Transfer to general fund for storm sewer operating expenditures.
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Note 7 - Operating Leases

The City leases copy machines and telephones which are being treated as operating leases. The
leases have various terms of three to four years and the future minimum lease payments remaining
on these leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30
2012 $41,131
2013 36,370
2014 32,739

Lease costs for the year ended June 30, 2011, were $116,751.

Note 8 - Long-term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions of the City for the year ended
June 30, 2011:

Downtown
Development
Storm Total Authority
Drains and Street Internal Long-Term
IBNR Bonds Enterprise Service Debt Construction
Long-term debt/liabilities
payable at
July 1, 2010 $ 30,747,061 $§ 850,000 $ 10,700,000 $ 4951077 $ 47,248,138 § 24,095,000
Addition of new
debt 14,720,540 - - 1,606,941 16,327,481 -
Long-term debt
retired (17411,747) (175,000) (400,000) (2,718,703) (20,705,450) (2,065,000)
Total long-term debt/habilities
payable at
June 30, 2011 $28,055,854 $ 675,000 $10,300,000 $3,839,315 $42,870,169 $22,030,000
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Governmental Activities

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within
July 1,2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

George W. Kuhn Drain District Bonds,
Series 2007G dated 9/20/07; original
issue amount $46,242; bearing interest at
1.625%; principal due in annual

installments of $1,949 to $2,599
through April 1, 2028 $ 41,687 $ (2,079 8 39,608 $ 2,079

Street, Roads and Streetscape Improvement

General Obligation Bonds dated 11/1/01;

original issuance amount $6,850,000;

bearing interest at 3.25% to 4.70%; principal

due in annual installments of $150,000 to

$600,000 through October 1, 2020; refunded 325,000 (325,000) - -

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall
General Obligation Bonds dated 8/1/00;
original issuance amount $2,330,000;
bearing interest at 4.625% to 4.75%;
principal due in annual installments of

$80,000 to $500,000 through October 1,
2010 500,000  (500,000) . .

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall

General Obligation Bonds dated 11/1/01;

original issuance amount $1,170,000;

bearing interest at 3.75% to 4.75%; principal

due in annual installments of $15,000 to

$110,000 through October 1, 2020; refunded 55,000 (55,000) - -

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001D dated12/20/01;
original issuance amount $81,089; bearing
interest at 2.50%; principal due in annual

installments of $3,198 to $5,116 through
April 1, 2025 42,020 (2,686) 39,334 2,558
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Governmental Activities — Continued

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2008H dated 9/22/08;
original issuance amount $135,137; bearing
interest at 2.50%; principal due in annual
installments of $7,638 to $12,473 through
April 1, 2024

Refunding Bonds, Recreation; dated
3/31/10; original issuance amount
$5,910,000; bearing interest at 2.0% to
5/0%; principal due in annual installments
of $15,000 to $665,000 through October 1,
2020

Community Center and Recreational
Facilities General Obligation Bonds dated
11/1/01; original issuance amount
$9,470,000; bearing interest at 3.00% to
4.625%,; principal due in annual installments
of $200,000 to $700,000 through October 1,
2020; refunded

North Arm Relief Drain Revenue Bonds
dated 1998; original issuance amount
$926,972; bearing interest at 2.25%;
principal due in annual installments of
$38,408 to $54,933 through October 1, 2020

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001C dated 10/1/01; original
issuance amount $2,102,682; bearing
interest at 2.50%,; principal due in annual
installments of $82,368 to $131,609 through
April 1, 2024

Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds
serviced by the Downtown Development
Authority Fund, dated 2/1/2000; original
issuance amount $5,600,000; bearing
interest at 4.75% to 5.45%,; principal due in
annual installments of $125,000 to
$1,300,000 through May 1, 2014

- 49 -

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year
$ 189,157 $ (8,056) $ 181,101 $ 8,185
5,910,000 (15,000) 5,895,000 520,000
500,000 (500,000) - -
553,575 (45,089) 508,486 46,090
1,576,884 (95,414) 1,481,470 97,844
850,000 (175,000) 675,000 200,000
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Governmental Activities - Continued

Balance

Additions

Balance

Due
Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30,2011 One Year

Public Safety Facilities and City Hall
General Obligation Bonds, dated 2/1/03;
original issuance amount $14,500,000;
bearing interest at 2.50% to 4.50%; principal
due in annual installments of $500,000 to

$1,100,000 through April 1, 2020; refunded $11,000,000 $(10,000,000)$

Refunding Bonds, Public Safety Facilities

and City Hall, dated 10/18/10; original
issuance amount $9,110,000; bearing

interest at 2.0% to 5.0%,; principal due in
annual installments of $965,000 to $1,060,000
through October 1, 2020

Refunding Bonds, Streets, dated 3/31/10;

original issuance amount $4,515,000; bearing

interest at 2.0% to 5.0%; principal due in

annual installments of $15,000 to $575,000

through October 1, 2020 4,515,000

George W. Kuhn Drain District

Refunding Drain Bonds, Series 2007,

dated 8/01/07; original issuance

amount $318,728; bearing interest at

2.55%; principal due in annual

installments of $1,663 to $29,033 302,357
through April 1, 2024

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain Bonds
dated 9/25/05, Series 2005; original issuance
amount $41,440; bearing interest at 1.625%;

principal due in annual installments of
$1,790 to $2,430 through April 1, 2026 32,200

Refunding Bonds, dated 2/29/08; original

issuance amount $3,505,000; bearing

interest at 3.00% to 4.00%; principal due in

annual installments of $165,000 to $365,000

through October 1, 2020 3,120,000
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9,110,000

(15,000)

(9,337)

(1,819)

(215,000)

1,000,000 $1,000,000

9,110,000

4,500,000

293,020

30,381

2,905,000

345,000

9,337

1,819

210,000
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Governmental Activities - Continued

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2000A dated 10/1/00; original
issuance amount $457,372; bearing interest
at 2.50%,; principal due in annual
installments of $17,906 to $28,650 through
April 1, 2022

Refunding bonds (Public Safety), dated
3/31/10; original issuance amount $835,000;
bearing interest at 2.0% to 5.0%; principal
due in annual installments of $60,000 to
$105,000 through October 1, 2020

George W. Kuhn Drain District Drain
Bonds, Series 2001E dated 1/1/02; original
issuance amount $252,476; bearing
interest at 4.00% to 5.25%; principal due

in annual installments of $8,953 to
$18,415 through April 1, 2024

Total Long-term Debt
Other Long-term Obligations
Compensated Absences

Incurred but not reported insurance claims

Total Governmental Activities

Balance

Due
Additions Balance Within

July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

$ 301,078 $ (21,871) $ 279,207 $ 22,383
835,000 - 835,000 60,000
21.104 (10.232) 10,872 10.872

30,670,062 _(2,886.583) _ 27.783.479 2,536,167
4,951,077 1,606,941 - -

- (2,718,703) 3,839,315 2,025,941

926,999 5,610,540 - -

- _(5.590.164) 947,375 __489.405

$ 36,548,138 $(3,977,969) § 32,570,169 $5,051,513

Compensated absences are liquidated through the Internal Service Fund and incurred but not reported insurance
claims are generally liquidated through the General Fund.
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Business-Type Activities

Municipal Building Authority Golf Course
Bonds serviced by the Golf Course Fund,
dated 7/1/02; original issuance amount
$12,000,000; bearing interest at 3.25% to
5.00%; principal due in annual installments
of $200,000 to $900,000 through
December 1, 2027

Total Governmental and
Business-type Activities

Component Units

Downtown Development Authority
Development Bonds, dated 7/19/01; original
issuance amount $14,255,000; bearing
interest at 4.00% to 5.50%; principal due in
annual installments of $545,000 to
$1,165,000 through November 1, 2018

2002 Downtown Development Authority
Community Center Facilities Bonds serviced
by the Downtown Development Authority
Fund, dated 9/1/02; original issuance amount
$9,700,000; bearing interest at 2.05% to
5.00%; principal due in annual installments
of $400,000 to $850,000 through May 1,
2018

2003 Downtown Development Authority
Community Center Facilities Junior Lien
Bonds serviced by the Downtown
Development Authority Fund, dated 6/1/03;
original issuance amount $4,025,000;
bearing interest at 2.50% to 4.25%; principal
due in annual installments of $75,000 to
$500,000 through November 1, 2018

-52.

Due
Balance Additions Balance ‘Within
July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30,2011 One Year

$ 10,700,000 $ (400,000) $ 10,300,000 $ 400,000

$47,248,138 $(4,377,969) § 42.870,169 $5,451.513

$ 8,595,000 $(770,000) $7,825,000 $ 805,000
6,325,000 (600,000) 5,725,000 600,000
3,275,000 (200,000) 3,075,000 250,000
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Component Units — Continued

Due
Balance Additions Balance Within
July 1, 2010 (Deductions) June 30, 2011 One Year

Downtown Development Authority
Refunding Bonds, dated 7/19/01; original
issuance amount $9,745,000; bearing
interest at 4.00% to 5.50%; principal due in
annual installments of $380,000 to $800,000

through November 1, 2018 $ 5,405.000 $ 560,000

$ 5,900,000 $ (495.000)

Total Downtown Development

Authority $24,095,000 $(2,065,000) $22,030,000 $2,215.000

It is the intent of the City that all payments relating to these obligations will be made from
revenues generated from operations of the respective funds. The City has pledged its full faith and
credit for the debt if revenues are insufficient to meet the obligations of all general obligation
bonds.

The annual debt requirements to maturity for all long-term debts outstanding as of June 30, 2011, exclusive
of earned but unpaid sick pay and insurance claims are as follows:

Business Type Activities Component Units

Government Activities

Year Serviced by Amount of Amount of Downtown Amount of
Ending Government Annual Proprietary Annual Development Annual

June Fund Types Street Bonds Interest Fund Types Interest Total Authority Interest
2012 $ 2,336,167 $ 200,000 $ 1,027,301 $ 400,000 $ 485,446 $ 4,448,914 $ 2,215,000 $ 989,480
2013 2,401,776 225,000 947,891 400,000 468,597 4,443,264 2,365,000 888,600
2014 2,441,746 250,000 848,556 400,000 451,247 4,391,549 2,490,000 772,869
2015 2,572,182 - 739,671 450,000 431,248 4,193,101 2,650,000 648,950
2016 2,662,716 - 639,864 500,000 408,998 4,211,578 2,815,000 515,813
2017 2,718,788 - 531,341 500,000 386,748 4,136,877 3,005,000 376,638
2018 2,649,269 - 427,666 500,000 364,248 3,941,183 3,175,000 231,600
2019 2,834,959 - 315,285 600,000 339,123 4,089,367 3,315,000 78,450
2020 2,876,159 - 192,184 600,000 310,999 3,979,342 - -
2021 3,010,977 - 74,254 600,000 282,124 3,967,355 - -
2022 201,424 - 15,666 600,000 252,500 1,069,590 - -
2023 164,082 - 10,127 700,000 220,000 1,094,209 - -
2024 166,839 - 5,753 700,000 185,000 1,057,592 - -
2025 16,111 - 1,320 800,000 147,500 964,931 - -
2026 16,478 - 959 800,000 107,500 924,937 - -
2027 14,550 - 590 850,000 66,250 931,390 - -
2028 24,256 - 250 900,000 22,500 947,006 - -
Total $27,108,479 $ 675,000 $ 5,778,678 $10,300,000 $4,930,028 $48,792,185 $ 22,030,000 $4,502,400
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Special Assessment Bonds

In the event that special assessment collections are insufficient to meet debt service costs of such
issues, the City has pledged its full faith and credit as additional security for payment of related
principal and interest.

Advance Refunding

During 2011, the government advance refunded a general obligation bond issue. The government
issued $9,110,000 of general obligation refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S.
government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from long-term debt. This
advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 10 years by
$621,840 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments of the refunded and refunding bonds) of $555,195.

Note 9 - Net Assets/Fund Balance Classifications

Net Assets

Net assets have been restricted for (a) debt service, based upon bond indenture agreements and the
City's understanding that bond proceeds generated by these funds are only to be spent on specified
construction or the retirement of related debt, (b) replacements and extensions based upon bond
indenture agreements or the limited purpose for which a fund was established, and (c) capital
assets net of any outstanding debt.

Restricted for Pension and Other Employee Benefits

The related amount restricted in the Fiduciary Fund reserve is largely comprised of equity
recorded in the pension trust fund. In addition, equity is set aside to pay for sick pay and vacation
pay in the internal service funds.

Fund Balance

As noted in Note 1 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, The City classifies fund
balance by level of constraints imposed on resources by either external or internal factors or the
form in which the resources exist.
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The following is a summary of these constraints on fund balances:

Nonspendable:
Inventory & prepaids
Due from Sanctuary Lake golf course
Due from Aquatic Center
Total non-spendable

Restricted:
Special revenue funding source restrictions
Debt funding source restrictions
Permanent fund source restrictions
Budget stabilization
Capital Improvements
Total restricted

Committed:
Volunteer Firefighters Incentive Reserve

Subsequent years budgets
Total committed

Assigned:
Insurance Claims
Tax appeals
Total assigned

Unassigned
Total fund balances

Note 10 - Risk Management

Capital
General Projects Nonmajor
$ 715,505 - $ -
2,994,282
324,332

4,034,119 - -
3,811,074
- - 1,632,521
- - 222,655
1,508,257 - -
- 6,381,438 -
1,508,257 6,381,438 5,666,250
1,000,000 - -
2,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200
3,610,131 6,161,360 1,084,200
3,753,000 - -
2,200,000 - -
5,953,000 - -
12,359,648 - -
$27,465,155 $12,542,798 $6,750,450

The City has entered into a Public Entity Risk Pool with other Michigan units of government as an
individual member for its general liability, property damage insurance including auto and public
The City’s maximum deductible for property

coverage is $11,000 per occurrence. The liability maximum self-insured retention is $500,000 per
occurrence with an aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000 per policy year for both property and

officials liability and contractors equipment.

liability.

The City accounts for transactions related to these risks in accordance with GASB No. 10,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues”, which
states that a liability for claims must be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
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Note 11 -

financial statements indicates it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

No settlements have exceeded insurance coverage during the last three years. The City has made
no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year. The City has received no
indication that any significant losses exist at June 30, 2011.

The following are the changes in Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) estimates:

Fiscal Year Beginning Ending

Ending June 30, Balance Additions Deductions Balance
2010 S 738622 S 5,056,858 S (4,868,481) S 926,999
2011 926,999 5,610,540 (5,590,164) 947,375

The City has also entered into a public entity risk pool with other Michigan units of government
for its workers compensation insurance.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities
Litigation

The City is a defendant to various claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary
course of business. The City of Troy denies the allegations and plans a vigorous defense. In the
opinion of legal counsel, all such matters as indicated above are adequately covered by insurance,
or if not so covered, are without merit or of such kind, or involve such amounts that an
unfavorable disposition would not have a material effect on the financial position of the City.

Condemnations

The City of Troy has exercised its condemnation rights under Michigan law and has awarded the
affected property owners a monetary settlement for their property. Certain of these property
owners have contested the settlement amount and have subsequently filed suit. The amount of
final settlements cannot be determined and have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Tax Appeals to the Michigan Tax Tribunal

The City has several outstanding property tax assessment appeals totaling approximately
$217,987,637 (taxable values) to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. If the City is not successful with a
portion of these appeals, the City of Troy's share of the tax to be refunded would be the levied rate
(approximately $10 per thousand of assessed value) plus interest. The amount of refund (if any)
cannot be determined as of June 30, 2011.
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Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Property Taxes

Property taxes are recorded on the modified accrual basis of accounting and are levied, and
become a lien on July 1* on the taxable valuation of the property located within its boundaries as
of the preceding December 31%. Taxable value is determined by the prior year’s taxable value
plus 5% or the Consumer Price Index whichever is less, starting with the 1994 state equalized
value as the base taxable value. Assessed values are equalized by the State, to closely
approximate fifty percent of estimated current market value. The final taxable value of real and
personal property subject to property tax within the City for the fiscal 2010-2011 levy was
$4,843,613,012. The City's operating tax rate was 6.50 mills for the same year with additional
mills of .50, 1.53 and .87 levied to fund various types of debt service costs, capital outlay
expenditures and refuse removal and disposal, respectively.

In addition to collecting their own taxes, the City also acts as collection agent for all overlapping
governments and school districts within its boundaries, which includes seven school districts, two
intermediate school districts, a community college, and Oakland County.

City taxes are received in one installment, collectible from July 1* to September 1%. Any real
property taxes not paid by March 1%, following the due date, are reimbursed by the County. The
County Treasurer takes over collection responsibility at that date, as well as delinquent personal

property taxes.

The City is occasionally ordered by the Michigan Tax Tribunal to refund taxes already collected
and recorded into revenue. It is, therefore, the City's policy to compensate for doubtful accounts,
as well as refunds of taxes already collected through use of an allowance for doubtful taxes
receivable and as assigned general fund balance.

Retirement System and Plan

Employee Retirement System

The City of Troy, Michigan, under the authorization of the City ordinance, maintains employee
retirement plans covering all full-time employees. The single-employer defined benefit plan
provides retirement benefits based on credited service time and average compensation with death
and disability benefits, and under some circumstances, payments to dependents. Normal
retirement age is 65 with provisions for early and late retirement. Participants under such plan are
required to contribute a fixed percentage of their total compensation, with the City's contribution
being an amount sufficient to cover current service costs and prior service costs which are being
funded and charged to operations over the average expected active future working life time. The
plan is closed to new participants. Current membership in the system is as follows:
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Group December 31, 2010
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 265
Vested terminated employees 11
Active employees 115

The employee retirement system financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions
are due. Employer contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

The City's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The normal cost and amortization payment for the year
ended June 30,2011 were determined using the aggregate cost method. Unfunded actuarial
liabilities were amortized as a level percent of payroll on an open basis over the expected future
service and pay for service of active members.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, contributions totaling $3,770,248 ($2,484,436 employer and
$1,285,812 employee) were made in accordance with contribution requirements determined by an
actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2009, which was net of the amortization of
assets in excess of unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Employer and employee contributions
were based on 26.0 percent and 1.5 to 4.0 percent, respectively, of covered payroll in the amount
0f $9,450,505 for the year then ended. All contributions pertain to the pension plan only.

Significant actuarial assumptions are (a) a 6.5 percent investment return, (b) salary increases of
3.5-7.5 percent per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation and additional salary
increases ranging from 0.0%-2.5% per year attributable to seniority/merit and the assumption that
benefits will not increase after retirement. The actuarial value of assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility over a five year period.

Three-Year Trend Information
Employee Retirement System
($ Amounts in Thousands)

Fiscal Actuarial Annual

Year Valuation Pension Percentage Net
Ended Date Cost of APC Pension
June 30, December 31, (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 2007 $ 428 100.0% None
2010 2008 1,361 100.0 None
2011 2009 2,484 100.0 None
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Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters

The City of Troy has a noncontributory discretionary incentive plan established by resolution of
the City Council covering its volunteer firefighters. The single-employer plan benefits are
determined based on annual contribution amounts for each year of incentive service. The normal
cost and amortization payment for the year ended June 30, 2011 was determined using an
individual entry age funding method. At January 1, 2011, the benefit payment amount was $605
per year for incentive service. Participants are eligible for payments at age 55 with ten or more
years of volunteer service, age 50 with 25 years of service or 30 years of incentive service
regardless of age. The City's contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2011, was
$873,691. The volunteer firefighters are not paid any remuneration for their service. Unfunded
actuarial liabilities were amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis over 25 years.

Group December 31, 2009
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 79
Vested terminated employees 27
Active employees 137

Significant actuarial assumptions used include a 6.5 percent investment rate of return. The
actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility over a four year period.
Three-Year Trend Information
Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters
($ Amounts in Thousands)

Fiscal Actuarial Annual

Year Valuation Pension Percentage Net
Ended Date Cost of APC Pension
June 30, December 31, (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 2007 $ 885 100.0% None
2010 2008 864 100.0 None
2011 2009 874 100.0 None
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The Employee Retirement System Pension System (ERS) uses the aggregate actuarial cost
method. Because this method does not indentify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, funded status and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial
cost method and the information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status

and funding progress of the plan.

The funded status of the ERS and the Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (IPVF) as of
December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows (dollar amount in

thousands).
Unfunded
AAl. asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Active Active
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
December 31, Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
2009 (@) (b) () -(a) (a)/(b) (©) (b-a)/(c)
ERSPB $ 133,400 $ 139,232 $ 5,832 95.8 % $ 8,939 65.1%
IPVF 5,710 12,925 7,215 442 N/A N/A

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for

benefits. The plans do not issue a separate financial report.
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Statement of Net Assets

Employees' Discretionary
Retirement Fire Incentive
System Reserve Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,496,179 $ 34,140
Interest receivable 194,415 9,141
Investments
U.S. Government securitics 10,752,503 4,731,101
Corporate bonds 16,458,682 -
Corporate equities, preferred 1,932,390 -
Corporate equities, common 104,354,242 -
Mutual funds 38,470,515 910,580
Municipal bonds 3,241,336
Total assets 180,900,262 5,684,962
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 290 22,650
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits 146,670,309 5,662,312
Held in trust for postemployment
healthcare benefits 34,229,663 -
Total net assets $ 180,899,972 $ 5,662,312
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Statement of Changes in Fund Net Assets

Employees' Discretionary
Retirement Fire Incentive
System Reserve Fund
Additiens
Contributions
Employer contributions $ 2,484,436 $ 873,691
Employee contributions 1,285,812 -
Total contributions 3,770,248 873,691
Investment income
Interest 1,792,008 225,623
Dividends 2,752,363 -
Net adjustment in fair value of nvestments 32,406,285 236,971
Total mvestment earnings 36,950,656 462,594
Total additions 40,720,904 1,336,285
Deductions
Benefits 11,300,869 660,014
Administrative expenses 69,848 22,100
Total deductions 11,400,717 682,114
Net increase in plan net assets 29,320,187 654,171
Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for:
Pension benefits 114,003,190 5,008,141
Postemployent healthcare benefits 37,576,595 -
Total net assets held in trust, beginning of year 151,579,785 5,008,141
Net assets held in trust, end of year for:
Pension benefits 146,670,309 5,662,312
Postemployment healthcare benefits 34,229,663 -

Total net assets held in trust, end of year
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Note 14 - Defined Contribution Plan

The City maintains a defined contribution plan (DCP) administered by the International City
Manager’s Association Retirement Corporation (ICMARC), which qualifies under the Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(a). Classified, Exempt and Fire Staff Officers in the City’s
Employees Retirement System were given the option to transfer to the DCP by December 31,
1997. Employees who elected to transfer to the DCP had their individually actuarially determined
earned retirement benefits in the Employees Retirement System determined as of the date of
election to transfer to the DCP. In 1998, the City afforded the option to AFSCME members of
the Employees Retirement System to elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 41 employees elected
such transfer. In 1999, the City afforded the option to MAP members of the Employees
Retirement System to elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 29 employees elected such transfer. In
2000, the City afforded the option to TCOA members of the Employees Retirement System to
elect a transfer to the DCP, of which 20 employees elected such transfer. In 2002, the City
afforded the option to TPOA members of the Employees Retirement System to elect a transfer to
the DCP of which 19 employees elected such transfer. The DCP is also in effect for all new full-
time employees. Total membership in the DCP as of June 30, 2011 was 279.

The DCP maintains a schedule of vesting as follows: participants who transferred from the
Employees Retirement System are fully vested. For new hires the following schedule applies:
50% vested after 3 years, 75% vested after 4 years and 100% vested after 5 years. Employees
contribute 3 to 6 percent of their salary, while the employer contributes 10 to 13 percent. All
employees are able to contribute up to 10 percent of their salary on a voluntary after-tax basis.
All contributions are remitted to a third-party plan administrator.

The DCP was established by City Council resolution and any amendments to the plan would
require City Council approval.

The City’s payroll for employees covered by the DCP for the year ended June 30, 2011, was
$17,729,192. The required contributions, which matched those actually made, were $795,690 by
employees and $1,977,892 by the City, representing 4.5 percent and 11.2 percent of covered
payroll, respectively.
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Note 15 - Retiree Health Care Trust Fund

Plan Description

The City provides certain healthcare benefits for retired employees in accordance with the
bargaining group agreements and other requirements. Substantially all of the City’s full-time
employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while
working for the City. The City’s contribution for healthcare benefits is accounted for in the
Retiree Health Care Trust Fund. The employer’s contribution of $3,545,578 represented the
required contribution of $3,208,843 or 12.88% of covered payroll totaling $24,913,381, $55,546
of prior year Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations and $281,188 which will be used to
offset future required contributions. During the current year, healthcare benefits paid for 264
retirees totaled $3,346,932, which was paid out of the Employees Retirement System. It should be
noted that although healthcare benefits are paid out of another fund, they do not qualify as
required contributions, as healthcare assets in the Employees Retirement System are considered
when actuarially determining required contributions. Future payments will be made by the
Employees Retirement System until the reserves that have accumulated there are exhausted.

This is a single employee defined benefit plan administered by the City. The Plan does not issue a
separate stand-alone financial statement. Administrative costs are paid by the plan through
employer contributions.

Funding Policy

For current employees not covered by the Retiree Health Savings Account Plan, the City includes
retirees and their spouses in its healthcare plan, with no contribution required by participants if
they retire with 25 or more years of service. If under 25 years of service, the City contributes 4%
per year of service, or $400 per month, whichever is greater.

Funding Progress

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City has estimated the cost of providing retiree healthcare
benefits through an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2008. The valuation computes an
annual required contribution, which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis,
is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
period not to exceed 30 years.
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The valuation’s computed contribution and actual funding are summarized as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 3,208,843
Amount contributed (3,545.578)
Decrease in OPEB obligation (336,735)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year (adj.) 55.547
Net OPEB (asset), end of year $ (281,188)

The net OPEB obligation at beginning of year has been adjusted to reflect discounted interest at
6.5% or $3,390.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):
Percentage of Annual

OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation (Asset)
June 30, 2009 $ 3,759 97.1% $ 157
June 30, 2010 3,698 102.9 52
June 30, 2011 3,546 100.0 (281)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions include an assumed rate of return of 6.5%. An
annual healthcare cost trend of 9% was used in fiscal year 2011 decreasing to 3.5% by 2020. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level percent of payroll on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of December 31, 2010 was 28 years.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of the benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point.
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The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,

consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Unfunded
AAl asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Active Active

Actuarial Acerued Member Member

Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
December 31, (a) (b) (b)—(a) (a)/(b) (c) (b-a)/(c)
2008 $ 38,094 $ 91,966 $ 53,872 41.4% $ 31,168 172.8%

2010 60,360 89,952 29,592 67.1 25,951 114.0

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for

benefits.

Statement of Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Mutual funds
Total assets

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for postemployment

healthcare benefits
Total net assets
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Health Care
Trust Fund

$ 2,492,089

22,311,217
24,803,306

24,803,306
$ 24,803,306
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Statement of Changes in Fund Net Assets

Retiree
Health Care
Trust Fand
Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions $ 3,545,578
Investment income
Interest 13,304
Dividends 363,105
Net adjustment in fair value of mvestments 3,716,555
Total nvestinent earnings 4,092,964
Total additions 7,638,542
Deductions
Benefits -
Net increase in plan net assets 7,638,542
Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for:
Postemployment healthcare benefits 17,164,764
Net assets held in trust, end of year for:
Postemployment healthcare benefits $ 24,803,306
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Note 16 -

Note 17 -

Deficit Net Assets

The Sanctuary Lake golf course fund has deficit net assets of $4,578,020 at June 30, 2011.

The Sanctuary Lake golf course completed its sixth year of operations with an operating loss of
$83,507 including depreciation expense of $297,642. This resulted in a decrease change in net
assets of $582,841 which included $499,334 in interest expense, compared to a decrease change in
net assets of $664,226 last fiscal year. Cash flows from operations were positive in the amount of
$873,834. Several reasons are attributable for the deficit:

e Economy
e  Weather conditions

The City turned over operations and management of both courses on June 15, 2010 to Billy
Casper Golf with a strategic plan of eliminating the deficit in the next few years.

The Downtown Development Authority (component unit) reflected a deficit net asset position of
$12,683,589 compared to $12,678,066 last fiscal year. This deficit is attributable to recognizing
outstanding long-term debt.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The City has established a budget stabilization fund by adopting a City ordinance in accordance
with PA 30 of 1978 - MCL 144.441. The City Council may appropriate all or part of a surplus in
the General Fund to the Budget Stabilization Fund. The amount in the Budget Stabilization Fund
shall not exceed 15% of the City’s most recent General Fund budget as originally adopted or 15%
of the average of the City’s five most recent General Fund budgets, as amended, whichever is less.
Appropriations from the Budget Stabilization Fund may be used to cover any General Fund
deficit, prevent a reduction in the level of services when revenues are not being collected in a
sufficient manner or when the subsequent year budget indicates a shortfall, and to cover expenses
arising from a natural disaster unless federal or state funds are received to offset the appropriation.
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement number 54, the
Budget Stabilization Fund has been included as part of the General Fund for reporting purposes.
Any residual fund balance is reported as restricted in the General Fund.
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Note 17 - Restatement of Beginning Fund Balance

The City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement
Number 54 — “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. Accordingly
the City has combined the previously reported Budget Stabilization special revenue fund as a
component of the General Fund. The results of this combination to beginning fund balance is as

follows:
Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds
Ending fund balance, as previously reported $ 23,741,886 $ 8,952,663
Reclassification of budget stabilization fund 1,806,995 (1,806,995)
Begininng fund balance, restated $ 25,548,881 $ 7,145,668

* %k ok %k %k
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
($ amounts in thousands)

Unfunded
AAlL asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Active Active
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
December 31, (a) (b) (b)—-(a) (a)/(b) (c) (b-a)/(c)
2005 $ 128,790 $ 113,260 $ (15,530) 113.7 $ 12,100 (128.4)%
2006 132,168 119,299 (12,869) 110.8 11,472 (112.2)
2007 132,917 123,162 (9,755) 107.9 11,046 (88.3)
2008 128,249 126,138 2,111 101.7 10,953 (19.3)
2009 132,465 139,519 7,054 94.9 10,483 (67.3)
2010 133,400 139,232 5,832 95.8 8,959 65.1

Healthcare net assets of the Employees Retirement System are resources restricted for retiree health care
benefits and are not segregated for actuarial purposes. Subsequently the City has established a Retiree Health
Care Trust Fund in which resources are contributed and an actuarial valuation has been determined.

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets or actuarial accrued liability in isolation can be
misleading. Expressing the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability provides
one indication of the system’s funded status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time
indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. As a general rule, a larger percent
indicates a healthier financial position. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability and annual covered payroll
are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of covered
payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the progress being made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. As a general rule, a smaller percent indicates a
healthier plan.

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Actuarial
Year Valuation Annual

Ended Date Required Percent

June 30, December 31, Contribution Contributed

2006 2004 $ 213 100.0%
2007 2005 273 100.0
2008 2006 273 100.0
2009 2007 428 100.0
2010 2008 1,361 100.0
2011 2009 2,484 100.0
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INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
($ amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded
Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio
December 31, (a) (b) (b) — (a) (a)/(b)
2005* $ 6,572 $ 12,052 $§ 5,481 54.5%
2006* 6,007 11,932 5,925 50.3
2007* 6,413 13,240 6,827 48.4
2008* 6,273 13,038 6,765 48.1
2009 5,325 12,625 7,300 42.2
2010 5,710 12,925 7,215 44.2
* After changes in benefit provisions.
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)
Fiscal Actuarial
Year Valuation Annual
Ended Date Required Percent
June 30, December 31, Contribution Contributed
2006 2004 $ 815 100.0 %
2007 2005 790 100.0
2008 2006 800 100.0
2009 2007 885 100.0
2010 2008 864 100.0
2011 2009 874 100.0
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

($ amounts in thousands)

Unfunded
AAl. asa
Percentage of
Actuarial Actuarial Active Active
Valuation Actuarial Accrued Member Member
Date Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
December Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
31, (a) (b) b)-@ (a)/(b) © (b-2)/©
2006 $ 43,983 $ 78,901 $ 34,918 55.7% $ 31,038 112.5%
2008 38,094 91,966 53,872 41.4 31,168 172.8
2009 * * * * * *
2010 60,360 89,952 29,592 67.1 25,951 114.0
* Not available
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
($ amounts in thousands)
FISCAL ACTUARIAL
YEAR VALUATION ANNUAL
ENDED DATE REQUIRED PERCENT
JUNE 30 DECEMBER 31 CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTED
2008 2006 $ 2,923 100.0%
2009 2006 3,759 97.1
2010 2008 3,698 102.9
2011 2008 3,209 100.0
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Fund balance
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total liabilities
and fund balance
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JUNE 30, 2011
Permanent
Special Revenue Fund
Community Total Cemetery
Major Local Develop t Special Perpetual
Streets Streets Refuse Block Grant Revenue Care
$ 1,856,306 § 1,238,094 § 241,089 § (135953) § 3,199,536 § 222,655
546,317 216,460 - 148,800 911,577 -
$ 2,402,623 $ 14545554 § 241,089 § 12,847 $ 4,111,113  § 222,655
$ - $ - § 157,092 $ 12,847 § 170,039 § -
2,402,623 1,324,554 83,897 - 3,811,074 222,655
- 130,000 - - 130,000 -
2,402,623 1,454,554 83,897 - 3,941,074 222,655
$ 2,402,623 $ 1454554 § 241,089 § 12,847 § 4,111,113  § 222,655
Continued.....



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONCLUDED)

JUNE 30, 2011
Debt Service
Total
Total Nonmajor
General Proposal A Proposal B Proposal C Debt Governmental
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Service Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2596829 § - § - 3 - § 2,596,829 § 6,019,020
Due from other governments - - - - - 911,577
Total assets $ 2,596,829 § - 3 - 8 - 2,596,829 § 6,930,597
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 10,108  $ -3 - 8 - 3 10,108 $ 180,147
Fund balance
Restricted 1,632,521 - - - 1,632,521 5,666,250
Commited 954,200 - - - 954,200 1,084,200
Total fund balances 2,586,721 - - - 2,586,721 6,750,450
Total liabilities
and fund balance $ 259,829 § - 8 - 8 - $ 259,829 § 6,930,597
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Permanent
Special Revenue Fund
Community Total Cemetary
Major Local Development Special Perpetual
Streets Streets Refuse Block Grant Revenue Care
Revenues
Property taxes $ - % - % 4057573 % - $ 4057573 § -
Federal grants and reimbursements - - - 148,800 148,800 -
State grants and reimbursements 3,386,023 1,341,582 - - 4,727,605 -
Charges for services - - 4,860 - 4,860 2,650
Investment earnings 19,518 7,131 10,210 - 36,859 1,638
Other - - - N - -
Total revenues 3,405,541 1,348,713 4,072,643 148,800 8,975,697 4,288
Expenditures
Current
Sanitation - - 4,109,985 - 4,109,985 -
Community development - - - 148,800 148,800 -
Debt service
Principal - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
Total expenditures - - 4,109,985 148,800 4,258,785 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,405,541 1,348,713 (37,342) - 4,716,912 4,288
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt - - - - - -
Payments to escrow agents - - - - - -
Premium on debt issuance B - - - - -
Transfers in - 332,750 - - 332,750 -
Transfers out (3,163,544) (1,458,749) - - (4,622,293) -
Total other financing (uses) sources (3,163,544) (1,125,999) - - (4,289,543) -
Net change in fund balances 241,997 222,714 (37,342) - 427,369 4,288
Fund balances, beginning of year (restated) 2,160,626 1,231,840 121,239 - 3,513,705 218,367
Fund balances, end of year $ 2402623 $ 14545554 8 83,897 § - $ 3,941,074 $ 222,655
Continued....
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AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONCLUDED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Federal grants and reimbursements
State grants and reimbursements
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Sanitation
Community development
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt
Payments to escrow agents
Premium on debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year (restated)

Fund balances, end of year

Debt Service
Total
Total Nonmajor
General Proposal A Proposal B Proposal C Debt Governmental
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Service Funds

$ 2336899 § - 8 - $ - $ 2336899 § 6,394,472
- - - - - 148,800

- - - - - 4,727,605

- - - - - 7,510

22,205 - - - 22,205 60,702
221,175 - - - 221,175 221,175
2,580,279 - - - 2,580,279 11,560,264

N - . - - 4,109,985

- - - - - 148,800

175,000 555,000 1,055,000 515,000 2,300,000 2,300,000
117,227 295,771 590,159 242,632 1,245,789 1,245,789
292,227 850,771 1,645,159 757,632 3,545,789 7,804,574
2,288,052 (850,771) (1,645,159) (757,632) (965,510) 3,755,690

- - 9,110,000 - 9,110,000 9,110,000
- - (9,919,004) - (9,919,004) (9,919,004)

- - 947,639 - 947,639 947,639

- 850,771 1,506,524 757,632 3,114,927 3,447,677
(3,114,927) - - - (3,114,927) (7,737,220)
(3,114,927 850,771 1,645,159 757,632 138,635 (4,150,908)
(826,875) - - - (826,875) (395,218)
3,413,596 - - - 3,413,596 7,145,668

$ 2,586,721 % - 8 - 8 - § 2586721 % 6,750,450
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR STREETS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues

State grants and reimbursements $ 3,262,000 $ 3,262,000 $ 3,386,023 $ 124,023

Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 19,518 (482)
Total revenues 3,282,000 3,282,000 3,405,541 123,541
Other financing (uses)

Transfers out (3,282,000) (3,282,000) (3,163,544) 118,456
Net change in fund balances - - 241,997 241,997
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,160,626 2,160,626 2,160,626 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,160,626 $ 2,160,626 $ 2,402,623 $ 241,997
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IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL STREETS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues

State grants and reimbursements $ 1,292,000 $ 1,292,000 $ 1,341,582 $ 49,582

Investment earnings 12,000 12,000 7,131 (4,869)
Total revenues 1,304,000 1,304,000 1,348,713 44,713
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 422,150 332,750 332,750 -

Transfers out (1,726,150) (1,726,150) (1,458,749) 267,401
Total other financing (uses) (1,304,000) (1,393,400) (1,125,999) 267,401
Net change in fund balances - (89,400) 222,714 312,114
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,231,840 1,231,840 1,231,840 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,231,840 $ 1,142,440 $ 1,454,554 $ 312,114
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
REFUSE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property taxes $ 4,092,000 $ 4,092,600 $4,057,573 $ (34,427)

Charges for services 4,500 4,500 4,860 360

Investment earnings 24,450 24,450 10,210 (14,240)
Total revenues 4,120,950 4,120,950 4,072,643 (48,307)
Expenditures

Sanitation 4,120,950 4,120,950 4,109,985 10,965
Net change in fund balances - - (37,342) (37,342)
Fund balance, beginning of year 121,239 121,239 121,239 -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 121,239 $ 121,239 $ 83,897 $ (37,342)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Federal grants $ 260,600 $ 460,480 $ 148,800 $ (311,680)
Expenditures
Community development 260,600 460,480 148,800 311,680
Net change in fund balances - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ - $ -
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011
Sylvan Glen Aquatic
Golf Course Center Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,806,270 $ - $ 1,806,270
Accounts receivable 9,814 6,783 16,597
Due from other funds 1,139,845 - 1,139,845
Inventories 25,536 - 25,536
Prepaid expenses 13,891 - 13,891
Total current assets 2,995,356 6,783 3,002,139
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,894,552 - 1,894,552
Capital assets being depreciated,
net of accumulated depreciation 624,928 1,592,031 2,216,959
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 2,519,480 1,592,031 4,111,511
Total assets 5,514,836 1,598,814 7,113,650
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 76,186 6,641 82,827
Due to other funds - 324,332 324,332
Other liabilities 128,792 - 128,792
Total liabilities 204,978 330,973 535,951
Net assets
Investment in capital assets 2,519,480 1,592,031 4,111,511
Unrestricted (deficit) 2,790,378 (324,190) 2,466,188

Total net assets
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sylvan Glen Aquatic
Golf Course Center Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 662,113 $ 466,500 $ 1,128,613
Rental
Golf course 183,183 - 183,183
Restaurant 87,720 - 87,720
Miscellaneous income 91,200 37,185 128,385
Total operating revenues 1,024,216 503,685 1,527,901
Operating expenses
Operations and maintenance 875,835 402,079 1,277,914
Depreciation 145,585 164,102 309,687
Total operating expenses 1,021,420 566,181 1,587,601
Operating income (loss) 2,796 (62,496) (59,700)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 11,500 - 11,500
Change in net assets 14,296 (62,496) (48,200)
Net assets, beginning of year 5,295,562 1,330,337 6,625,899
Net assets, end of year $ 5,309,858 $ 1,267,841 $ 6,577,699
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows used by capital and related financing activities

Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities
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Sylvan Glen Aquatic
Golf Course Center Total
$ 1,026,115 $ 502,190 $ 1,528,305
(272,597) (255,092) (527,689)
(538,287) (186,967) (725,254)
(12,625) (22,382) (35,007)
202,606 37,749 240,355
(47,403) (37,749) (85,152)
420,780 - 420,780
11,578 - 11,578
432,358 - 432,358
587,561 - 587,561
1,218,709 - 1,218,709
$ 1,806,270 $ - $ 1,806,270
$ 2,796 $  (62,496) $  (59,700)
145,585 164,102 309,687
1,899 (1,495) 404
(13,716) - (13,716)
(13,891) - (13,891)
(48,859) (10,138) (58,997)
- (52,224) (52,224)
128,792 - 128,792
199,810 100,245 300,055
$ 202,606 $ 37,749 $ 240,355




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Compensated  Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,846,115 $ 197,534 $ 264,032
Accounts receivable - - -
Inventory - - -
Total current assets 4,846,115 197,534 264,032
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated - - -
Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation - - -
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation - - -
Total assets 4,846,115 197,534 264,032
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable - 20,802 4,391
Compensated absences 2,025,941 - -
Total current liabilities 2,025,941 20,802 4,391
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 1,813,373 - -
Total liabilities 3,839,314 20,802 4,391
Net assets
Investment in capital assets - - -
Unrestricted 1,006,801 176,732 259,641
Total net assets $ 1,006,801 $ 176,732 $ 259,641
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Information Motor Worker's
Technology Equipment Compensation Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,336,158 $ 5,976,051 $ 2,397,956 $ 15,017,846
Accounts receivable 30,762 60,185 - 90,947
Inventory - 350,583 - 350,583
Total current assets 1,366,920 6,386,819 2,397,956 15,459,376
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated - 10,248 - 10,248
Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation 438470 2,680,615 - 3,119,085
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 438,470 2,690,863 - 3,129,333
Total assets 1,805,390 9,077,682 2,397,956 18,588,709
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 7,619 174,092 - 206,904
Compensated absences - - - 2,025,941
Total current liabilities 7,619 174,092 - 2,232,845
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences - - - 1,813,373
Total liabilities 7,619 174,092 - 4,046,218
Net assets
Investment in capital assets 438,470 2,690,863 - 3,129,333
Unrestricted 1,359,301 6,212,727 2,397,956 11,413,158

Total net assets

$ 1,797,771

$ 8,903,590

$ 2,397,956

$ 14,542,491

-85-



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2011

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Equipment rental
Building rental
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Cost of services
Motor vehicle and garage expenses
Administration
Operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Compensated  Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services

$ 4,117,038 $ - $1,137,961

- 156,425 -

4,117,038 156,425 1,137,961

4,072,417 213,303 1,215,097

4,072,417 213,303 1,215,097
44,621 (56,878) (77,136)

36,266 1,976 1,625

36,266 1,976 1,625
80,887 (54,902) (75,511)
80,887 (54,902) (75,511)

925,914 231,634 335,152

$ 1,006,801 $ 176,732 $ 259,641
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2011

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Equipment rental
Building rental
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Cost of services
Motor vehicle and garage expenses
Administration
Operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Information Motor Worker's
Technology Equipment Compensation Total
$ 1,365,821 $ 79,528 $ 324,758 $ 7,025,106
- 2,924,654 - 2,924,654
- 152,708 - 152,708
- 450,783 79,537 686,745
1,365,821 3,607,673 404,295 10,789,213
1,332,036 - 205,789 7,038,642
- 736,735 - 736,735
- 2,300,172 - 2,300,172
62,983 875,867 - 938,850
1,395,019 3,912,774 205,789 11,014,399
(29,198) (305,101) 198,506 (225,186)
8,909 41,296 16,964 107,036
- 61,665 - 61,665
8,909 102,961 16,964 168,701
(20,289) (202,140) 215,470 (56,485)
34,905 - - 34,905
14,616 (202,140) 215,470 (21,580)
1,783,155 9,105,730 2,182,486 14,564,071

$ 1,797,771

$ 8,903,590

$ 2,397,956

$ 14,542,491
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from interfund services

Cash payments to employees

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital

.

Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
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Compensated Unemployment Custodial
Absences Compensation Services
$ 4,117,321 $ 156437 $ 1,137,977
(5,184,180) - (1,078,566)
- (218,975) (133,364)
(1,066,859) (62,538) (73,953)
1,532,344 67,298 87,705
36,266 1,976 1,625
1,568,610 69,274 89,330
501,751 6,736 15,377
4,344,364 190,798 248,655
$ 4,846,115 $ 197,534 $ 264,032
$ 44,621 $ (56,878) § (77,136)
283 12 16
- (5.672) 3,167
(1,111,763) - -
(1,111,480) (5,660) 3,183
$ (1,066,859) § (62,538) § (73,953)




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Information Motor Worker's
Technology Equipment  Compensation Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from interfund services $1,365,886 $ 3,607,944 $ 404,400 $ 10,789,965
Cash payments to employees (960,923) (1,471,408) - (8,695,077)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (402,439) (1,565,877) (205,789) (2,526,444)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,524 570,659 198,611 (431,556)
Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities
Transfers from other funds 34,905 - - 34,905
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 34,905 - - 34,905
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets (34,905) (318,637) - (353,542)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 61,665 - 61,665
Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (34,905) (256,972) - (291,877
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments 353,442 1,466,368 569,053 4,076,210
Investment income (21,853) 38,761 16,964 73,739
Net cash provided by investing activities 331,589 1,505,129 586,017 4,149,949
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 334,113 1,818,816 784,628 3,461,421
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,002,045 4,157,235 1,613,328 11,556,425
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $1,336,158 $5,976,051 $ 2,397,956 $ 15,017,846
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by eperating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (29,198) $ (305,101) § 198,506 $ (225,186)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 62,983 875,867 - 938,850
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 65 271 105 752
Inventory - (37,160) - (37,160)
Accounts payable - - - (2,505)
Accrued liabilities (31,326) 36,782 - (1,106,307)
Total adjustments 31,722 875,760 105 (206,370)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 2,524 $ 570,659 $ 198,611 $ (431,556)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Investments
U.S. Government securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate equities, preferred
Corporate equities, common
Mutual funds
Municipal bonds

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Net assets

Held in trust for pension benefits

Held in trust for postemployment
healthcare benefits

Total net assets

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Employees' Discretionary Retiree Total
Retirement Fire Incentive Health Care Pension
System Reserve Fund Trust Fund Trust Funds
$ 5,496,179 $ 34,140 $ 2,492,089 $ 8,022,408
194,415 9,141 - 203,556
10,752,503 4,731,101 - 15,483,604
16,458,682 - - 16,458,682
1,932,390 - - 1,932,390
104,354,242 - - 104,354,242
38,470,515 910,580 22,311,217 61,692,312
3,241,336 - - 3,241,336
180,900,262 5,684,962 24,803,306 211,388,530
290 22,650 - 22,940
146,670,309 5,662,312 - 152,332,621
34,229,663 - 24,803,306 59,032,969

$ 180,899,972

$ 5,662,312

$ 24,803,306

$ 211,365,590
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN FUND NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Total contributions

Investment income
Interest
Dividends
Net adjustment in fair value of investments

Total investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions
Benefits
Administrative expenses

Total deductions
Net increase in plan net assets

Net assets held in trust, beginning of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust,
beginning of year

Net assets held in trust, end of year for
Pension benefits
Postemployment healthcare benefits

Total net assets held in trust, end of year

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Employees' Discretionary Retiree
Retirement Fire Incentive Health Care

System Reserve Fund Trust Fund Total
$ 2,484,436 $ 873,691 $ 3,545,578 $ 6,903,705
1,285,812 - - 1,285,812
3,770,248 873,691 3,545,578 8,189,517
1,792,008 225,623 13,304 2,030,935
2,752,363 - 363,105 3,115,468
32,406,285 236,971 3,716,555 36,359,811
36,950,656 462,594 4,092,964 41,506,214
40,720,904 1,336,285 7,638,542 49,695,731
11,300,869 660,014 - 11,960,883
99,848 22,100 - 121,948
11,400,717 682,114 - 12,082,831
29,320,187 654,171 7,638,542 37,612,900
114,003,190 5,008,141 - 119,011,331
37,576,595 - 17,164,764 54,741,359
151,579,785 5,008,141 17,164,764 173,752,690
146,670,309 5,662,312 - 152,332,621
34,229,663 - 24,803,306 59,032,969

$ 180,899,972

$ 5,662,312

$ 24,803,306

$ 211,365,590
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
‘ AGENCY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance
Beginning of End of
Year Additions Deductions Year
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,768,159 $ 206,439,279 $ (206,419,932) § 1,787,506
Investments 25,676 - (25,676) -
Taxes receivable 901,571 208,055,787 (208,011,448) 945,910
Interest receivable 4 - 4) -

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Performance deposits

Total liabilities

$ 2,695410 $ 414,495,066 $ (414,457,060)

$ 2,733,416

$ 6,450 $ 193,138,574
2,688,960 529,035

$ (193,109,004)
(520,599)

$ 36,020
2,697,396

$ 2,095,410 $ 193,667,609 $ (193,629,603)

$ 2,733,416
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011
Debt Net
Operating Service Total Adjustments Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,211,907 $ 3,207,924 § 9,419,831 § - $ 9,419,831
Receivables
Taxes receivable 91,945 - 91,945 - 91,945
Total assets $ 6,303,852 $ 3,207,924 $ 9,511,776 - 9,511,776
Liabilities
Interest payable $ - $ - 8 - 165,365 165,365
Deferred revenue 91,946 - 91,946 (91,946) -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year - - - 2,215,000 2,215,000
Due after one year - - - 19,815,000 19,815,000
Total liabilities 91,946 - 91,946 22,103,419 22,195,365
Fund balance
Restricted
Debt service - 3,207,924 3,207,924 (3,207,924) -
Operations 6,211,906 - 6,211,906 (6,211,906) -
Total fund balances 6,211,906 3,207,924 9,419,830 (9,419,830) -
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 6,303,852 § 3,207,924 §$ 9,511,776
Net (deficit)
Unrestricted (12,683,589) (12,683,589)
Total net deficit $ (12,683,589) $ (12,683,589)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES ON THE BALANCE SHEET
FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO NET ASSETS OF
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ON THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 9,419,830

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will
not be available to pay for current-period expenditures. Those assets (such as certain
receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds, and thus are
not included in fund balance.

Add: deferred revenues 91,946

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct: accrued interest payable (165,365)
Deduct: bonds payable - current portion (2,215,000)
Deduct: bonds payable - long-term portion (19,815,000)
Net assets of governmental activities 8 (12,683,589)
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DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures/expenses
Economic development
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures/expenses

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and
(uses)

Net change in fund balances/
net assets

Fund balance/net assets (deficit),
beginning of year

Fund balance/net assets (deficit),
end of year

Debt Net
Operating Service Total Adjustments Assets

$ 2,110,801 $ - $ 2,110,801 $ 13,877 $ 2,124,678

53,357 3,481 56,838 - 56,838

2,164,158 3,481 2,167,639 13,877 2,181,516

1,128,968 - 1,128,968 - 1,128,968

- 2,065,000 2,065,000 (2,065,000) -

- 1,080,122 1,080,122 (22,051) 1,058,071

1,128,968 3,145,122 4,274,090 (2,087,051) 2,187,039
1,035,190 (3,141,641) (2,106,451) 2,100,928 (5,523)

- 2,627,249 2,627,249 - 2,627,249
(2,627,249) - (2,627,249) - (2,627,249)

(2,627,249) 2,627,249 - - -
(1,592,059) (514,392) (2,106,451) 2,100,928 (5,523)
7,803,965 3,722,316 11,526,281 (24,204,347) (12,678,066)

$ 6,211,906

$ 3,207,924

$ 9,419,830

$ (22,103,419)

$ (12,683,589)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (2,106,451)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the
period issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net

assets.
Add: principal payments on long-term liabilities 2,065,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
funds.
Add: decrease in accrued interest expense 22,051

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (5,523)
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011
Net
Operating  Adjustments Assets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 255,139 $ - $ 255139
Fund balance

Restricted $ 255,139 (255,139) -
Net assets

Unrestricted 255,139 255,139
Total net assets $ 255,139 $ 255,139

-97 -




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net
Operating  Adjustments Assets

Revenues

Property taxes $196,186 $ - § 196,186

Investment earnings 2,665 - 2,665
Total revenues 198,851 - 198,851
Expenditures/expenses

Economic development 160,004 - 160,004
Net change in fund balances/net assets 38.847 - 38,847
Fund balance/net assets,

beginning of year 216,292 - 216,292
Fund balance/net assets,

end of year $255,139 § - § 255,139
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

Assets
Cash

Fund balance
Restricted

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

JUNE 30, 2011

Statement

of
Operating Adjustments Net Assets
$ 790,069 $ - $ 790,069
$ 790,069 (790,069) -
790,069 790,069
$ 790,069 $ 790,069
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Statement
of
Operating  Adjustments Activities
Revenues
Property taxes $ 4,567 § - 4,567
Investment earnings 5,867 - 5,867
Total revenues 10,434 - 10,434
Expenditures/expenses
Community and economic development 9,211 - 9,211
Net change in fund balance/net assets 1,223 - 1,223
Fund balance/net assets, beginning of year 788,846 - 788,846
Fund balance/net assets, end of year $ 790,069 hY - 790,069
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATISTICAL SECTION
JUNE 30, 2011

This part of the City of Troy's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall
financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over
time. 101

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's

most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 107

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 111

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the City's financial

activities take place. 117

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the City's financial report
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 119

Continuing Disclosure
Information contained herein complies with Rule 15¢2-12, a federal regulation
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, designed to improve
disclosure practices in the municipal bond market. 125

Sources:
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 in the fiscal year ended 6/30/03; schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2011

Net
General

Bonded Debt

Jurisdiction Outstanding
City of Troy $ 25,196,758
Avondale School District 110,444,455
Birmingham School District 212,830,000
Bloomfield Hills School District 9,530,000
Lamphere School District 15,460,000
Royal Oak School District 72,845,000
Troy School District 116,040,000
Warren School District 195,415,000
Oakland County 97,306,733
Oakland Intermediate School District 62,379,412

Macomb Intermediate School District -

Oakland County Community College 5,075,000
Total overlapping debt 897,325,600
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 922522358

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan; Detroit, Michigan.
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Percentage Amount
Applicable Applicable
to Troy to Troy
100.00% $ 25,196,758
18.66% 20,608,935
3.84% 8,172,672
2.09% 199,177
14.01% 2,165,946
2.23% 1,624,444
100.00% 116,040,000
8.05% 15,730,908
8.73% 8,494,878
8.19% 5,108,874
1.09% -
8.79% 446,093
178,591,925
$ 203,788,683




CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
JUNE 30, 2011

Assessed Valuation at December 31, 2009

General obligation debt
Emergency bonds
Special assessment bonds

Total debt

$ 4988518313
Legal Margin
Percentage of
Annual State Equalized Legal Debt
Net Debt Valuation Amount Margin

$ 34,545,000 10.0% $ 498851,831 § 464,306,831
- 37.5% 1,870,694,367 1,870,694,367
- 12.0% 598,622,198 598,622,198
$ 2968,168396 $  2933,623,396

$ 34,545,000

The statutory debt limits of net bonded indebtedness incurred for all public purposes shall
not at any one time exceed 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property in the

City ($4,988,518,313), except that this limit may be exceeded by 3/8ths of 1% in case of fire,

flood or other calamity. This limitation does not include bonds issued in anticipation of the payment
of special assessments, nor bonds issued persuant to court order for sewage or garbage

disposal systems.

The Michigan State Bond Act provides that the total debt in special assessment bonds, which would

require that the City pledge its faith and credit, shall not exceed 12% of the assessed valuation of

taxable property of the City, nor shall such bonds be issued in any calendar year in excess

of 3% unless voted.
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Debt Limit $ 565,256,394 $ 595,569,740 $ 618,808,426 $ 633,722,297 $ 652,607,433
Total net debt applicable to limit (33,840,000) (58,875,000) (48,680,000) (47,405,000) (45,855,000)
Legal debt margin $ 531,416,394 $ 536,694,740 §$ 570,128,426 3 586,317,297 $ 606,752,433
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 5.99% 9.89% 7.87% 7.48% 7.03%

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Debt Limit $ 660,880,475 $ 642,265,981 § 622,709,405 $ 583,886,924 § 498,851,831
Total net debt applicable to limit (44,130,000) (42,220,000) (40,050,000) (37,460,000) (34,545,000)
Legal debt margin $ 616,750,475 §$ 600,045,981 § 582,659,405 § 546,426,924 $ 464,306,831
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 6.68% 6.57% 6.43% 6.42% 6.92%
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Building Authority bonds

Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections Principal Interest Total Coverage (1)
2002 $ - $ - $ - $ - N/A
2003 - - 511,294 511,294 0%
2004 - - 557,770 557,770 0%
2005 962,132 - 557,770 557,770 172%
2006 1,173,020 200,000 554,520 754,520 155%
2007 1,057,265 200,000 547,307 747,307 141%
2008 985,813 300,000 539,038 839,038 117%
2009 923,908 300,000 526,950 826,950 112%
2010 974,051 300,000 515,200 815,200 119%
2011 940,775 400,000 501,945 901,945 104%
Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds
Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections (2) Principal Interest Total Coverage
2002 $ 2,389,260 $ 1,200,000 $ 221,538 $ 1,421,538 168%
2003 2,433,431 1,300,000 164,538 1,464,538 166%
2004 2,627,194 125,000 103,438 228,438 1150%
2005 2,548,178 150,000 97,438 247438 1030%
2006 2,529,103 175,000 90,088 265,088 954%
2007 2,502,483 175,000 81,338 256,338 976%
2008 2,461,676 175,000 72,588 247,588 994%
2009 2,371,142 175,000 63,838 238,838 993%
2010 2,329,592 175,000 54,913 229,913 1013%
2011 2,363,803 175,000 45,900 220,900 1070%
Special Assessment Bonds
Debt Service
Fiscal Year
Ended Collections Principal Interest Total Coverage (3)
2002 $ 37,738 $ 25,000 $ 12,738 $ 37,738 100%
2003 36,056 25,000 11,056 36,056 100%
2004 34,369 25,000 9,369 34,369 100%
2005 32,675 25,000 7,675 32,675 100%
2006 55,125 50,000 5,125 55,125 100%
2007 51,713 50,000 1,713 51,713 100%
2008 - - - - N/A
2009 - - - - N/A
2010 - - - ~ N/A
2011 - - - - N/A

(1) Capitalized Interest 2003, 2004.
(2) Fifty percent of state gas and weight taxes can be used for debt payments.

(3) Customers may choose to make special assessment payments up-front to avoid paying interest
to the City,which creates uneven payment streams over the life of the assessment.
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2001 - 2002
2002 - 2003
2003 - 2004
2004 - 2005
2005 - 2006
2006 - 2007
2007 - 2008
2008 - 2009
2009 - 2010
2010 - 2011

1,938
1,867
2,110
2,136
1,927
1,696
1,588
1,251
1,185

940

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
permits
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143,908,032
141,941,808
140,823,926
143,697,564
114,459,317
113,160,162
103,420,413

99,128,945

56,329,455

81,414,322

estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
estimated value
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

STATE SHARED REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year State Shared
Ended June 30 Revenue
2002 $ 8,348,727
2003 7,618,966
2004 7,101,729
2005 6,906,372
2006 6,844,167
2007 6,635,508
2008 6,633,938
2009 6,313,999
2010 5,615,666
2011 5,615,666
GAS AND WEIGHT TAXES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total
Fiscal Year Type of Street Gas and Weight Tax
Ended June 30 Major Road Local Road (Act 51) Receipts
2002 $ 3415410 $ 1,363,109 $ 4,778,519
2003 3,479,968 1,386,893 4,866,861
2004 3,751,867 1,502,521 5,254,388
2005 3,647,503 1,448,852 5,096,355
2006 3,628,794 1,429,411 5,058,205
2007 3,587,980 1,416,986 5,004,966
2008 3,529,518 1,393,834 4,923,352
2009 3,396,979 1,345,306 4,742,285
2010 3,337,309 1,321,874 4,659,183
2011 3,386,023 1,341,582 4,727,605

Source: City of Troy
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CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

LABOR AGREEMENTS
Number of
Expiration Employees
Name Date Covered

American Federation of State, County, and Municipal
Employees, AFSCME - Public Works Employees 6/30/2013 66
Michigan Association of Police - Clerical, Police Services Aides 6/30/2013 41
Troy Command Officers Association - Command Police Officers 6/30/2014 17
Troy Police Officers Associtation - Police Officers 6/30/2015 94
Troy Firestaff Officers Association - Fire Career Professionals 6/30/2014 8
Troy Communication Supervisors Association - Civilian Communications
Supervisors 6/30/2013 9
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P Rehmann

Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan (the “City”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above.

-127 -

CPAs Business Consultants Financial Advisors

INTERNATIONAL



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

In addition, we noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Troy in a
separate letter dated December 1, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management,

others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Aol feleo:
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P Rehmann

Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Troy, Michigan (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City of Troy, Michigan’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance
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of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2011-1.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Troy, Michigan is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
City’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weakness, as defined above.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management,

others in the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Relaunprter
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City of Troy, Michigan
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass through Oakland County, Michigan
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 148,800
U.S. Department of Justice:
Bulletproof Vest Grant 16.607 13,756
JAG - Contract No. 2009-SB-B9-1863 16.804 5,134
Total U.S. Department of Justice 18,890
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Pass through Michigan State Department of Transportation
Highway Planning & Construction
HH6088 20.205 611,715
RR5240 20.205 577,930
HH6240 20.205 177,448
RR6189 20.205 664
RR3172 20.205 122,684
RR5451 20.205 773
Total Highway Planning and Construction 1,491,214
U.S. Department of Transportation Highway Safety Funds:
Pass through Michigan Office of Highway Safety Planning
MACP Award PT-09-70 20.600 15,000
Total U.S. Department of Transportaion 1,506,214
U.S. Department of Energy Labor & Economic Growth:
AARA Energy Efficiency and Conservation Grant 81.128 394,875
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
FEMA-Assistance to Firefighter's Grant 97.044 102,854
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,171,633

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal grant activity of the City of Troy, Michigan under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2011. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the City.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in
OMB Circular A-133, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types
of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in the prior years. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available.

L I S T S S
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified?

Unqualified
yes X no
yes X none reported
yes X no

yes X no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance

for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,

Section 510(a)?

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA Number(s)
20.205
81.128

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

yes X none reported
Unqualified
X yes no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Highway Planning & Construction

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant Program

$300,000

Yes
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
U.S. Department of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Grant CFDA #81.128

2011-1 - Reporting — Immaterial Noncompliance

Criteria: According to the grant agreement between the City of Troy and the U.S. Department
of Energy, Labor & Economic Growth, Federal Financial Reports, Progress Reports
and ARRA Section 1512 reports are required to be submitted each quarter to the U.S.
Department of Energy within 75 days after quarter-end.

Condition:There were four instances where the City submitted their reports late to the U.S.
Department of Energy. One instance was with the Federal Financial Report, two
instances were with the Progress Reports and one instance was with the ARRA
Section 1512 reports.

Cause: The City had a change in the personnel of who was responsible for submitting the
reports and they were unaware of the timing of which these reports were required to
be submitted to the U.S. Department of Energy.

Effect: As a result of this condition, the City did not fully comply with the reporting
requirements of the grant.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City carefully review each grant agreement and compliance
supplement (where applicable) to determine the applicable compliance requirements,
and develop internal controls to ensure they are met.

View of

Responsible

Officials: The City will continue to work towards developing and maintaining internal controls
over compliance to ensure that they are in compliance with all federal program
requirements going forward.
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THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION IV - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None noted
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P Rehmann

Troy, MI 48084
Ph: 248.952.5000
Fx: 248.952.5750
www.rehmann.com

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
UNDER SAS NO. 114

December 1, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan (the “City”) for the year
ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2011. Professional
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of
America and OMB Circular A-133

As stated in our engagement letter dated February 23, 2011, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. We also considered internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. Also, in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the City’s compliance with those
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Troy, Michigan

December 1, 2011

Page 2

requirements. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a
legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our engagement letter and our meeting about planning matters on September 26, 2011.

Significant Results of the Audit

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Other than the adoption of
GASB Statement No. 54, which is described in Note 1 of the financial statements, no other new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant
transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when
the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

= Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on
the length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit
in the future.

= Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current
hourly rates and policies regarding payment of sick and vacation banks.

= Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is
based on past experience and future expectation for collection of various account
balances.
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= Management’s estimate of the insurance claims incurred but not reported is based on
information provided by the entity’s third party administrators and subsequent claims
activity.

* The assumptions used in the actuarial valuations of the employee retirement system
pension plan, incentive plan for volunteer firefighters and the retiree health care trust
fund plan (other post-employment benefits) are based on historical trends and
industry standards.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated December 1, 2011.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
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In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Entity’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional

relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

R



CITY OF TROY
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Troy (the “City”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the ’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such
deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

Other Matters

Review and Approval of Journal Entries

Currently, there is no procedure in place at the City for reviewing and approving journal entries
which are being made by the accountants. Each accountant has the access to post entries into the
general ledger without adequate review and approval over the journal entry. We recommend that the
City implement procedures to ensure that journal entries are being reviewed and approved prior to
posting into the general ledger.

Cash Management

During the fiscal year 2011, the City did not request the reimbursement of funds for expenditures
related to the Highway Planning and Construction grants with the Michigan Department of
Transportation. By waiting to request all funds after year-end, the City lost out on potential interest
revenue which would have been received by having more cash in the bank. All requests for
reimbursement were done in October 2011, subsequent to year-end. We recommend that the City

request reimbursement of funds throughout the year as expenses are incurred.
EE S S
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500 W. Blg Beaver
Troy, Ml 48024 The City of Tomorrow...
(248) 524-2300

December 1, 2011

Rehmann Robson
P.O. Box 2025
Saginaw, MI 48605

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Troy,
Michigan as of June 30, 2011 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing opinions as to
whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Troy, Michigan and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are
responsible for the fair presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We are also responsible for
adopting sound accounting policies, establishing and maintaining effective internal control, and
preventing and detecting fraud.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 1, 2011, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all properly classified
funds and other financial information of the primary government and all component units
required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting

entity.
2. We have made available to you all—
a. Financial records and related data and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any,
received from funding sources.
b. Minutes of the meetings of City Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.
3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with,

or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

4. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements or the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

5. We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been
posted.
6. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls

to prevent and detect fraud.

www troymi.gov
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
¢ Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received
in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance
audits, or other studies related to the objectives and whether related recommendations have been

implemented.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
our planned corrective actions, for the report.

The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification
of assets, liabilities, or equity.

The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related party transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties.

For the purposes of this letter, related parties mean members of the governing body;
board members; administrative officials; immediate families of administrative officials,
board members, and members of the governing body; and any companies affiliated with
or owned by such individuals.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the is contingently liable.

c. All accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including the
key factors and significant assumptions underlying those estimates and measurements.
We believe the estimates and measurements are reasonable in the circumstances,
consistently applied, and adequately disclosed.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have
identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts, or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no—
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23:

24.

25,

a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts
and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects
should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording
a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion
and must be disclosed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements).

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed
by generally accepted accounting principles (GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements).

d. Restrictions, commitments, or assignments of fund equity that were not properly
authorized and approved.

We have designated a competent management-level individual to oversee your services and have
made all management decisions and performed all management functions. We have reviewed,
approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations n adopting, approving, and amending
budgets.

The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity
interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation
as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are
particularly important to financial statement users.

Net asset components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted)
and fund balance reserves and designations are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.
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26.

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent

fund principal.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk, and investments are properly
valued.

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The
required supplementary information is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and
the methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the
measurement and presentation of the RSI.

With respect to federal award programs:

a. We are responsible for understanding and complying with and have complied with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations including requirements relating to preparation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.

b. We have prepared the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, and have identified and disclosed in the schedule, expenditures
made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in the form of
grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including
donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food
commodities, direct appropriations, and other assistance.

c We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards (SEFA) in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 §310.b and
we believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance
with the Circular. The methods of measurement and presentation of the SEFA have not
changed from those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant
assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the
SEFA.

d. If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary
information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the
auditor’s report thereon.

e. We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related
activities subject to OMB Circular A-133.

f. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with in all
material respects, the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts
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and grant agreements related to each of our federal programs and have identified and
disclosed to you the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts
and grant agreements that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and
maintained, effective internal control over compliance requirements applicable to federal
programs that provides reasonable assurance that we are managing our federal awards in
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements
that could have a material effect on our federal programs. We believe the internal control
system is adequate and is functioning as intended. Also, no changes have been made in
internal control over compliance or other factors to the date of this letter that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action taken with regard to
control deficiencies reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

We have made available to you all contracts and grant agreements (including
amendments, if any) and any other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through
entities relating to major federal programs.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific
programs as a major program.

We have complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements, including
when applicable, those set forth in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement,
relating to federal awards and have identified and disclosed to you all amounts
questioned and any known noncompliance with the requirements of federal awards,
including those resulting from other audits or program reviews.

We have disclosed any communications from grantors and pass-through entities
concerning possible noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements,
including communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance
audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for
previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly
relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and
corrective actions taken up to the date of the auditor’s report.

Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant
guidelines in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Tribal
Governments, and OMB’s Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments.

We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have
varying interpretations.

We have made available to you all documentation related to the compliance
requirements, including information related to federal program financial reports and
claims for advances and reimbursements.
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Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the financial statements have been

prepared.
We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the
reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-
through entity, as applicable.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit
findings to include all findings required to be included by OMB Circular A-133 and we
have provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit
findings by federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all
management decisions.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data
Collection Form as required by OMB Circular A-133.

We are responsible for preparing and implementing a corrective action plan for each
audit finding.

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned

ﬁnan01a1 tatements or % the schedule of findings and questioned costs.
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Date: November 29, 2011
To: John Szerlag, City Manager L
1
v
From: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police

Captain Gerard Scherlinck(,
Sergeant George Zielinski QZ/

Subject: Application for Transfer of SDD License to Rite Aid of Michigan

Background

Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. requests to Transfer Ownership of escrowed 2011 SDD license from Perry
Drug Stores, Inc.; Transfer location from 805 E. Big Beaver, Troy, Ml 48084, Oakland County to
1981 W. South Blvd., Troy, Ml 48098, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction with existing 2011
SDM license {MLCC Req. #625424}.

Attorney John Carlin was present to answer questions from the Liquor Advisory Committee on
November 14, 2011. Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that the licensee is requesting this
transfer in order to sell packaged liquor. Interior shelving will be realigned to meet the ordinance
requirements

The Police Department conducted an investigation into this application. The investigation did not
reveal any issues that would cause us to recommend against this request based upon the guidelines
outlined by the MLCC and the Troy City Ordinance Chapter 101. In addition, the Liquor Advisory
Committee unanimously approved the request.

The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control
Commission Rules.

Recommendation

Recommend approval of the request for Transfer of SDD License to Rite Aid of Michigan.

Prepared by: Jeff Oberski
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LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2011

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday,
November 14, 2011 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500
West Big Beaver Road. Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at

6:58 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman
W. Stan Godlewski
Patrick C. Hall
David S. Ogg
Timothy P. Payne
Bohdan L. Ukrainec

ABSENT: Andrew Kaltsounis

ALSO PRESENT: Sergeant George Zielinski
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney
Jesse Pappas, Student Representative
EunJoo Scherlinck, Student Representative
Pat Gladysz

Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Kaltsounis

Resolution #.C2011-11-33
Moved by Hall
Seconded by Payne

RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Kaltsounis at the Liquor
Advisory Committee meeting of November 14, 2011 be EXCUSED.

Yes: 6
No: 0
Absent: Kaltsounis

Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 10, 2011 Meeting

Resolution #L.C2011-11-34
Moved by Hall
Seconded by Payne

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 10, 2011 meeting of the Liquor
Advisory Committee be APPROVED.
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LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2011

Yes: 6
No: 0
Absent: Kaltsounis

Agenda Items

1. Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. requests to Transfer Ownership of escrowed
2011 SDD license from Perry Drug Stores, Inc.; Transfer location from 805
E. Big Beaver, Troy, Ml 48084, Oakland County to 1981 W. South Bivd.,
Troy, Ml 48098, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction with existing
2011 SDM license {MLCC Req. #625424}.

Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney John Carlin. Mr.
Carlin explained to the Committee that the licensee is requesting this transfer in
order to sell packaged liquor. Interior shelving will be realigned to meet the
ordinance requirements.

Sergeant Zielinski stated that all inspections have been approved.

Resolution #.C2011-11-35
Moved by Hall
Seconded by Ukrainec

RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of
Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of escrowed 2011 SDD license
from Perry Drug Stores, Inc.; Transfer location from 805 E. Big Beaver, Troy, Mi
48084, Oakland County to 1981 W. South Blvd., Troy, Ml 48098, Oakland County,
to be held in conjunction with existing 2011 SDM license be APPROVED.

Yes: 6
No: 0
Absent: Kaltsounis

Sergeant Zielinski informed the Committee that additional tips were received that
Super City Smoker’s Express was selling alcohol to minors. The Directed Patrol
Unit of the Police Department observed minors enter the store and exit with
alcohol on two consecutive dates. The owner of the store and the two minors
received citations.

Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee that the licensee of this
establishment was granted an adjournment of his hearing in connection with three
violations on July 21, 2011. Ms. Lancaster stated that the MLCC would receive an
accelerated notification of the most recent violations.
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LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES — DRAFT NOVEMBER 14, 2011

Mr. Ukrainec requested a monthly update regarding this business. Ms. Lancaster
agreed to this request.

Mr. Ogg stated that the beer delivery ads for Hot Rock Pizza were still appearing
in local papers. Sergeant Zielinski stated that he would get an update from Officer
Feld on this matter.

Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee that the catering license
for the Troy Community Center was awarded to Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore
Catering.

The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m.

Max K. Ehlert, Chairman

Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary |l
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AGREEMENT REGARDING LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST

Re: Applicant: Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. Date: October 18, 2011

Address: 1981 W. South Rlvd Type of License/s: SDD
City/State/Zip: Troy, MI 48098 MLCC Request ID: 625424

This Agreement, made by and between the CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN, a municipal corporation, with offices located at 500
W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 48084, hereinafter known as THE CITY, and the Applicant as indicated above,
hereinafter known as APPLICANT.

1. The City Council of the City of Troy, for and in consideration of the following covenants and conditions, agrees to
recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission Approval of the requested Liquor License to be located as
indicated above in Troy Michigan.

2. In consideration of the City of Troy’s recommendation for approval of the request, the applicant hereby agrees that:

(a) It has read and is aware of the provisions of City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter No. 67, Chapter No. 68,
Chapter No. 98 and Chapter No. 101, and agrees that it shall be deemed to have knowledge of any
subsequent amendments to said Chapters which may become effective during the term of this agreement.

(b) It agrees to observe and comply with all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations or resolutions of the
United States government, State of Michigan, and the City of Troy, or any department or agency of the
governmental entities, as well as the rules and regulations of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission as
they pertain to the operation of a liquor licensed business in the City of Troy.

(c) It agrees to immediately require all employees who serve/sell alcohol to attend a recognized alcohol
awareness program, and forward the names of each certified employee to the Troy Police Department.
The alcohol awareness program must either be recognized by the Troy Police Department (i.e.
TIPS, TAMS), or the program must be reviewed by the Troy Police Department to insure that the program is
comparable to the recognized programs.

3. Applicant agrees that the recommendation for Approval agreed upon by the City Council is not a property right and is
approved upon the express and continuing condition that no violation as set forth in paragraph 2 of this agreement shall
occur.

4. Applicant agrees that the recommendation for Approval agreed upon by the City Council is approved upon the express
and continuing condition that the physical characteristics (including but not limited to the inside layout, building design
and engineering, seating capacity, parking space allocations, fire exits, and other physical attributes); and also the
nature and type of business intended to be conducted remain virtually the same.

5. Applicant agrees that upon such violation, after full investigation and an opportunity for said applicant to be heard, upon
a finding by the City Council that a violation as set forth in paragraph 2 of this agreement has occurred, the City Council
shall have just cause for revocation of said recommendation for approval.

| LICENSEE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE |
Witnesses: (\4,‘*/’\/ Y Gbimedo., By: MM/Z/—*"” ]
. - Michael J. Brown, Assistant Secretary
242 Z. of Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this I 3'&}’” day of @Cﬂszf 20 )
Notary Public, LovivgdSe County, Ml
Acting in the County of Eatpa,, IRENE MCGLINCHEY
My commission expires: oY -6 2 NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF Wil
g - A COUNTY OF LIVINGSTON
Cece Ve Gl sk o MY COMMISSION EXPIRES Nov 4, 2012
G #CTHRGHHECUNTY OF Cedhgp
| CITY OF TROY |
Witnesses: By:
Louise Schilling, Mayor
By:
M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of 20
Notary Public, County, Ml

Acting in the County of Oakland
My commission expires:




Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (MLCC)
7150 Harris Drive, P.O. Box 30005
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7505

POLICE INVESTIGATION REPORT

[Authorized by MCL 436.1217 and R 436.1105; MAC]

FOR MLCC USE ONLY
Request ID # __625424

Business ID# 132003

Please conduct your investigation as soon as possible, complete all four sections of this report and return the

completed report and fingerprint cards to the MLCC.

PRIVATE CHAIN

LICENSEE/APPLICANT NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS AND LICENSING REQUEST:

RITE AID OF MICHIGAN, INC., REQUESTS TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF ESCROWED 2011 SDD LICENSE FROM
PERRY DRUG STORES, INC.; TRANSFER LOCATION FROM 805 E. BIG BEAVER, TROY, Ml 48084, OAKLAND COUNTY
TO 1981 W. SOUTH, TROY, MI 48098, OAKLAND COUNTY, TO BE HELD IN CONJUNCTION WITH EXISTING 2011 SDM

LICENSE. _
[Section 1. APPLICANT INFORMATION |
APPLICANT #1: APPLICANT #2:

CHAIN APPLICANT

DATE FINGERPRINTED: (NO FINGERPRINTS REQUIRED)

DATE FINGERPRINTED:

DATE OF BIRTH:

Is the applicant a U.S. Citizen: O Yes O No*

*Does the applicant have permanent Resident Alien status?
OYes [No*

*Does the applicant have a Visa? Enter status:

DATE OF BIRTH:

Is the applicant a U.S. Citizen: O Yes O No*

*Does the applicant have permanent Resident Alien status?
OvYes [ONo*

*Does the applicant have a Visa? Enter status:

[ **Attach the fingerprint card and $30.00 for each card and mail to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission**

ARREST RECORD: [ Felony [0 Misdemeanor

Enter record of all arrests and convictions (Attach a signed and
dated sheet if more space is needed)

ARREST RECORD: [ Felony [ Misdemeanor
Enter record of all arrests and convictions (Attach a signed and dated
sheet if more space is needed)

| Section 2.

INVESTIGATION OF BUSINESS AND ADDRESS TO BE LICENSED

]

Does applicant intend to have dancing, entertainment, topless activity, or extended hours permit?

O No [ Yes, complete LC-1636

Are motor vehicle fuel pumps at or directly adjacent to the establishment?

O No 0O Yes, explain relationship:

| Section 3.

LOCAL AND STATE CODES AND ORDINANCES, AND GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

Will the applicant’s proposed location meet all appropriate state and local building, plumbing, zoning, fire, sanitation and health laws

and ordinances, if this license is granted? [ Yes

[0 No If No, indicate which state and local ordinances the location does not

meet:  [] Building [J Plumbing [] Zoning [] Fire [] Sanitation [] Health
[Section 4. RECOMMENDATION |
1. Is this applicant qualified to conduct this business if licensed? [ Yes O No*
2. Should the MLCC grant this request? O Yes [J No*

*If any of the above questions were answered No, you must state your reasons for MLCC consideration of this recommendation
on the back of this form or on an attached signed and dated sheet.

3. Is this recommendation subject to final inspection to determine that the proposed location meets all

building, plumbing, zoning, fire, sanitation and health laws and ordinances?

4. Is this recommendation subject to any other conditions?

If Yes, list the conditions below or on an attached signed and dated sheet if more space is needed

OYes [ONo
OYves [ONo
Signature (Sheriff or Chief of Police) Date

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT

LC-1800 (Rev. 08/2008)

Authority: MCL 436.1217 and R 436.1105; MAC
Completion: Mandatory

Penalty: No License

The Department of Labor & Economic Growth will not discriminate against any individual or group because of race, sex, religion, age,
national origin, color, marital status, disability, or political beliefs. If you need help with reading, writing, hearing, etc., under the Americans
with Disabilities Act, you may make your needs known to this agency.




Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (MLCC)

7150 Harris Drive, P.O. Box 30005
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7505

POLICE INVESTIGATION REQUEST

[Authorized by MCL 436.1201(4)]

OCTOBER 4, 2011

! |
TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT oA 107 |1~ a-ol
CHIEF OF POLICE Receive
500 WEST BIG BEAVER ROAD
TROY, MI 48084-5285

REQUEST ID# 625424

Applicant:  RITE AID OF MICHIGAN, INC., REQUESTS TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF ESCROWED 2011 SDD
LICENSE FROM PERRY DRUG STORES, INC.; TRANSFER LOCATION FROM 805 E. BIG BEAVER, TROY, MI 48084,
OAKLAND COUNTY TO 1981 W. SOUTH, TROY, MI 48098, OAKLAND COUNTY, TO BE HELD IN CONJUNCTION
WITH EXISTING 2011 SDM LICENSE.

CONTACT: MICHAEL J. BROWN, ESQ., (CARLIN EDWARDS BROWN PLLC), 6017 W. ST. JOE HIGHWAY, SUITE
202, LANSING, MI 48917, PHONE: (517) 321-4616, FAX: (517) 321-4642.

Please make an investigation of the application. If you do not believe that the applicants are qualified
for licensing, give your reasons in detail. Complete the Police Inspection Report on Liquor License
Request, LC-1800, or for Detroit police, the Detroit Police Investigation of License Request, LC-1802.
If there is not enough room on the front of the form, you may use the back.

Forward your report, along with fingerprint cards (if requested) and $30.00 for each card to the
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. **Please ensure that section D of the card has been

completed prior to submission. **

If you have any questions, please contact Unit 3 of the Retail Licensing Division at (517) 636-0204.

rib

kﬁ;ggf{’ﬁé'_ofégﬂ)zmm) LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids, services and other reasonable

Comp,e‘yian: Mandatory accommodations are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. Michigan Liquor Control

Penalty: No License Commission 7150 Harris Drive * P.O. Box 30005 * Lansing, Michigan 48909-7505 www.michigan.gov/Icc
* (517) 322-1345 Lansing Office
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

November 30, 2011

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM: Tom Darling, Interim Director of Finance and Administrative Services
Sandra Kasparek, City Treasurer

SUBJECT: City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts

The current investment policy was initially approved in November, 1999 and each year thereafter with
the stipulation that it be reviewed and approved annually by City Council. The current policy has
served us well during the past several years and is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended.

| would also like to update our resolution authorizing the establishment of investment accounts at the
following institutions: Ambassador Funds, Bank of America; Charter One; Citizens Bank; First
Michigan Bank; Comerica; Fifth Third Bancorp; Flagstar Bank; Huntington Bancshares; JP Morgan
Chase & Co.; Merrill Lynch; Michigan Class-MBIA; Morgan Stanley Smith Barney; PNC Financial
Services; Private Bancorp; and TCF National Bank.

This policy is established in order to provide for the safety and diversification of investment accounts.

The investment policy is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended.

TD/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\12.05.11 — Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts
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CITY OF TROY INVESTMENT POLICY
To Comply with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended

Purpose: Itis the policy of the City of Troy to invest its funds in a manner which will provide
the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow
needs of the City and comply with all State statutes governing the investment of public funds.

Scope: This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City. These assets are
accounted for in the various funds of the City and include the general fund, special revenue
funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds (unless bond ordinances and resolutions
are more restrictive), enterprise funds, internal service funds, trust and agency funds, and any
new fund established by the City.

Objectives: The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall
be:

Safety — Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of
capital in the overall portfolio.

Diversification — The investments will be diversified by security type and institution in
order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated
from the remainder of the portfolio.

Liquidity — The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.

Return on Investment — The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of
obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic cycles, taking into
account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the
portfolio.

Delegation of Authority to Make Investments: Authority to manage the investment
program is derived from the following: City of Troy City Council’s most current resolution
establishing investment accounts (2010-11- 246 - | - 4). Management responsibility for the
investment program is hereby delegated to the City of Treasurer who shall establish written
procedures and internal controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with
this investment policy. Procedures should include references to safekeeping, cash purchase
or delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer
agreements, collateral/depository agreements and banking service contracts. No person may
engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the
procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls. The Investment Policy shall
be reviewed and approved by the City Council annually.

2



List of Authorized Investments: The Treasurer is limited to investments authorized by Act
20 of 1943, as amended, and may invest in the following:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)
(h)

(i)

Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States.

Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository of a
financial institution. Authorized depositories shall be designated by the City of
Troy City Council.

Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase with the highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services and that matures not
more than 270 days after the date of purchase.

Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in (a).

Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks.

Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of
purchase are rated investment grade by not less than one standard rating service.
Investment pools through an interlocal agreement under the urban cooperation act
of 1967, 1987 (Ex Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512

Investment pools organized under the surplus funds investment pool act, 1982 PA
367, 129.111 to 129.118.

The investment pools organized under the local government investment pool act,
1986 PA 121, MCL 129.141 to 129.150.

Safekeeping and Custody: All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase
agreements and financial institution deposits, entered into by the Treasurer may be on a cash
basis or a delivery vs. payment basis as determined by the Treasurer. Securities may be held
by a third party custodian designated by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts
as determined by the Treasurer.

Prudence: Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

December 02, 2011

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager
SUBJECT: Resolution Recommending that the State of Michigan Require Municipalities to

Adopt the City of Troy’s Template for Transparency in Government

As requested by Council, attached is the above reference resolution for your consideration. And
please know that we are working on indicating vacation and sick pay outs, car allowance, as well as
longevity and overtime as separate elements.

C: Tom Darling, Interim Director of Administration and Financial Services
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney
Lisa Burnham, Senior Accountant
Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director

JAS/b\AGENDA ITEMS\2011112.05.11 — To M&CC Resolution Recommending that the State of Michigan Require Municipalities to Adopt the City of
Troy’s Template for Transparency in Government
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Open Troy | City of Troy, MI

DRAFT

I O Y A
Open Troy I O R

Transparency in Government

Open Troy

° Open Troy Home Welcome to the City of Troy's transparency in government site. Open Troy is a user friendly site that provides information related to City expenditures. Click
o Check Register on any of the boxes below to access details about that category of information.

o Purchasing Contracts

° Salaries and Benefits In addition under Resources on the left are links to other documents related to the City's performance and finances.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

FESENREES Check Register Purchasing Contracts Salaries and Benefits Collective Bargaining
Agreements
° Dashboard
° Budget
° PAFR
° CAFR

General operating Active purchasing contracts Salary and benefit information
expenditures

DRAFT



Check Register | City of Troy, MI
DRAFT

© Y I S S B
Open Troy I O R

Transparency in Government

Check Register

° Open Troy Home Welcome to the City of Troy Online Check Register. This site includes data from the City of Troy's General Operating Accounts Payable system for the
o Check Register current and previous fiscal years.
o Purchasing Contracts
° Salaries and Benefits Register Date: |1 1/3/2011 <
o Collective Bargaining Agreements Submit '
- Searchable by
FESENREES Date Payee Amount Void Date check date
[-1 11/3/2011 3M $4,148.68
o Dashboard
° Budget Invoice # _ Date | _Description | Amount |
o TP14190 10/7/2011  Sign Film $1,242.00|
TP14185 10/7/2011 Pavement Markings $2,440.93 ‘ .
TP14191 10/11/2011 Sign Film $465.75| Drill down to
invoice detail
[+] 11/3/2011 A & L SYSTEMS-ALL LOCATIONS $204.05
[+] 11/3/2011 ADVANCED WIRELESS TELECOM $600.00
[-1 11/3/2011 AIRGAS GREAT LAKES $8.93
| Invoice# | Date | Description |

9900381033 9/30/2011 COMM CENTER SUPPLIES-HELIUM  $8.93

DRAFT




Purchasing Contracts | City of Troy, MI

DRAFT

I O Y A
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Transparency in Government
Purchasing Contracts

° Open Troy Home Welcome to the City of Troy Online Active Contract Database.
° Check Register

° Purchasing Contracts Filter Results

° Salaries and Benefits Vendor or Bid Name: | Filter |

Collective Bargaining Agreements

. . Resolution Commencement
Resources Bid Number Bid Name Department “Number =~ Dpate
° Dashboard
o G ITB-COT 11-21 EEEIFL';*TBYRESTROOM parks and. CXT, INC. 2011-10-246-J-7  11/1/2011
o PAFR
° CAFR RFP-COT 11-13  Communication Strategy g;’f;ri‘;‘s“““'ty Marketing Associates 2011-09-209-1-6  10/18/2011
ITB-COT 11-18 Ice Melt Compounds Streets Washington Elevator Company, Inc. 2011-10-220-J-4a  10/1/2011
Click link to view ITB-COT 11-19  Tee Shirts Ezrckrse:t?gn ITA Printing 2011-09-218-J-4a  9/30/2011
contract document ASPHALT PATCHING SAGINAW ASPHALT PAVING
ITB-COT 1117 W TERi  coLD paTcH  Streets A 2011-08-202-J-4d  8/29/2011
CATERER TROY Parks and
REP-COT 1043 <o MUNITY CENTER Rocroation ENCORE CATERING 2011-05-093-1-6  8/20/2011
ITB-COT 11-Fire ;o Apparatus Fire Department Pierce Mfg C/O Halt Fire Inc. 2011-08-189 8/16/2011

Apparatus

DRAFT



Salaries and Benefits | City of Troy, MI

DRAFT
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Open Troy I O R

Transparency in Government

Salaries and Benefits

° Open Troy Home Welcome to the City of Troy Online Salary Database. This site provides salary and benefit information for the last complete calendar year. Salaries represent
o Check Register Medicare wages as reported on W2's filed with the IRS.

o Purchasing Contracts

° Salaries and Benefits Troy offers a self-funded medical insurance plan. Where employees are enrolled in that plan noted with an “SF.” The actual cost of an employee’s self-funded
° Collective Bargaining Agreements  benefits vary by employee based upon individual claims filed on behalf of the employee and/or his/her dependents. Accordingly, due to privacy concerns,

these costs are not reported on an individual employee basis. The total cost for the self funded medical plan from January 1, 2010, through December 31,
Resources 2010, was $XXXXXXX.

gRashboard Position: |
° Budget
o PAFR Search
° CAFR Position . Medicare . . . . ... Total Compensation
Number Department “Wages FICA Retirement Health/Vision Dental Life Disability and Benefits
MSE-F
479320003  Equipment STS $53,701.95 $4,108.20 $9,601.06  $17,317.08 $1,397.50 $182.91 $301.82 $86,610.52
Operator I
MSE-F
479320004  Equipment STS $55,012.33 $4,208.44 $9,386.98 $15,451.2 $1,397.50 $180.30 $300.36 $85,937.11
Operator Il
MSE-F
479320005 Equipment STS $52,839.33 $4,042.21 $10,146.69 $15,451.2 $1,397.50 $182.91 $301.82 $84,361.66
Operator I

DRAFT



Collective Bargaining Agreements | City of Troy, MI D R A FT
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Open Troy I O R

Transparency in Government

Collective Bargaining Agreements

Open Troy Home Welcome to the City of Troy Collective Bargaining Agreements site. Below you will find pdf copies of all current Collective Bargaining Agreements. The period
Check Register covered by each agreement can be found on the cover page of the respective document.

American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)
Clerical and Non-Sworn Police Personnel - Michigan Association of Police(MAP)
Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA)

Salaries and Benefits
Collective Bargaining Agreements

°
°
o Purchasing Contracts
°
°

Resources Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA)
Troy Fire Staff Officers Association (TFSOA)
° Dashboard Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) (
° Budget
o PAFR
o CAFR Click link to view

agreement

DRAFT
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CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 28, 2011

Council Member Fleming performed the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was
given.

A. CALL TO ORDER:

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 28, 2011, at City Hall,
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.

B. ROLL CALL:

Mayor Janice Daniels
Jim Campbell

Wade Fleming

Dave Henderson
Maureen McGinnis
Dane Slater

Doug Tietz

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Janice Daniels presented a proclamation to Pam
Brady recognizing the America Recycles 2011 “It All Comes Back to You” program.
b) Robin Beltramini presented a report from the NLC Congress of Cities and Exposition

CARRYOVER ITEMS:

D-1 No Carryover Items

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
E-1 No Public Hearings

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #25 — Video
and Audio Presentations

Resolution #2011-11-269
Moved by Fleming
Seconded by Henderson

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
Rule #25 - Video and Audio Presentations to permit David Wisz to give a presentation on the
Transit Center.

Yes: Daniels, Fleming, Henderson
No: Campbell, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz

MOTION FAILED
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CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft

November 28, 2011

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Wilson, Ron

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Bloomingdale, Bruce

Spoke about discussion from the Study Session held on November 21
2011.

Arking, Robert,

Spoke about low taxes and high services in Troy.

Hutson, Michael

Spoke about the Troy Master Plan in support of the Transit Facility.

Peters, Richard

Spoke about various topics.

Wengrow, Irv

Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Brake, Dan

Spoke on Iltem N-6.

Bhatt, Kumar

Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Reinhardt, Marvin

Spoke about various topics.

Tagle, John Spoke about the Transit Facility.
Hodges, Michele Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.
Wells, John Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Savage, James

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Hendrickson, Rhonda

Spoke about Item |-5 and 7-day operation of the Library.

Grix, E. James

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Kajma, Linda Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Wisz, David Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.
Rosenbaum, Richard Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.
Baxi, Minesh Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Abrahim, Edna

Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Schepke, Gordon

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Finley, Derek

Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

Cherasaro, Nicholas

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Burke, Thomas

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Johansson, Steve

Spoke in opposition of the Transit Facility.

Kotubey, Jordan

Spoke in support of the Transit Facility.

The meeting RECESSED at 9:53 PM.

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:01 PM.

G. RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT

POSTPONED ITEMS:

H-1 No Postponed Items

} REGULAR BUSINESS:

-1 Board and Committee Appointments: City Council Appointments — Parks &
Recreation Board, Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)
General Assembly



http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 28, 2011

b) City Council Appointments

Resolution #2011-11-270
Moved by Fleming
Seconded by McGinnis

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the
Boards as indicated:

Parks & Recreation Board
Appointed by Council — (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term

Aditya Yelamanchi Student Representative Term Expires 7/31/2012
Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

Resolution #2011-11-271
Moved by McGinnis
Seconded by Fleming

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the
Boards as indicated:

Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) General Assembly
Appointed by Council (1-Delgate & 1-Alternate) Appointment Every Odd Year Election

James Campbell Delegate Term Expires 11/11/2013
Mark F. Miller Alternate  Term Expires 11/11/2013
Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

[-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled

-3 Request for Closed Session — No Closed Session Requested

I-4 Contract Amendment — Mowing and Landscape Maintenance Services

Resolution #2011-11-272
Moved by McGinnis
Seconded by Campbell




CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 28, 2011

WHEREAS, On March 15, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract for Mowing
and Landscape Maintenance Services for municipal grounds and abandoned properties with an
option to renew for two additional years to the low total bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape,
Inc. for an estimated annual cost of $229,328.00 expiring December 31, 2012 (Resolution
#2010-03-071); and

WHEREAS, It's the City’s objective to have the irrigated athletic fields mowed frequently so the
turf does not exceed a growth rate of one (1) inch between mowing schedules, which is
essential in order to minimize liability and allow for consistent and ongoing athletic play;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the 2012 contract with
Green Meadows Lawnscape Inc to provide for more frequent mowing on irrigated athletic fields
as allowed in the original bid documents, for an additional $41,000.00 at unit prices as
tabulated on March 1, 2010.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS mowing services
rendered during the 2011 season over approved amounts for irrigated athletic fields totaling an
estimated $41,000.00.

Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

I-5 Possible Changes of Hours of Operation of the Troy Public Library So As to Keep
It Open on Saturday

Resolution to Amend Item |-5 Possible Changes of Hours of Operation of the Troy Public
Library So As to Keep It Open on Saturday to Recommend ltem d) Proposed Resolution
for Seven-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library Effective January 7, 2012

d) Proposed Resolution for Seven-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library

Moved by Daniels
Seconded by Henderson

WHEREAS, The 2011/12 Troy Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year
Budget were approved on September 26, 2011, and provide for Library service Monday
through Friday, and Sunday; and

WHEREAS, A seven-day operation of Troy Public Library will expend more than the dedicated
millage revenue will generate from Fiscal Year 2012/13 through the life of the millage and
would create a financial deficit in the Library Fund Balance starting with Fiscal Year 2012/13;
and

WHEREAS, An annual subsidy from the General Fund is necessary to prevent a deficit in the
Library Fund Balance from Fiscal Year 2012/13 through the life of the millage.
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THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the 2011/12 Troy
Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year Budget to reflect an additional
$340,000 in expenditures per year.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES a budget
amendment to reflect an annual subsidy from the General Fund in an amount to eliminate a
deficit position in the Library Fund currently estimated to be $1,330,688 through the life of the
Library millage.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to
operate the Troy Public Library seven days per week, effective January 7, 2012.

Vote on Resolution to Substitute ltem 1-5 d) Proposed Resolution for Seven-Day
Operation of the Troy Public Library Effective January 7, 2012 with Item 1-5 b) Proposed
Resolution for Six-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library — Closure Day Friday

Resolution #2011-11-
Moved by Slater
Seconded by Campbell

RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Item I-5 d) Proposed Resolution for Seven-Day
Operation of the Troy Public Library Effective January 7, 2011 be SUBSTITUTED with the
following:

b) Proposed Resolution for Six-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library
— Closure Day Friday

WHEREAS, The 2011/12 Troy Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library
3-Year Budget were approved on September 26, 2011, and provide for Library
service Monday through Friday, and Sunday.

WHEREAS, In order to amend Library service days to include Saturday and
close on Friday, an amendment of both budgets is required.

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the 2011/12 Troy Public
Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year Budget to reflect an additional
$35,000 in expenditures per year.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City
Management to continue six-day operation of the Troy Public Library with the
day of closure being Friday effective the week of January 1, 2012.

Yes: Slater, Campbell, Fleming, McGinnis
No: Tietz, Daniels, Henderson

MOTION PASSED

Vote on Resolution I-5 b) Proposed Resolution for Six-Day Operation of the Troy Public
Library — Closure Day Friday

-5-
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Resolution #2011-11-
Moved by Slater
Seconded by Campbell

b) Proposed Resolution for Six-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library — Closure
Day Friday

WHEREAS, The 2011/12 Troy Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year
Budget were approved on September 26, 2011, and provide for Library service Monday
through Friday, and Sunday.

WHEREAS, In order to amend Library service days to include Saturday and close on Friday,
an amendment of both budgets is required.

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the 2011/12 Troy Public Library Budget
and the Troy Public Library 3-Year Budget to reflect an additional $35,000 in expenditures per
year.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to
continue six-day operation of the Troy Public Library with the day of closure being Friday
effective the week of January 1, 2012.

Yes: Tietz, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater
No: Daniels

MOTION CARRIED

CC Never Voted on Resolution Item I-5 d) below

Vote on Original Amended Resolution for Item |-5 Possible Changes of Hours of
Operation of the Troy Public Library So As to Keep It Open on Saturday Effective
January 7, 2012

d) Proposed Resolution for Seven-Day Operation of the Troy Public Library

Resolution #2011-11-
Moved by Daniels
Seconded by Henderson

WHEREAS, The 2011/12 Troy Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year
Budget were approved on September 26, 2011, and provide for Library service Monday
through Friday, and Sunday; and

WHEREAS, A seven-day operation of Troy Public Library will expend more than the dedicated
millage revenue will generate from Fiscal Year 2012/13 through the life of the millage and

-6 -
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would create a financial deficit in the Library Fund Balance starting with Fiscal Year 2012/13;
and

WHEREAS, An annual subsidy from the General Fund is necessary to prevent a deficit in the
Library Fund Balance from Fiscal Year 2012/13 through the life of the millage.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the 2011/12 Troy
Public Library Budget and the Troy Public Library 3-Year Budget to reflect an additional
$340,000 in expenditures per year.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES a budget
amendment to reflect an annual subsidy from the General Fund in an amount to eliminate a
deficit position in the Library Fund currently estimated to be $1,330,688 through the life of the
Library millage.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to
operate the Troy Public Library seven days per week, effective January 7, 2012.

Yes:
No:

MOTION

J.  CONSENT AGENDA:

J-la Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion

Resolution #2011-11-
Moved by Fleming
Seconded by McGinnis

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as
presented.

Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

J-1b Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
Resolution #2011-11-

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted:
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a) Regular City Council Meeting of November 21, 2011

J-3  Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
Resolution #2011-11-

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy
Proclamation: American Recycles 2010 “It All Comes Back to You.”

J-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Proposed

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at
some future point in time): None Submitted

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:

Iltems Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for
Placement on the Agenda

L-1 No Council Referrals Submitted

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS

M-1 No Council Comments Advanced

Council Member Tietz will be holding his first “office hours” on Thursday, December 8, 2011 at
7:00 PM at the Troy Community Center.

Council Member Fleming and Council Member Slater commented on N-5 Open Troy.

Mayor Daniels commented on Item N-5 Open Troy and requested City Staff ltem N-7 from the
November 22, 2010 City Council Meeting as the example.

N. REPORTS

N-1  Minutes — Boards and Committees:
a) Traffic Committee-Final-October 19, 2011
Noted and Filed

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted
Noted and Filed

N-3 Letters of Appreciation:
a) Letter of Appreciation from David Miros to Chief Mayer Regarding Citizens’ Police
Academy
Noted and Filed

-8-
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N-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
Noted and Filed

N-5 Open Troy
Noted and Filed

N-6 Total Wages and Employees for the City of Troy
Noted and Filed

N-7  Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility — Estimated Project Costs
Noted and Filed

O. STUDY ITEMS

O-1 No Study Items Presented

P. CLOSED SESSION:

P-1 No Closed Session Requested

Q. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:29 PM.

Mayor Janice Daniels

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC
City Clerk
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City,,
TI'()y CiTY COuUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Date: November 18, 2011
To: John Szerlag, City Manager
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative

Subject: Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Water Main Easement and Acceptance of a
Permanent Water Main Easement — Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018, Sunset Plaza Shopping
Center, LLC

Background

As part of a redevelopment project located in the Sunset Plaza Shopping Center (CVS Pharmacy) located in
Section 10 on the north side of Long Lake Road, the Engineering Department received plans to redesign a
portion of the water main to accommodate a reconfiguration of the existing facility.

The City Engineering department has reviewed all proposed plans and has no objection to the abandonment
of part of the existing water main easement previously granted to the City and recorded with Oakland County
Register of Deeds in Liber 15191, Page 262.

In its place, the Engineering department has received a new water main easement granted by Sunset Plaza
Shopping Center, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018 to the City of Troy.

Recommendations

Staff recommends that City Council approve the request for abandonment of a portion of an existing water
main easement by way of a quit claim deed to the current property owner. In addition, staff recommends that
City Council accept the attached easement, consistent with our policy of accepting easements for
development and improvement purposes.

LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCOUNCIL\SunsetPlazaEsmtAbandon11-18-11.doc
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QUIT CLAIM DEED

Sidwell # 88-20-10-351-018 (part of)
Resolution #

The Granfor{s), The CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, Grantor, whose address is 500 West Big
Beaver, Troy, Ml 48084 quit claims to SUNSET PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, Grantee, whose address is 89 East Long Lake Road, Troy, Ml 48085, the following described premises
situated in the City of Troy, County of Oakland and State of Michigan, a portion of which was previously recorded in
L15191, P262:

SEE EXHIBIT *A" ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART OF

For the sum of One Dollar ($ 1.00)

Dated this day of , 2011,
CITY OF TROY
a Michigan municipal corporation
By :
¥ Janice L. Danlels, Mayor
By
* M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk
STATE OF MICHIGAN)
COUNTY OFOAKLAND)
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 2011, by Janice

L. Baniels, Maycr and M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk of The City of Troy, a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of
the municipal corporation.

*

Notary Public, ‘ County, M|
My commission expires:
Acting in County, Ml

County Treasurer's Certificate City Treasurer's Certificate
When recorded return to: Send subsequent tax bills to: Drafted by:
City Clerk Grantee Larysa Figol
City of Troy City of Troy
500 West Big Beaver 500 West Big Beaver
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, Ml 48084

Tax Parcel # 88-20-10-351-018 Recording Fee Transfer Tax __
EXENPT FROM COUNTY & STATE REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX UNDER MSA7 456 (26} {h) {g) & 7.456 (5 (h) (i)

*TYPE OR PRINT NAMES UNDER SIGNATURES



EXHIBIT "A"

SKETCH OF RELEASE OF EASEMENT
AND PROPOSED NEW EASEMENT

GAL DESCRIPTION
EXISTING WATER MAIN EASEMENT TO BE RELEASED

A release of g portion of a 12 foot wide easement for the construction, operation,
maintenance and repair of a water main over land in the Southwest 1/4 of Section
10, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, the
centerline of which is mare particulorly described gs: Commencing at the Southwest
corner of Section 10;

thence along the South section line of said Section 10, N88°50'57"E, 684.28 feet;
thence N01°24'41"W, 65.00 to q point on the centerline of an existing 12 foot wide
water main easement as recorded in Liber 15191, Pages 262—-264 of Oaklard County
Records;

thence along said centertine North 01°17'52"W, 167.31 feet to the Point of Branching
"A" as described in Addendum "A" of said existing easement;

thence from said Point of Branching along said existing centerline S88°41'01"w, 18.71
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING of the centerline of the portion of the existing 12
foot wide water main edsement to be released:

thence $88°41'01"W, 160.27 along said centerline, to a point on the centerline of the
aforementioned existing water main easement, said point clso being the POINT OF
ENDING of this relegse of easement, '

PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERING
ASSOCIATES
CLIENT: . i &l . - 2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100
NORR, LLC SCALE; 1"= 50 JOB Na: 2011-136 Troy, ML 48063 Jnso
719 SE'TSR“{,?TLPM?Q}%:& %’;561000 DATE: 10~07-11 |DWG. No: 2 of 2 | = (248) 689-8090
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151910262 stouers fog010-221 b R
PERMANENT EABEMENT : ﬁ ) @:9 32o5. 7
Stuart S. Chosid Trust dated- February 11, 1985;
Paul T. Chosid and Ruth L. Chosid, his wife {(as to her

Dower Interest if any) ; and Edna Chosid « Grantor
whose address is 4410 Strathdale Lane, West Bloomfield, MT 48323-2851 ,

for and in consideration of the sum of: One Dollar (81,00)

paid by the cITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantea,
whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy,-Michigan, grants to the
Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or replace

a water main, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy,
Oakland County, Michigan, described asz: :

$ 2.00 RENDMUNENTATION
and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to saidﬁi&ﬂoiﬂﬁdﬂt(smﬂﬂm 138
the purpose of the construction, operation, maintenkgke, refERIREE Dandh D COUNTY
replacement thereof, LYMN-D. ALLEN. CLERK/REGISTR ¥ {EEDS

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing
povers shall be reasonably restored to its original condition by the
Grantee,

This instrument shall be binding upon and inura to the benefit of
the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, successors and aasigns
and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, , the undersigned gerwto affixed thei
signature(s) this éi% day of g A.D. 19'?5 .
In presence of:

WITNESS

aA
Macia HAwWEgs

3

{L.S.)

KAT2i1NnA STESAN ST24 Attorney

d as Power of
sid, Trustee

oo,

Marc.A HAWES _ Padt¥”T. Chosid
Hotuia SEortle— Az 0D ..
KATRinA sYPssmsrra Ruth L. chosid (as to her Dower

Interest | Y)

‘P%/f. Chosid as Power of Attorney
£ Edna Chosid, Trustee

STATE OF MICHIGAN }
COUNTY OF 20;{’5}24 }

On this Z“iﬁ day of C’]@é&f A.D. 1999 .
before me a Notary Public in and for said county, personally appeared
Paul T. chosid, Trustee, and Paul T. Chosid as Power of Attorney for
Fdna Chosid, Trustee, of the Stuart s. Chosid Trust dated February 11,
1985; Paul T. Chosid and Ruth L. Chosid, his wife (as to her Dower
Interest if any); and Paul T. Chosid as Power of Attorney for Edna
Chosid .
to me known to be the same person(s) described in and who executed the

within instrument, who then acknowledged the same to be their free
act and deed. f

]
——— (Dt 1n. 214

e
OMMI PR
- EEERSUiRe Notar%bllc, dﬂﬂﬂn&t County, Michigan
{Individual) o
My Commission Expires %&5’/’33

Prepared by: Return to:

Alicia T. Worthley City clerk, City of Troy

500 West Big Beaver Road 500 West Big Beaver Road

Troy, Michigan 48084 Troy, Michigan 48084

Z%J.u)/:/?/ B 3/ 9. JA e ... DM
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ADDENDUM "apw

Southwegt 154 of Section 10, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, city
of Troy, Oaklan County, Michigan, the center line of which is
described as commencing at the Southwest corner of Section 10;
thence along the South section 1line North 88 degrees
50 minutes 57 seconds East, 684,28 feet; thence North
01 degrees 24 minutes 41 seconds West, 65.00 feet to the Point
of Beginning: Thence North 01 degrees 17 minutes 52 seconds
West, 167.31 feet to the Point of Branching "aAY; thence

190.75 feet; thence North 88 degrees 45 minutes 55 seconds
East, 25,00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 45 minutes
55 seconds West, 25.00 feet; thence MNorth 01 degrees
17 minutes s3 seconds West, 272.17 feet; thence South
88 degrees 54 minutes 52 seconds West, 232.28 feet; thence
North 01 degrees 05. minutes 08 seconds West, 15.00 feet;
thence South o1 degrees 05 nminutes 08 seconds East,
15.00 feet; thence South ss degrees 54 minutes 52 seconds
West, 385.27 feet; thence Nerth 01 degrees o5 minutes
08 seconds West, 5.7¢ feet; thence South 01 degrees 05 minutes
08 seconds East, 5,76 feet; thence South &8 degrees 54 minutasg
52 seconds West, 6.09 feet to the Point of Ending: Thence
beginning from Point of Branching "A" South gg degrees
41 minutes 01 Seconds West, 178.98 feet; thence North
01 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 4s6.78 feet; thence
South 88 degrees 45 minutes 55 seconds West, 88.52 feet;
thence North 01 degrees 14 nminutes 05 seconds West,
186.20 feet; thence South 88 degrees 45 minutes 585 seconds
West, 23.55 feet; thence North, 5.60 feet to the Point of
Ending.
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PERMANENT EASEMENT

Sidwell #88-20-10-351-018

SUNSET PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, Grantor{s), whose
address is 89 East Long Lake Road, Troy, Ml 48085 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and
no/100 Dollar {$1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose
address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to consfruct,
operate, maintain, repair and/or replace water main, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy,
Oakland County, Michigan described as:

SEE EXHIBIT "A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENGE MADE A PART OF

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction,
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof.

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to
its original condition by the Grantee.

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land.

. TH
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed +4is  signature(s) this |7 day of
CcT.  AD. 2011

SUNSET PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER, LLC
a Michigan limited liability company

By: Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership, a
Michigan limited partnership, its Member

By M@Ms)

* Paul T. Chosld, Trustee of the Paul T.
Chosid Revoeable Trust U/AID 5/14/01
Its General Partner

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)
o o 1THR—
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this / 2 day of ¢ , 2011,
by Paul T. Chosid, Trustee of the Paul T. Chosid Revocable Trust ufad 5/14/01, who is Genaral Partner

Plaza Shopping Center, LLC, a Michigan limited liability compg behalf of sai

AUy 5

Notary Public, Oakfand County, Michigarr ! } ———
Acting In Qakland County, Michigan Notary Publit, unty,

of Sunset Plaza limited partnership, a Michigan limited partnggship, which is sole member of Sunset
7

My Commission Expires 03/02/2012 My Commi§sion Expires
Acting in County,
Prepared by: Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk
City of Troy City of Tray
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road

Troy, Mi 48084 Troy, Ml 48084



EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PROPOSED NEW 12 FOOT WIDE WATER MAIN EASEMENT

A 12 foot wide easement for the construction, operaticn, maintenance and repair of
a water main over land in the Southwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 2 North, Range 11
East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, the centerline of which is more
particularly described as: Cammencing ot the Southwest corner of Section 10;
thence dlong the South section line of said Section 10, NB8°50'57"E, 684.28 feet:
thence NO1°24'41™W, 65.00 to «a point on the centerline of an existing 12 foot wide
water main easement as recorded in Liber 15197, Pages 262-264 of Qaklgnd County
Records; )

thence along soid centerline North 01°17'52"W, 167.31 feet to the Point of Branching
"A" as described in Addendum "A" of said existing easement;

thence from sald Point of Branching along said existing centerline S88°41'01"W, 18.71

feet to the POINT QF BEGINNING of the centerline of this new 12 foot wide water
main easement: - -

thence S00°39'42"¢, 4522 feet

thence 588°31'50"W, 5.83 feet;

thence S43°31'50"W, 13.76 feet:

thence SB8°40'26"W, 24.95 feet;

thence N46°28'10"W, 13.67 feet;

thence S88°31'50"W, 114.45 feet:

thence NO1°22'06"W, 38.00 feet;

thence N31°18'44"E, 9.10 feet to q point on the centerline of the aforementioned

existing water main egsement, said point also being the POINT OF ENDING of this new
easement.

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING
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SKETCH OF RELEASE OF EASEMENT
AND PROPOSED NEW EASEMENT
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Tl'l)y CiTY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Date November 14, 2011
To: John Szerlag, City Manag:
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development ?‘ﬁ(%/ﬂ

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer v/~ @
L.arysa Figol, Sr. R|ght-of-Way Representative %7 .-

Subject: Request for Acceptance of two Warranty Deeds, three Easements and Declaration of
a Non-Access Greenbelt Easement from CP Ventures Limited Partnership,
Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046

Backaround

As part of the development of Hidden Parc Site Condominium, located in Section 14, the Engineering
department has received two warranty deeds for a detention pond and road right-of-way, three
easements for water mains, sanitary sewers and storm sewers. In addition, for the City’s benefit, the
property owners have declared a non-access greenbelt easement along the property adjacent to
John R Road.

Consistent with State of Michigan statues, the City of Troy planning process, development standards
and City ordinances, rights-of-way are accepted from developers granting fee simple ownership to the
City. Fee simple ownership gives the City, and consequently the public, public access to and use of
the road and the ability of the City to maintain, repair, operate, construct and/or replace the roadway.
In addition, the City is able to receive and utilize Act 51 monies to offset the cost of maintenance of
those roads.

The warranty deeds and easements were granted to the City of Troy by CP Ventures Limited
Partnership, owners of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046.

The format and content of these documents is consistent with conveyances previously accepted by
City Council. The consideration amount on each document is $1.00.

Recommendation

City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached warranty deeds and easements
consistent with our policy of accepting deeds and easements for development and improvement
purposes.

LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\HiddenParcDeeds&Easements.doc
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Request for Acceptance of two Warranty Deeds, three Easements and a
Declaration of Non-Access Greenbelt Easement from CP Ventures Limited
Partnership, Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 029, 030 and 046

Resolution #2011-11

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS two warranty deeds for a
detention pond and road right-of-way, three easements for water mains, sanitary sewers
and storm, and the declaration of a non-access greenbelt easement from CP Ventures
Limited Partnership, owners of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-14-226-026, 027,
028, 029, 030 and 046, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the
warranty deeds, easements and declaration with the Oakland County Register of
Deeds, a copy of which shall be attached to the original minutes of this meeting.



WARRANTY DEED

Sidwell # 88-20-22-14-226-046 (part of)
Resolution #

The Grantor(s) CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership, whose address is 12955 23
Mile Road, Shelby Twp., Ml 48315 convey(s) and warrani(s) to the CITY OF TRQY, a Michigan Municipat Corporation,
Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road,, Troy, Michigan 48084, the following described premises
situated in the City of Troy, County of Oakland and State of Michigan:

SEE EXHIBIT *A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF

For the sum of One Doflar and no/cents ($1.00)

subject to easements and building and use restrictions of record and further subject to

Dated this T T day of ﬁ V5T 2011,

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporation, General Pariner

| By %Cw (LS.}

*Chwistopher Cousing, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership
per consent resolution dated 12/1/2009

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this g day of O»U\W , 2011, by af

Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on behaif of CP Venturas Limited Partnership.

THERESAKOWALSKI Wﬁl %\ulﬂold

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATEQF MICHIGAN
v

OUNTY MB
NTYOFMACO Notary Public, Maswlo ounty, MI
My Commission Jan.a‘mﬁh No / 5301
ing in the County of ‘commission expires:
Actingin v Acting in ?Y‘G»C.G‘NVJ County, M|
County Treasurer's Certificate City Treasurer's Certificate
When recorded return to: Send subsequent tax bills to: Drafted by:
City Clerk Grantee Larysa Figol
City of Troy City of Troy
500 West Big Beaver 500 West Big Beaver
Troy, Ml 48084 Troy, Mi 48084

Tax Parcel #88-20-14-226-046 (part of} Recording Fee Transfer Tax
*TYPE OR PRINT NAMES UNDER SIGNATURES




CONSENT RESOLUTION OF
C. P, VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

December 1, 2009

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Partner of C. P, Ventures Umited
Partnership, a Michigan limited parinership (known as "C. P. Ventures");

WHEREAS, C. P. Ventures is the devaloper of certain residential projects iocated in
Macomb County and Qakland County, State of Michigan (the "Projects™);

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of these Projects, the Ganeral Partner
hereby agrees that Christopher Cousino, shall act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P.
Ventures and shall have full authority to sign all closing and development documents, including
but not limited to, purchase agreements, clesing statements, master deed and bylaws, permils,
applications, site drawings, and other documnents relating to the Projects.

NOW THEREFORE, IT 1S HEREBY RESOLVED that C. P. Ventures, by and through its
General Partner, ratifies, affirms and consents to all aclions {o be taken, documents to be
executed and delivered by C. P. Ventures related to closings and the development of the

Projects.

IT 1S FURTHER RESOQLVED that the Genera!l Partner heraby authorizes Christopher
Cousino to act as the authotized agent on behalf of C. P. Ventures Limited Parinership and he
shafl have full authority fo sign all closing and development decuments, including but not limited
to, any purchase agreements, closing statements, master deed and bylaws, permits,
applications, site drawings., and offier documents related te any dosings andior the
development of the Projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the General Partner herein causes this Consent Resolution 1o
ke execited by its duly authorized officer effective the date first above stated.

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
& Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, inc.
a Michigan corporation, General Partner

By: Chris Peyerk
its: President

3274, 11201080, Resclutien of C.P. Venl
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WARRANTY DEED
Sidwell # 88-20-14-226-026-027-028-029-030 & 046 (pt of)
Resolution #

The Grantor(s} CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership, whose address is 12955 23
Mile Road, Shelby Twp., Ml 48315 convey(s} and warrant(s) to the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation,
Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road,, Troy, Michigan 48084, the following described premises
situated in the City of Troy, County of Oakland and State of Michigan: :

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETQ AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOE

Far the sum of One Dollar and nofcents ($1.00)

subject to easements and building and use resfrictions of record and further subject to

Dated this (&7 day of CIeTenbE# 5511,

CF VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporatien, General Pariner

By O/QJH CWO {LS.)

*Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership
per consent resolution dated 12/1/2000

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)

The foregoing instrument was ackndwledged before me this &M day of {O@Aﬂ,ﬁ)ﬂ/ » 2011, by Chris
Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership.

THERESAKOWALSIC %m%@ﬂ@ﬂa

NOTARY PUBLIC -STATE OF MICHIGAN  +

COUNTYOF MACOMB ‘
My Commissh an.8,20 Notary Public, County, MI
Actinginthe County of My commission expires: :
Acting in County, MI
County Treasurer's Certificate City Treasurer's Certificate
When recorded return to: Send subsequent tax bills to: Drafted by:
City Clerk Grantee Larysa Figol
City of Tray City of Troy
500 West Big Beaver 500 West Big Beaver
Troy, Ml 48084 Troy, MI 48084
Tax Parcel #88-20-14-226- {pt of) Recording Fee Transfer Tax

*TYPE OR PRINT NAMES UNDER SIGNATURES



C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
December 1, 2008

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Pastner of C. P. Ventures Limited
Partnership, a Michigan Gmited partnecship (iknown as "C. P. Venlures”);

WHEREAS, C. P. Ventwes is the developer of cerlain residential projects located in
anbcomuymmwmw Stata of Michigan (the “Projects”);

WHEREAS, in connaction with the development of these Projects, the General Pailner
hareby agress that Christopher Cousino, shall act as the authorized agent on behaif of C. P.
Ventures and shal have full authority o sign all dosing and developmant documents, including
bt not Bmited to, purchase agreaments, closing statements, master doed and bylaws, permits,
applications, site drawings, and other documents relating to the Projects.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HERERY RESOLVED that C. P. Venitres, by and through s
Ganeral Pariner, ratifies, affims and consents to all aclions fo be taken, documents to be
executed and delivered by C. P. Ventures related fo closings and the development of the

Projects.
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Pariner hereby amthorizes
Cousino o act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P. Ventures Limiled Partrership and he
shall have full authority 0 sign all dlosing and development docaments, including but not Emited
fo, any purchase agreements, closig stalements, master deed and bylews, permils,
spplications, site drawings, and other documents related o any closings andlor the
deinlopmu:tofmnqeds
IN WITNESS WHEREOF-, hmmmmmscmmnw
be expouted by its duly authorvized officer effective the date first above stated.

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP.
2 Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyork Munagement, Inc,
& Michigan corporation, Genural Parter

20741420100/ Convent Resokdion of C.F. Visnlums
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EXHIBIT A
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: TOTAL PARCEL (PART OF PARCELS #88-20-4-226-026, 027, -028, —029, —030, &-046)

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N,, R.IIE., CITY OF TRCY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION !4; THENCE S.03°03'4/"W. 985.19 FEET ALONG THE £. LINE SECTION 14 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE N.86°53'01"W, 60.00 FEET TO THE POINT Of BEGINNING: THENCE S.03°0341"W.
945.02 FEET; THENCE N.87°04'39"W. 265.16 FEET PARTIALLY ALONG THE N. LINE "HIDDEN OAKS™ AS RECORDED W L.
259, P.14-16 OF THE O.C.R; THENCE ALONG SAID LWE N.87°00°50"W. 60.00 FEET; THENCE N.02°59'I0"E. 80.55 FEET,
THENCE N.B6®19'46™W. 275.80 FEEE TO A POINT ON THE F. LINE “LONG LAKE VILLAGE Sug. #2 AS RECORDED'IN L. 142,
P. 20-21 OF THE O.C.R; THENCE ALONG SAD LINE N.02°S6'40"E. 862.83 FEET; THENCE S.86°53'01'F. 602.81 FEET .TQ
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 12,549 ACRES.

SUBJECT TO THE RiGHTS OF THE PUBLIC FOR ALL/ANY EASEMENTS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: ROAD RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT

A PARCEL OF tAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N,, R.IIE,, CITY GF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION I4; THENCE S.03°03'4("W. 985.09 FEET ALONG THE €, LINE SECTIGN 14 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE N.BE°S3'01"W. 60.00 FEET, THENCE S03°0341"W 125.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE S503°03'41"W 60.00 FEET; THENCE NBB°53'01"W 405,13 FEET; THENCE S02°56'40"W 197.23 FEET; THENCE
SOUTHERLY 26.8( FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS OF 290.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS
$05°35'33"W 26.80 FEET), THENCE 508°14'26"W 55.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY 21.26 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS OF 230.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS S05°35°33"W 21.25 FEET) THENCE S02°56'40"W
225,43 FEET, THENCE S88°32'50"E 294.3) FEET; THENCE NOI®3("CB"E 132.63 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY 37.69 FEET
ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 'OF 50.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS N20°05'40"W 36.8! FEETY;
THENCE £ASTERLY 279.27 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, LONG CHORD
BEARS 588°20°58"E 87.27 FEET);, THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 37.95 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFY
(RADIUS OF 50.0C FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS S23°14'S0™W 37.05 FEET) THENCE SO193008"W 132.17 FEET; THENCE
S588°32'50"E 57.21 FEET; THENCE $03°03'41"W 100.04 FEET; THENCE N88°32'50"W 88,80 FEFT: THENCE WESTERLY
33.03 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS N79°05'05"W
J2.88 FEET); THENCE W69°37'58"W 88.21 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY 34.82 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE
LEFT (RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS N78°34'22"W 34.64 FEETY; THENCE N88°32'50"W 114.53 FEET;
THENCE WESTERLY 21.13 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS
$79°20'40"W 20.98 FEET); THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 183.16 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS
oF TS.bD FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS N42°48'05"W 140.92 FEET); THENCE NORTHERLY 2313 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS ©F 50.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS NIS®03'I0"E 20.98 FEET), THENCE NO2°56'40"C
170,05 FEET; THENCE NDRTHERLY 26.81 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS OF 290.00 FEET,
LONG CHORD BEARS N05°35'33"E 26.80 FEET); THENCE NOBI4'26"E 55.04 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY 21.26 FEET
ALONG THE ARC CF A CURVE TC THE LEFT (RAD®S OF 230.00 FEEY, LONG CHORD BEARS N05°35'33"F 21.25 FEET)
THENCE ND2°56'40"E 382.41 FEET; THENCE S86°53'CI"E 60.00 FEET; THENCE S02°56'40"W 125.00 FEET, THENCE
$86°53'01"E 405.25 FEET TQ THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 123,235 SQUARE FEET —-- 2,829 ACRES
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PERMANENT EASEMENT

Sidwell #20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 030, 046 + 028
Resolution # :

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership, Grantors, whose address is
12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Twp., Ml 48315, for and In consideration of the sum of- One and no/100
Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address Is
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain,

repair and/or replace water main, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County,
Michigan described as:

SEE EXHIBIT "A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction,
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. -

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to
its original condition by the Grantee.

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shali run with the land.

hN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned héreunto affixed _hus signature(s) this 81’ H_ day of
JOVET AD. 2011,

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan fimited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporation, General Partner

By GW C]‘MO (L.5.)

*Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership
per consent resolution dated 12/1/2009

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
© COUNTY OF CAKLAND)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 3‘4\ day of 041@,(14,%1’ -, 2011,
by g# Christopher Cousine, Authorized Agent on behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partrigrship.

“Yonsna Ynonddei

THERESAKOWALSKI  *
NOTARY guaUC-STATEOFM'CH'GﬁHtary Public, L0 County, Michigan

OFMACOMI?ZO s
MyCommissionewpiresuan 601, - L \=e-30lY
- " ly Commission Expires
Actinginthe Counly o Acting in {1lALL5WHD  County, Michigan
Prepared by: Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk
City of Troy City of Troy
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W, Big Beaver Road

Troy, Mi 48084 Troy, Ml 48084



ONSENT- LUTION OF
C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Dacember 1, 2009

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Partner of C. P. Venlures Limited
Partnership, a Michigan imitad partnership (known as "C. P. Ventures™;

WHEREAS, C. P. Ventwes is the devaioper of cerlain residential projects focated in
Macomb County and Oakland Ceunty, State of Michigan (the "Projects®);

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of these Projects, the General Pariner
hareby agrees that Christopher Cousino, shall act as the authorized agent on behalf of G. P.
Ventures and shall have full authorily 1o sign all closing and development documenis, including
but net Timited {o, purchase agreements, closing statements, master deod and bylaws, permits,
applications, site drawings, and other documents relating to the Projects.

NOW THEREFGRE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that C. P. Ventureg, by and through its
General Pariner, ratifies, affirms and consents to all actions o be taken, documents to be
executed and delivered by C. P. Ventures related to closings and the development of the
Projects.

IT S FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Pariner hereby authorizes Christopher
Cousino to act as the authorized agent on bahalf of C, P. Ventures Limited Parinership and he
shall have full authority to sign all closing and development documents, including but not limited
" to, any purchase apreements, clesing statements, master deed and bylaws, permits,
gpplications, site drawings, and other documents relatet to any clogings andfor the

development of the Projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Gensral Partner herein causes this Consent Resolution to
be executed by its duly authorized officer effective the date first above stated.

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
& Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, Inc,
-a Michigan corporation, General Partner

By: Chris Peyerk )
Its:  President

3274.1/120109/Consent R{sduﬁun of C.P. Venluras
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CLIENT: DEt PROPERTIES

EXHIBIT A
WATER MAIN EASEMENT

LECAL DESCRIPTION: TOTAL PARCEL PART OF PARCELS f88~20-~14--226~028, ~027, -028,
A PARCEL UF LAND N THE HE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N, RIE, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUN
COMMENCING AT THE RE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE 5.03003°a)
CENTERLINE JOHK R. ROAD; THENCE N.86°SX0I"W. 60.00 FEET TO THE POMT OF BEGINNING: THENCE 5.03°0341"W,
945.02 FEET; THENCE N.37°04°39"W, 265.16 FEET PARTIALLY ALONG THE N. LINE "HIDDEN QAKS"
259, P.M-1I5 OF THE O.C.R; THENCE ALONG SAD 1INE HB7°00
FHENCE N.B6°(3'46"W, 275.80 FEET TO A POMNT ON THE E.
P. 20-21 OF THE O.C.R; THENCE ALONG SAD LINE NO2°56'40"E, 862,83
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ~ CONTABNING 12,549 ACRES. / ‘

. SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC FOR ALL/ANY EASEMENTS.

=029, ~030, &-046)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: WAYER MAIN EASEMENT f

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.20, RAE., CITY OF TROY, OA|
COUMENCRNG AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 4; THENCE 5.03°034)"
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD: THENCE N.BG*53'01"W, B0.00 FEET;
BEGINNING;

THENCE S03°03'4PW 1580 FEET; THENCE NBE°S5'0LW §158 FEET; THENCE NO3%03
SB6°33CI'E 51.58 FEET TO THE POINE DF BEGHNING.

CONTAINING 774 SQUARE FEET —~ 0.0M8 ACRES

"a["E 1500 FEET; THENCE

LEGAL DESCRPTION: WATER MAM EASEMENT 2

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 1, T.2N, RHE, CIFY OF TROY
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE 5.03%03°41"W, 9B5.
CENTERLINE JOHN R, ROAD; THENCE N.BES53'01"W. 60.00 FEET; THENCE §.
NB70A'39"W 258.01 FEET TO THE POINT QF BEGINNING;

THENCE NE7°04'30"W 7,15 FEET;. THENCE, N87°00'S0MW 2114 FEET; THENCE N47959'i0"E 66.05 FLET;
NOR"S9'0E 13363 FEET:; THENCE EASTERLY 20109 FEET ALONE THE ARC OF A CURVE TD.TPE RIGHT
100,00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS §82°47'32"F 20.05 FEET); THENCE S02°5940"
54.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINNG 3,951 SQUARE FEET ~-- 0.09} ACRES

03°03'A1"W, 945.02 FEET: THENCE -

THENCE
(RADIIS OF

8
© 201 - comumry 5. we. ng
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. . o

TY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
"W. 985.19 FEET ALONG THE £ LINE SECTION i & THE

A% RECORDED IN L.
'50™W. 60.00 FEET; THENGE N.0Z°59'H0E. 80,55 FEET; .

LINE “LONG LAXE VILLAGE SUB. §2" AS RECORDED 1 L. 42, !
FEET: THENCE 5.86°5301"E. 602.8) FEET 10

KLAND COUNTY, MICHGAN DESCRIBED AS:
W. 985.19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 14 & THE
THENCE $.03°03'4I°W. 110.00 FEET TO THE FOINT oF

» DAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS: l
19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 14 & THE

W 160:43 FEET: THENCE S47°59'|0"4

COMMUNITY ES., INC.
Tormerly Jes ASSOCIATES, INE,
303 28 HILE ROAD, SUVTE Itn

PROJECT: HIODEN PARC, GITY OF TROY, SEC 1
DAYE: 06/0B/1 (CDR)

WASHINGTON TWP. . HICHIGAN 46094
TELEFHONE (586) B77-408) FAX (586%77—40!4
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PERMANENT EASEMENT

Sidwell #20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 030, 046 ~ 024
Resolution # : ‘

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership, Grantors, whose address is
12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Twp., MI 48315, for and in consideration of the sum of: One and no/100
Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address Is
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain,

repair and/or replace sanitary sewer, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County,
Michigan described as:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOQF

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction,
operation, maintenance, repalr and/or replacement thereof. .

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of :any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to
its original condition by the Grantee. :

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the  parties hereto, their heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land.

g WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned hereunto affixed B1®  signature(s) this E,j!H day of
VEVST  AD. 2011,

CP VENTURES LIMITED. PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan limited partnership

By. Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporation, General Partner

By C%H C"”O ' (L.S.)

*Chyistopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Pattnership
per consent resofution dated 12/1/2009

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)

wh :
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ’8 day of GJLW . 2011,
by &f Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership.

%-Q)\OL {:vaaﬂdu

THERESAKOWALSKI %
Y PUBLIC - STATEOF MICHI X o
NOTAR COUNTYOF MACOMB Htary Public, M,GO_County. Michigan

Commissionexpires.Jan.§, 2014
mminmeCount:?m i My Commission Expires_- -0}/
) Acting in County, Michigan
Prepared by: Larysa Figal i Return to: City Clerlc
City of Troy City of Troy
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road

Troy, Ml 48084 Troy, Ml 48084



CONSENT RESOLUTION OF

€. P, VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

December 1, 2000

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Partner of C. P. Venlures Limited
Partnership, a Michigan limited parinership (known as "C. P. Ventures™):

WHEREAS, C. P. Ventwes is the devaloper of certain residential projects located in
Macomb County and Oakland County, State of Michigan (the "Projects");

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of these Projects, the General Partner
hereby agrees that Christopher Cousine, shall act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P,
Ventures and shall have fulf authority to sign all closing and development documents, including
but not limited to, purchase agreements, closing statements, master deed and bylaws, permits,
applications, site drawings, and other documents relating fo the Projects.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HERERY RESOLVED that C. P. Ventures, by and through its
General Partner, ratifies, affirms and consents to all actions 1o be taken, documents to he
executed and delivered by C. P. Venturés related to closings and the development of the

Projects.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Genergl Pariner hereby authorizes Christopher
Cousino fo act as the authorized agant on behalf of C. P. Ventures Limited Parinership and he
shall have full authority to sign all closing and development documents, including but not limited
to, any purchase agreements, closing stalements, masier deed and bylaws, permils,
applications, site cdrawings, and other documents related ta any closings andior the

“devalopment of the Projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ths General Partner herein causes this Consent Rasolution to
be executed by its duly authorized officer effective the date first above statsd,

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
& Michigan himited partnership

By: Peyerk Banagement, inc,
& Michigan corporation, General Pariner

By: Chris Payerk ’
Its:  President

3274.11120105/Consent Resolution of C.P. Verlures
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EXHIBIT &

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
mmmmurmwmwpmnm-u-w-m-w.-mmmt«n
& PARCEL OF LAND M THE NE 1/8 SECTION 14, T.2K, RILE, CITY oF TROY, QAKLAND COUNTY, MCHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCHG AT THE WE CORNER SECTION M; THENCE S003'4IW. 385,19 FEET ALONG. THE E. LNE SEGTION 10 k i
CENTERLINE JOHN R, ROAD; THENCE N56°53

'OI"W. 60.00 FEET TO THE POINT oF BEGINNG: THENGE 5.03°03'4)"W,
945,02 FEEY; THENCE N.67°043p"W. 2855 FEET PARTILLY. ALONG THE N, LINE

"HOEN OAKS”" AS RECORDED N L
259, P.1~16 OF THE O.0R. THENCE ALONG SATD LINE N.AT*00'50"W, 60.00 FEET; THENCE NO2°59'0"E. 80,55 FEET:
THENCE N.2G*1'45°W. 275,80 FEET T0 A POINT ON THE E. UNE "LONG LAKE VILAGE SUB. 2" AS RECORDED N L. 142,
£. 2021 OF THE D.CR: THENGE ALONG SAID LME N.0Z°58°40"E.. 552,83 FEET: THENCE SB6°B3'0I'E. goz.5t FEET TG
" THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINNG 12.549 ACRES,

SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC FOR ALL/ANY EASEMENTS. o

LEGAL DESCRPTION: SANITARY SEVER EASEMENT #
A PARCEL OF LAKD W THE NE 1/8 SECTION 14, T.2N,, RIE. CITY OF TROY, OAXLAND COUNTY,
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE 5.03°03'a1W

CENTERLINE JOHH R. RDAD; THENGE NBE*530IW., B0.00 FEET;
BEGINNING;

THENGE SO3"03'4"W 15.00 FEEY: THENCE NBG°5301"Y 358,12 FEET; THENCE NOJ°UB'SS"E 15.00 FEET; THENCE §
S86°330FE 359.10 FEET YO THE FOINT OF BEGINNNG, ;
CONTAINING 5,387 SQUARE FEET ~— 0.129 ACRES

-LEGAL DESCRIPTION: SANTARY SEWER EASEMENT g2

- A PARCEL OF LAND 1N THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2M, RIE, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED As:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE 5.02°03'41'W,, 985.59 FEET ALDHG THE E. LINE SECTION 14 RTHE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE HEBET'0I"W,, 60,00 FEET; THEWCE SD3°0F4rW 669,18 FEET YO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

i
THENCE SO3°0341"W 20.02 FEET: THENCE N84*2029"W 57.62 FEET; THENCE NY°30°08"E 118.58 FEET: THENCE ﬁ
SBA"2852"F 2.00 FEET; THENCE 501°30'08"W $8.68 FEET; THENCE S84°20'20"E 56,18 FEET TO THE POINT oF
BEGINNING,

CONTAINNG 1355 SQUARE FEET —- 0,031 ACRES .

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT &3

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4: SECTION 14, 7,200, RAE., CFTY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS;
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE S.O3°0391W, 985.19 FEET ALONG .THE E. LINE SECTION 14 8 THE

CENTERLINE  JOHM R, ROAD; THENCE N.28°53'01W, 60.00 FEET; THENCE SD3°03'41"W GOB.54 FEET; THENCE NB8*3250"W
H7.2| FEETY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNMNG;

THEWCE NE&*32'S0"W 23.00 FEET; THENCE NOP30'08"E 10,00 FEET; THENGE S6B-32'S0E 25,00 FEET; THENCE i
SOI™I0'08"W 10.00 FEET TO THE FOINT OF BEGINMING.

CONTAINNG 250 SQUARE FEET —- 0,006 AGRES
| LEGAL DESCRIPTION; SANITARY SEWER EASEHENT M

A PARCEL OF LAND N THE NE 1/4 SECTION 1a, LN, RAE, CITY OF TROY, DAKLAND COUNTY, MICHGAN DESCRBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THEWCE $.03°0'41

_ W, 983,08 FEET ALONG THE E. LNE SECTION 18 & THE
SONTERLINE, JOHN R. ROAD; THENGE N.86*530rW, 80,00 FEET, THENCE CONTINUNG N3G"SOI"W 300,51 FEET; THENCE
$02°55'40"H 18.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGIMNMNG: '

THENCE S02°36'40"W 107,00 FEET; THENCE NBO*53'01W 15,00 FEET: THENCE NOZ*S6'0"E 107.00 FEET: THENGE -
SHE"SI'OI'E [5.00 FEET T0 THE PONT OF BEGNNING. !
CONTANMG 105 SOUARE FEET ——— 0.037 ACRES :
» H
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: SAMTARY SEWER EASEHENT g5
A PARCEL OF LAND 1M THE NE I/4 SECTION 1, TN, k.|
C

00 Frs AW, 98510 FEET ALONG THE €, LNE SECTION 4 & 115 ;

SENTERLINE JON R. ROAD; .THENCE K 86°5301". 60,00 FEET: THENCE CONTINUING NBS530P'W J80.51 FEET; THewn. :
$02'56'40" 185.00 FEET 70 THE POINT OF BEGNNAG; ' ' :
THENCE S02°50'40"W 524.83 FEET; THENCE NAB®32'S0% 223 FEET, THENGE NO2°S6°40°€ 225,43 FEET; THENCE
NORTHERLY 21.26 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CLRVE T GHT OF 230.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS ;
! ; THENCE NORTHERLY 26.5) FEET ALONG THE ARG OF A | :

SURVE T THE LEFT (RADS OF 250.00 FEET, LONG CHORG BEARS HOS*35'33'E 26.80 FEET); THENCE Nozesgdot :

c.

: . CITY: OF TROY, CAKLAND COUNTY, MCHGAN DESCRIBED AS:
I COHMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE s.p
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_EXHIBIT A
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PROJECT: HIDDEN PARC, CITY OF TROY, SEC 14
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PERMANENT EASEMENT

Sidwell #20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 030, 046 +029
Resolution #

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 3 Michigan limited partnership, Grantors, whose address is
12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Twp.; MI 48315, for and in consideration of the sum of: One and nof100
Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is
500 West Big Beaver Road, Tray, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain,
repair and/or replace storm sewer, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Qakland County,
Michigan described as: ' C

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction,
operation, maintenance, repair andfor replacement thersof,

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to
its original condition by the Grantee.

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed f1%  signature(s) this &g_ day of
VEusT  AD. 2011, _ B

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporation, General Partner

*Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership
per consent resolution dated 12/1/2009

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ‘(% day of M . 2011,
by 2f Christopher Cousino, Authorized Agent on behaf of CP Ventures Limited Partriérshig.

i Mo odi

*

THERESAKOWALSKI i ]
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF MICHIGAMary Public, County, Michigan
COUNTY OFMACOMB .
WW&“%My Commission Expires__|~{p~0! %
Actingin the Countyo Acting in_MMM_County, Michigan
Prepared by: Larysa ?‘goi Return to; cCity Cle{rl:(

Coty of Tevus A S
z_:;m‘gw_e,s-r 6," ﬁ,uu-'dr c:-m:?jw.es} Bt Pt
Tioy . Mt e.{r?g/q Troy, bl U ForY



CONSENT OLUTION OF
C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

December 1, 2009

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Partner of C. P. Ventures Umited
Partnership, a Michigan limitad parinership (known as "C. P. Ventures");

WHEREAS, C. P. Vantwes is the developer of cerfain residential projects focated in
Macomb Caunty and Oakland County, State of Michigan (the "Projects™);

WHEREAS, in connection with the devalopment of these Projects, the General Partner
hereby agrees that Christopher Cousino, shall act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P.
Ventures and shall have full authority to sign all closing and develapment documents, indluding
but not limited to, purchase agreements, closing statements, master deed and bylaws, permits,
spplications, site drawings, and other documents relating to the Projects.

NOW THEREFGRE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that C. P. Ventures, by and through its
General Partner, ratifies, affirms and consents to all actions to be taken, documents to be
executed and delivered by C. P. Ventures related to closings and the development of the

Projects.

{T IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Partner hereby authorizes Christopher
Cousina to act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P. Ventures Limited Partnership and he
shafl have full authority to sign ali closing and development documents, including but not limited
to, any purchase agreements, closing statements, master deed and bylaws, permils,
appfications, site drawings, and other documents related fo any closings andlor the

davelopment of the Projecis.
lN' WITNESS WHEREOQF, the General Parther herein causes this Consent Rasolution to
be executed by its duly authorized officer effective the date first above stated.

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
& Michigan limited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, inc,
a Michigan corporation, General Partnor

By: Chris Peyerk
ts:  President

2274 120105/ Consent Resolution of CP, Venlures
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| STORM SEWER EASEMENT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION; TOTAL PARCEL (PART OF PARCELS §08-~20=44-226~026, -0z7,
A PARCEL OF LAND N THE NE 1/4 SECTION W, T.2K, RIE, CITY OF TROY,
I COMMENCING AT THE NE GCORNER SECTION 14; THENCE $,03%0.

CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE NAG33C1"W. 60.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEG!
945.02 FEET; THENCE N.B7704'39"W. 265.16 FEET PARTIALI
259, P.14~16 OF THE Q.CR; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE N.2T°00
THENCE N.AG*I9°46"W. 275.680 FEET TO A POMT ON THE E.
P. 20-21 OF THE O.CR.; THENCE ALONG SAID LINC N.02¢56
" THE POINT OF BEGHMNING. CONTASING 12,549 ACRES.

SUBJECT TD THE RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC FOR ALL/ANY EASEMENTS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: STORM SEWER EASEMENT 1

Li A PARCEL OF LAND N THE NE 1/4 SECTION 4, T.2N, RIE, T
COMMENDING AT THE ME CORNER SECTION 14; THENGE S.03°03
CENTERLINE JOHN R, ROAD; THENCE N.BE°S3'0F . 60.00 FEET:
N8B*33'0I"W .00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE NBE®53T1W 12,00 FEET; THENCE N0OJ®Q3'41E 09.09 FEET; TH
NB6SXOI"W 264.28 FEET; THENGE NO2°56"4G°E (2.00 FEET; THENCE S86°53
107.03 FEET; THENCE S03°03'41W 110.7] FEET 70 THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
CONTAINING 5,887 SQUARE FEET —-- (135 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: STORM SEWER EASEMENT [ ]

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 10, T.2M., R.IE, &
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE S.03°03"
CENTERLINE JOHN R, ROAD; THENCE N.BE53'08W. 50.00 FEET;
NEB*5X01" 14.00 FEET TO THE PONT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE S03°03'41"W 128100 FEET: THENGE WEG*S30IW |
S$70°08'21"W 4B.55 FEET; THENCE SO3%18'31"W 92.95 FEET; THENCE $4893608"€ 30.
183.71 FEET; THENCE NB8*32'50"W 20.01 FEET THENCE ND2°56'40
THENCE NBG°S301'W H0.83 FEET; THENCE SE3°IT38" 12.15 FE
SB6*33'CI'E 05,79 FEET; THENGE NO3®I6'3IE G172
FEET; THENCE NBS*SI'0IW 8IS0 FEET: THENCE NO3
| H03°03'41'E HE.00 FEET; THENCE S86°530 1" 12.00- FEET 7O THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
| CONTAIRING 19,927 SQUARE FEET ——- 0.343 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: STORM SEWER EASEMENT §3
A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N,, RIIE,,
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE S.03o
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE HE6953'0 "W, 80.00
NBE"IZ'50"W 1i7.21 FEET TO fHE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THEMCE NBB32'50"W 28.00 FEET: THENCE N4G°2a'3n
OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 392 SDUARE FEET —-- 0,009 ACRES

© 201 - COMMUNITY E.S. INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
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~028, ~029, ~03, &~048)
OAKLAND  COUNTY, MCHIGAN DESCRIGED AS:
T4I"K. 985.19 FEET ALONG THE . LINE SECTION 14 & THE
INNING: THENGE S.03°03'4pw,
LY ALONG THE K. LINE “HIDDEN OAKS" AS RECORDED W L.
'50"W, 60.00 FEET: THENCE N.02°5¢ 10" B0L55 FEET:
LINE "LONG LAKE VILLAGE SU. J2 AS RECORDED M L. 122,
'40°F. 862.83 FEET: THENCE S85°S30I'E. 602.81 FEET To

ENCE NB4*0304"W 95.32 FEET; THEMCE
'OME 284.60 FEET; THENCE S84°03'04E

94.43 FEET; THENCE S28°3218'W 75.65 FEET; THENCE
95 FEET; THENCE S02¢5640" -
“E 184,57 FEET; THENCE NAB®IG'08"W 23.72 FEET:
ET; THENCE NO2956'40°F 25.09 FEET: THENCE
FEET; THENCE N70°0B'21°F 60,62 FEET; THENCE N28°32'18
06'39"E 12.00 FEET; THENGE SBE*SI0I"E 277.21 FEET: T

0z
877-4084

EXHIBIT A |

Y OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
"4I"W. 9B5.19 FEET ALONG YHE F, LINE SECTION .14 RTHE .
: THERCE S.03°0341, 125.00 FEET; THENCE

1Y OF TROY, GAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:

4"W., 985.19 FEET ALONG THE E. UNE SECTION 14 & THE
THENCE 5.03°03'44"W, 185,00 F EET; THENCE

"E §3.J9 I
HENCE

CITY OF TROY, QAKLAND COUNTY, MCHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
OX41"W. 985,19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 14 & THE
FEET; THENCE S.03¢0341", 698.54 FEET; THENCE

i
"E 3882 FEET: THENCE SOI30°08"W 28.00 FEET 7O THE POINT

3HS

§
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2
N
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EXHIBIT A
' STORM SEWER EASEMENT
LEGAL OESCRITION: STORN SEWER EASEMENT 4 _
A PARCEL OF LAND ¥ THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N., RLAE., OITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MCHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE KE CORMER SECTION 14; THENGE $.03°03%1"W. 985.18 FEET ALONG THE £. LINE SECTION 14 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE N.BB*SI'OI'W. 60.00 FEET; THENCE S.03°03'41"w. 78149 FEET; THENCE
NBB*32'50" 155,80 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGRNING
THENCE NB5°08'58"W 1557 FEET; THENCE NBB®JZ80°W 85.50 FEET: THENCE S76°26'56"W 50,85 FEET; THENCE
S09°0407"W 34,62 FEET; THENCE NRO"SS'53"W 20,00 FEET; THENCE NORSO'DT°E 5,51 FEET: THENCE EASTERLY 5170
FEET ALONG THE. ARC OF & CURYE To THE LEFT (RADIUS OF 75.00 FE¢T. LONG CHORD BEARS NAB*58'01 50.68
PEETY THENCE EASTERLY 2143 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE T0 THE RIGHT (RAOIUS OF 50.00 FEET, LONG .CHORD
BEARS N79°20°00°E 2008 FEETY; THENCE SBE32'S0°E 11653 FEET: THENGE EASTERLY 34,62 FEET ALOMG THE ARC OF
A CLRVE TO THE RIGRT (RAINUS OF  100.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS S7893472°F 34.64 FEET): THENCE S80°37'58"¢ .
52.19 FEET T0 THE PONT OF BEGIMNG, ;
CONTAINKE 4,602 SOUASE FEET —~ 0,405 ACRES i I .

LEGAL DESCRTION: STORH SEWER EASEMENT #5

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION M, T.2K, RIIE, CITY OF TROY. OAKLAND COUNTY, MCHICAN DESCRBED AS;
COMRENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION W; THENCE 5.03°034 W, 985,19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 4 & THe
CENTERLINE JOHM R. ROAD: THENCE N.B6°53'0F 1. 80.00 FEET: YHENCE S.03°0344 ("W, 045.02 FEET: THENCE
NB7°04'33"W 57.808 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING:;

THENCE NE7°04-39"W 207.17 FEET; THENCE NB7°05°S0"W 60.00 FEET; THENCE MO2*39°I0'E 80.55 FEET; THENCE
N&7°5E'SEW S9.01 FEET; THENCE NA2°04'02°F 12.00 FEEY;, THENCE S47955'58"F ¢4.73 FEET; THENCE 502058'10"W "

74,26 FEET; THENCE S87*00'50"E 47.90 FEET; THENCE 587°04'39'F 307.1 FEEY; THENCE SO2955'21"W 12,00 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINMING,

CONTAINING 4,805 SQUARE FEET ——— 01D ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: STORM SEWER EASEMENT "
A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE I/4 SECTION 14, T.2N,, R.E., Ci
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 1 THENCE S.03%03
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD:; THENCE N.BE*53'01"W, 60.00 FEET
SO2°56'40°W 61.77 FEET TO THE POINT GF BEGINNING;

THENCE S02°5640"W 318,64 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY 2126 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF & CURVE To THE RIGHT (RADIUS h

TY OF TROY, DAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
41", 985,19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 14 & THE l
i THENCE CONTINUING NB6°53'01"W 465.51 FEET; THENCE | ;

OF 230.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS S05°35'33"W 21.25 FEET); THENCE SDE™I4'26"W 55.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY
Z6.81 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF & CURVE TO THE LEFT (RaDWS OF 280.00 FEET, LONG CHORD @
26.80 FEETY, THENCE 502*56'40"W 170,05 FEET; THENCE SGUTHERLY 2143 FEET ALOI
RIGHT {RADIUS OF 50,00 FEET. LONG CHORD BEARS S15°03'10"W 20.68 FEETY, THEMCE SOUTHERL-‘.( 83.20 FEET ALONG
THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS OF 75.00 FEET, LONG CHORD BEARS S04°37'08°E 74.90 FJ EETY; VHENCE
S0108"14"W 57.04 FEET; THENCE NBBS5'46"W 20.00 FEEY; THENCE HOPOA'ME 11262 FEET: THENGE NBI°03'20"w

85.19 FEET: THENCE MD2°56'40°¢ 12,00 FEET; THENCE S87°03'20"F a5.00 FEET: THENCE NO2956'40"E 142100 FEET; I

EARS 50503533 W
NG THE ARC OF A CURVE TD THE

THENCE NB7°03'20"W 85,00 FEET; THENCE NO2°56'40"E 12.00 FEET: THENCE $87°03'20°E 85.4) FEET; THENCE
NOT°QB'S0"E 142.15 FEET; THENCE NB7°03'20"W 95.83 FEET; THENCE ND2%5€
86.30 FEET; THENCE NO2*56'40°E 14 LOO FEET: THENCE NB703'20% 96.30 FEET: THENCE NO2°SE'agE 12.00 FEET;
THENCE SBT°03'20"F 96,30 F EET; THENCE NO2°58'40E #4100 FEET; THENCE NB7*0X20"W $6.30 FEET; THENGE

NO2956"40"E 1209 FEET; THENCE SB7°0320F 98.00 FEET; YHENCE N4S°3S'I2"E 14.04 FEET 1o THE POINT OF
BECINNNG,

G"E 12.00 FEET; THENCE 587°0320"E

CONTAMING 15,197 SOUARE FEET ——. 0.348 ACRES

© 2011 - communTy E.5. INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
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DECLARATON OF NON-ACCESS
GREENBELT EASEMENT

Sidwe_il #88-20-14-226-026, 027, 028, 030, 046 = 024
Resclution #

on this 84 day of f}) VEVET 2011, GP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited
partnership, Declarant, having its principal office at 12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Twp, Mi 48315, makes this Declaration
of Easement for the benefit of THE CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, with an address of 500 W. Big

Beaver Road, Troy, Ml 48084, and for the benefit of the property owners in the Hidden Parc Site Condominium as
described below.

Consideration: No monetary consideration will be provided to Declarant for this easement, therefore the conveyance is
exempt from transfer tax pursuant to MCL 207.505(a) and 257.526(a).

Affected Property: Declarant owns the property in the Hidden Parc Site' Condominium, Sidwell number 88-20-14-226-
026, 027, 028, 030 and 046 that is described in the attached Exhibit A, and declares this easement that affects a part
of said property.

Declaration of Easement: Declarant hereby declares grants, conveys, and establishes a non-access greenbelt
easement that is shown and fully described in the attached Exhibit A. The area within said easement shall be
landscaped in accordance with the CITY OF TROY ordinances and approved landscaping plan. Curb cuts that would
allow access to a road or thoroughfare shall not be made within said easement.

Binding Effect: This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the CITY OF TROY and fhe property
owners in Hidden Parc Site Condominium, their heirs, representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants
contained herein shall run with the fand.

IN, WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed }}é signature(s) this 8”” day of
st AD. 2011,

CP VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Michigan limited partnership

By. Peyerk Management, Inc., a Michigan
Corporation, General Partner

*Christopher Cousing, Authorized Agent on
behalf of CP Ventures Limited Partnership
per consent resolution dated 12/1/2009

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF QAKLAND)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this g’f’R day of

2011, by ot
Christopher Cousine, Authorized Agent on behalf of CP Ventures Limite

LARYSA FIGOL *
Notary Public, Oakland County, Mickigaghy p
Acting in Oakland Courtty, Michig@g Com

My Commission Expires 03/02/201 fing in County, Michigan
Preparedby.  Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk
City of Troy City of Troy
500 W. Big Beaver Rd 500 W. Big Beaver Rd
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084

ELEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNATURES




NSENT- oLy OF
C. P, VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

December 1, 2008

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the General Partner of C. P. Venlures Limited
Partrership, a Michigan imited parinership (known as °C. P. Ventures"};

WHEREAS, C. P. Ventwes is the devaioper of certain residential projects located in
Macomb County and Oakland County, State of Michigan (the "Projects”);

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of these Projects, the General Partner
hereby agrees that Christopher Cousino, shall act as the authorized agent on behalf of C. P.
Ventures and shall have full authority to sign all closing and development documents, including
but nat limited to, purchase agreements, closing statements, masier deed and bylaws, permiis,
applications, site drawings, and other documents relating to the Projects. '

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that C. P. Ventures, by and through its
General Pariner, ratifies, affirms and consents to all actions to be taken, documents to be
executed and delivered by C. P. Ventures related o closings and the development of the

Projects.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Partner hereby authorizes Christopher
Cousino to acl as the authorized agent on bahalf of C. P. Ventures Limited Partnership and he
shall have full authority to sign all closing and development documents, including but not limited
to. any purchase apreements, closing slatements, master deed and bylaws, permits,
applications, site drawings, and other documents refated to any clogings andlor the

development of the Projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Gensral Partner herein causes this Consent Resclution to
be executed by its dufy authorized cofficer effective the date first above stated.

C. P. VENTURES LIMITED PARTNERSHiP,
a Michigan fimited partnership

By: Peyerk Management, nc,
- a Michigan corporation, General Partner

By: Chris Peyerk
lis:  President

22741120165/ Consent Resclulion of C.P Vendures
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EXHIBIT A
GREENBELT EASEMENT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: TOTAL PARCEL (PART OF PARCELS §8-20-14—226-026, =027, -028, —029, -030, &-046)

A PARCEL OF LAND.IN THE NE /4 SECTION 14, T.2N, R.IE., CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE $.03°03'41"W. 985.19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION- 14 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R, ROAD; THENCE N.BG°53'0I"W. 80.00 FEET TO THE F;’OINT OF BEGINNING: THENCE $.03°03'4/"W,
945,02 FEET; THENCE N.87°04'39"W. 265.16 FEET PARTIALLY ALONG THjE N. LINE “HIDDEN GAKS" AS RECORDED IN L.
258, P.14~16 OF THE 0.C.R.; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE N.B7°00'50"W. 6(-.00 FEET; THENCE N.02°59'I0"E. B0.55 FEET;
THENCE N.B6°I9'46"W. 275.80 FEET TO A POINT ON THE E. LINE “LONG LAKE VILLAGE SUB. #2"' AS RECORDED IN L. |42,
P. 20-21 OF THE 0.C.R; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE N.02°56'40"E. 862,83 FEET; THENCE S.86°53'01"E. 602.8] FEET T0
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CbNTAINiNG [2.549 ACRES.

SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC FOR ALL/ANY EASEMENTS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: GREENBELT EASEMENT #I
A PARCEL OF LAND N THE NE 1/4 SECTION )4, T.2N., R.IIE., CITY OF TROY, DAKLAND GOUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION I4; THENCE 5.03°03'41"W, 985. 19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION 18 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE N.BB953'0I"W. 60.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE S03°03'41"W 125.00 FEET; THENCE N86°53'Di"W 15,00 FEET: THENGE ND3°03'44'E 125,00 FEET; THENCE
586°53'01"E 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING 1,875 SQUARE FEET —-~ 0.043 ACRES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: GREENBELT EASEMENT §2 : :
A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE |/4 SECTION I4, T.2N., R.IE., CITY OF TéOY. OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION |4; THENGE S.03°03'4i"W, 985 19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION i4 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. RCAD; THENCE N.B6°53'01"W, 60.00 FEET; THENCE ‘503"03 41"W 185.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE 503°03'4 "W 5:3.53 FEET; THENCE N8B°32'S0"W 15.01 FEET; TﬂENCE NG3*03'9)"E 513.97 FEET; THENCE
S86°53'0I"E 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. \
CONTARMING 7,706 SQUARE FEET -=-— 0.I77 ACRES ;

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: GREENBELT EASEMENT §3

A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NE 1/4 SECTION 14, T.2N., RIE., CITY QF TROY OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER SECTION 14; THENCE S.03°034¢'W, 985:' 19 FEET ALONG THE E. LINE SECTION (4 & THE
CENTERLINE JOHN R. ROAD; THENCE N.26°53'01"W. 60.00 FEET: THENCE iL:?G'.)\‘5°03't-'ll"l»l 798.58 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;
THENCE S03°03'd1"W [46.44 FEET; THENCE NB7°04'39"W 1500 FEET: THENCE NG3°03'41'E 146.06 FEET; THENCE
588°32'50"E [5.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING 2,194 SQUARE FEET =--— 0.050 ACRES
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L-01a
DaVid L WiSZ Submitted by Mayor Daniels

Systems Engineering Degree - OU

Law Degree — MSU

Intellectual Property Attorney

Former Birmingham Parking and Safety Committee
Resident / Business Owner Birmingham

Former Troy Resident

Chair State Bar of Michigan Intellectual Property Section

| literally review the Future of Technology every day.

Technologist Carver Mead (Caltech): "We depend on the innovations
of the citizens of a free economy to keep ahead of the bureaucrats
and the people who make a living on control and planning.”

The passing of Steve Jobs and thoughts of what he invented reminds us how,
in comparison, ill-equipped government bureaucrats bossing around tax
dollars are able to plan industries of the present, much less the future.

Transit center and mass transit are NOT the future.



BittnerA
Text Box
L-01a
Submitted by Mayor Daniels


Transit Center AS Troy's Solyndra...

* S535 million govt’ loan guarantee - March 2009
Bankrupt August 2011

* When government takes money from the Private
economy and puts it into a loser, it not only wastes
that taxpayer money but it also denies that capital to
some other project in the private economy that may
have succeeded. {opportunity cost}

* The Solyndra emails show HOW ILL-EQUIPPED
GOVERNMENT IS TO PREDICT INDUSTRIES OF THE [ , ]
PRESENT, MUCH LESS THE FUTURE...



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Just one current example


Mass Transit Has Been In Decline
Since The End Of World War I1.

50% then - 2% now

* We the taxpayers - are forced to SUBSIDIZE at least two-thirds
of the cost for every mass transit user.

* Per person mile (ppm) of travel, govt’ spends 20 times as
much on public transit as for roadways.

* The "race" between the automobile and public transit is over.
The auto has won. [we are in Detroit; remember?]

()



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Six urban areas—Boston, Chicago, New York, Philadelphia, San Francisco, and DC—The “big six” account for two out of three transit passenger miles in America 
Nationwide, automobiles carry about 2.6 trillion passenger miles a year on urban highways and streets, and another 1.7 trillion on rural roads. mass transit, which carries less than 50 billion passenger miles a year, represents barely 1 percent of surface travel and 2 percent of urban travel.



DEMOGRAPHIA }

United States Mass Transit Expenditures & Subsidies from 1960

Share of
Capital & Commercial Expenditures Expendituras
Oparating Revenuss State & Paid by Passenger Work Trip per
Expenditures  (Including Total Local Fedaral  Commearcial Milas Market  Passenger
Year (2009%) Fares)  Subsidies Subsidies Subsidies HRevenues (Billions)  Share  Mile (2009%)
1960 43.0 12.9%
1961-1969 $60.6 $57.6 $3.0 -50.2 $3.2 95.0%
1970 £11.9 $9.4 $2.5 517 %07 79.3% 1.0 8.9% $0.29
1971 £11.9 $9.2 527 £1.1 $1.5 7. 7%
1972 £13.0 $8.9 $4.1 £1.5 $2.6 68.2%
1973 %156 $37 £7.0 028 $4.2 55.5%
1974 £16.3 $33 $3.0 £3.9 4.2 50.9%
1975 £15.9 $80 $7.9 £22 7 50.3% 38.0 $0.42
1976 £18.0 $8.1 $9.9 £3.0 $6.9 45.1%
1977 £19.8 £8.1 117 %36 $8.1 40.7%
1978 £18.3 §7.8 $105 15 $9.0 42 7%
1979 £19.1 $75 $116 £28 $8.8 39.3%
1980 £19.9 $62 $137 £35 £10.2 31.4% 399 6.4% £0.50
1981 £227 $70 $15.7 $6.1 $9.6 30.9% 385 $0.59
1882 £245 £7.8 $16.8 £8.8 $8.0 31.6% ETR | $0.66
1883 5265 §7.8 5187 £10.0 87 29.5% 76 071
1984 $27.2 $7.8 $19.4 $11.6 78 28.7% 394 £0.69
1985 £27 6 $85 $19.2 §12.4 $6.8 30.6% 39.6 070
1986 %289 87 $20.2 §$13.4 $6.9 30.1% 402 72
1887 £20.8 $9.0 $20.8 §14.3 %65 30.2% 40.3 074
1888 £29.9 $36 5212 §15.4 $5.8 28.9% 406 074
1989 £296 $87 $20.9 $15.4 $55 29.4% 38.2 077
1990 £30.8 $86 $22.3 $17.3 $5.0 27 8% 38.0 5.3% £0.81
1831 £32.1 $8.9 $23.2 $18.1 5.1 27.6% 75 $0.86
1992 $£3356 88 5247 $18.9 %58 268.2% 2 £0.90
1993 £31.6 $8.7 $23.0 $17.3 $5.6 27 4% 352 £0.87
1994 £35.1 $9.1 $26.0 $19.7 $6.3 25.8% a9 £0.93
18995 £36.2 $9.2 $27.0 $18.1 $8.9 25.4% 38.0 £0.95
1996 $35.5 $9.4 $26.1 $20.5 %55 26.5% 39.0 $0.91
1997 $35.6 $9.8 $25.9 $20.0 %59 27 4% 40.2 £0.89
1998 £36.2 $9.9 $26.3 $19.9 $6.4 27 4% 416 £0.87
1839 £36.8 $9.9 $26.8 §18.9 $6.9 27.0% 433 £0.85
2000 $39.7 $10.0 5297 225 72 25.2% 434 4.6% £0.92
2001 $390.8 £10.6 $29.2 $21.2 8.0 268.7% 4585 £0.86
2002 L4477 105 $34.2 $25.3 $8.9 23.5% 4549 £0.97
2003 £486 £105 $3g8.1 $29.4 87 21.6% 457 £1.06
2004 £50.2 111 $39.1 $30.3 %88 22.1% 485 £1.08
2005 £48.9 $11.4 $37.5 $28.6 $8.9 23.3% 46.4 4.7% £1.05
2008 $49.3 $116 $377 $287 $9.0 23.5% 436 £1.01
2007 £49.0 £12.0 $37.0 §$277 $9.3 24.4% 50.8 £0.96
2008 £50.8 $136 $37.1 $27.3 $9.8 26.9% 526 £0.96
2009 £52.4 $14.0 $38.4 $27.3 g§11.2 26.7% 525 5.0% £1.00
Total $1,304 $429 $875 $593 $og2 32.9% 50.9%

In billions of 2009%
Subsidy Sources: In Preference as folllows based upon available data.
1-US Bureau of the Census Government database or Government Finance Series (intermittant)
2-Statistical Abstract of the United States (annual, data intermittent)
3-APTA Fact Book (annual)
Transit Work Trip Market Share:
Decennial US Cansus
2005 US Bureau of the Census American Community Survey
1960s state & local subsidies are net of operating profits.
2009 expenditures astimated
Expenditures do not take into consideration underpayments of employee pension obligations
Change in expenditures per passenger mile total from 1982 (last year before federal gas tax subsidy
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All from Govt sources such as Census; Govt financial series; american commuter survey

Total subsidies have increased almost 60% since 1960 while ridership revenues fell = more money from taxpayers pockets…


Some Context

U.S. population has grown more than 50 percent since 1960
DRIVING HAS INCREASED BY A WHOPPING 420 %.

Those who take mass transit to work FELL since 1960.
~13 % in 1960; DOWNto~5 % in 2009

“transit rides” are non-workers or are being falsely counted

“Transit rides” (known as “unlinked trips”) are not the same as
personal trips. If you ride a bus then transfer to a subway, you take
one personal trip but the Dept of Trans. counts it twice! [ 5 )




Most Recent Trends

third quarter 2009 mass transit 6.1% below the levels of 2008

first three quarters of 2009 combined, it was down 3.8%.

mass transit ride costs increased 17.8% annual rate in the six
months ended in November 2009, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Overall consumer prices increased only 4.2% same period.




=

GOVT WASTEFUL SPENDING

Per Passenger Mile (PPM)

ROADS are about 3.2 cents ppm but more than that is
covered by actual user fees

( vehicle registration fees, license fees, gas taxes, etc.)
= ROADS ARE NET REVENUE GENERATORS, i.e., “PROFIT”

Mass transit COSTS about 71 cents ppm with taxpayer-funded
SUBSIDIES OF 53 CENTS ppm.

“Light rail” is even WORSE with SUBSIDIES OVER $1.73 ppm.

“High speed” rail (which does not exist in USA) is a disaster [ ; ]
[more on this below]
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More details on CA high speed disaster…


=S
Govt’ Subsidies Cheat Motorists

* Federal Transportation Subsidies in 2006, by Mode
Per |,000 Passenger-Miles

Mode Subsidy
Auto, vans -F1.01
Buses $1.50
Commerdal adation 423
General aviation F66.27
Transit $165.61

Passengerrailroad  $23753

Mote: For an explanation of the authors’ calculabons, see the Appendoc

Sources: Authors’ calculations based on US Department of Trarsportation, Federal
Highway Administration, Hiphwoy Stotistics 2000 Table FA-S, at httpe/iweww flweodot gowd
ohimMhe00ffas htm (May 28, ?[ﬂ;) U5 Department of Trarsportation, Bureau of
Transportabon 5131:5!1:5, MNaotional Transportation Stotetics 2009, Table 1-37, at

v bis govipublications/national_tmnsportation_stotistics/htmll toble_01_ 37 html (May
29, 2009):and U S Office of Management and Budget, Historical Tables, Budget of the United
Stotes Government, Fsoal Year 2009 (Washington, D.C: US. Government Printing Office, [ 8 J
2008), at. httpr/iwwwwhitehouse goviomblbudget/fy 2009 ipdffhist pdf (June I,Bﬂ(ﬂg}

THINK OF THIS THE NEXT TIME YOU HIT A POT HOLE.
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In December 2004, the Bureau of Transportation Statistics at the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) published its first and last report on the cost of the federal subsidies provided to each mode of transportation per passenger per 1,000 miles: cars, buses, airplanes, transit, and passenger railroad. The survey covered the years 1990 to 2002 and demonstrated
that motorists received the lowest federal subsidy per 1,000 passenger-miles and that transit and
Amtrak received by far the largest federal subsidies.


NOT so SMART bus

In 2010, the SMART bus system cost taxpayers $122 million

Siphoned from Michigan’s annual road budget and county
taxes

users pay less than 20% of costs. (not even counting capital
expenses, e.g., the buses)

Over the next four years, SMART will generate deficits of:
$5,800,000;

 $10,800,000;

* $15,400,000; and

* $17,300,000.




Mass Transit :
A Tale Of Inefficiency and Ineffectiveness.

No Effort To Generate Compensatory Revenues From Users
In No City Is Transit Run On Sound Business Principles.

The reality is that virtually every planned rail system costs as much
as leasing a car for every rider on an annual basis.

Yet... Spending on Bureaucrats....
Ann Arbor Transit CEO Michael Ford = $183,395 in 2009.
Grand Rapids’ Transit CEO Peter Varga = $193,000 in 2009.

Flint’s Mass Transit general manager Robert Foy $106,800 in 2009

= MORE TAXES




More Mass Transit Failures...

* Dallas, Texas, which opened three light rail branches and one commuter rail line in the
1990s, experienced a net decline of 3,100 transit commuters during a period when
employment increased by 96,000.

* Portland, Oregon, with the nation's most aggressive "smart growth" policies and two new
light rail lines, has seen the share of commuters using transit decline 20 percent since 1980
(the census before the first light rail line was opened).

* Washington, D.C., after more than $10 billion in rail expenditures, the area's transit work-
trip market share has declined from 15.2 % --which is where it was before the extensive
subway system was opened--to 10.9 % (more gov’t Limos perhaps?).

+ Cincinnati's proposed light rail system would have cost $15.50 per new one-way ride,
totaling $6,975 annually for each new commuter who takes two trips a day for 225 work
days. In contrast, the same commuter could lease a $30,000 Lexus 1S-300 for less than
$5,500 annually.

* Minneapolis "Hiawatha" light rail line, under construction, will cost $19.00 per new rider.
This amounts to $8,550 annually per new commuter--enough to lease a BMW X-5 Sport
Utility Vehicle.

* San Francisco's proposed Third Street light rail line will cost S40.50 per new rider, which is
equal to $18,225 annually per new rider. For the same money, each new commuter could
lease a new Pontiac Grand Am throughout the "life" of the rail system plus more than
100,000 miles of air travel at the average ticket rate each year.




HSR - Bullet Train to Bankruptcy

€he New Aork Times = r MARCY.
MAY
A

MARLENE
ROW PLAYING

This copy I fr Jour persanal, RancommErtial use only. You £an arder presentafion-ready coples for disinbution o your colleagues, dients or
CUSADMETS here or use the “Reprinis” taol ihat appears next to any article. Vs www mytrepnnts.com for sampies and additional information. Order 3
regrint of this articie now.

February 168, 2011

Florida’s Governor Rejects High-Speed Rail Line,
Fearing Cost to Taxpayers

By TIMOTHY WILLIAMS
In the most significant blow yet to the Obama administration’s vision of a national high-speed rail network, Gov. Rick Scott
of Florida on Wednesday rejected plans for a high-speed link between Tampa and Orlando, in the process turning down

more than $2 billion in federal money. Ehe New ork Times

This copy ks fiar your parsanal, noncommertial use only. You £an ander presentation-ready coples far distribution fo your colleagues, dients or

e CHRISTIAN SCIENCE m::&ﬁnwmﬂHWthm.mslwunpmtmmummmm_qma
ONITOR
April 23, 2011
Derailed? Third GOP governor rejects Fast Train to Nowhere
Obama high-speed rail plan. By mcuAro whr:
Stanford, Calif.

Gov. Rick Scott of Florida declines $2 billion of federal money in deciding not to build a Orlandc
to-Tampa high-speed rail line. Twoe other governors have made similar moves. It suggests a rocl ITis hard for liberals like me to find good in the latest ent to cut the federal budget,

road ahead for Obama’s $53 billion rail plan in the Republican House.
silver lining: subsidies for high-speed rail have been sharply reduced. Why is this good news?

Ohio, Wisconsin, Florida don't want to put their taxpayers on the hook
for projects destined for Insolvency Junction.
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£
Bullet Train to Bankruptcy

WOULD YOU PAY $1,000 SO THAT SOMEONE — PROBABLY NOT YOU — CAN
RIDE A “HIGH-SPEED” TRAIN LESS THAN 60 MILES A YEAR?

* That's what the Federal Rail Administration (FRA) high-speed rail plan is
going to cost: at least $90 BILLION, or $1,000 for every federal income
taxpayer. Not included: $400 + per taxpayer for cost overruns.

* TAXPAYERS ALREADY COVER AMTRAK OPERATING LOSES OF : 528 TO $84
PER PASSENGER

* In Michigan, FRA is merely proposing to boost the top speeds of Amtrak
trains from 79 mph to 110 mph. A top speed of 110 mph means average
speeds of only 60-70 mph. 1930s Speeds!

* Michigan’s cost: more than S750 million. Proposed branches to Grand
Rapids/Holland and Port Huron: bring the total above $1.5 billion, or $230
for every Michigan resident, plus more than $50 MILLION PER YEAR in
operating subsidies.
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TAXPAYERS ALREADY COVER AMTRAK OPERATING LOSES: $28 TO $84 PER PASSENGER 



Bullet Train to Bankruptcy - CA

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL.

BUSIMESS | OCTOBER 17. 2011

Plan for High-Speed Rail Just Inching Along

California Project Could Be Scaled Back as Funding Dries Up, Delaying Ambitions for a Viable
Alternative to Cars, Planes

By JOSH MITCHELL

The Obama adminisiration's push for high-speed trains is foundering, as Congress moves to clamp down
on funding and a showease California project encounters new hurdles.

* California HSR Authority’ cost estimates show the initial stretch will cost
$10 billion to $13.9 billion. Project planners had previously pegged the
section at $6.8 bill. (Transit center increased from S3Mlll to $10 Mill)

* The project would double the state’s bonded indebtedness, to $200 billion
or more. This would cost each of California’s 40 million residents $275 to
$320 annually for 30 years.

billion, and that private investors will contribute $35 to $54 billion.

* These estimates assume, $15 billion in “free money”: municipalities S5 [
14 )
* (again same argument as in Michigan)




Foreign FAILURE

HSR projects in Europe and Japan average $51 million per mile.

Per capita spending on rail alone in six European countries was comparable to the United States’
ENTIRE transportation budget, yet, these countries received a poor return on their money

more than 90 percent of passengers chose other travel modes—mostly auto—despite hefty mass
transit subsidies.

SPAIN Since 2003,has spent more on rail than on roads. Yet EU reports rail in Spain accounts for
only 5.1 per- cent of ridership, almost 2 percentage points below the EU-27 average of 6.9.

Despite Europe’s huge investment in passenger rail, its market share declined from 6.6 percent in
1995 to 6.1 percent in 2007.

TAIWAN: Since opening, the system has lost $2.1 billion, leading The China Post to describe the
situation as a “hyper-modern technology [that] was meant to be a source of pride, but instead has
turned into a rich source of embarrassment.”

JAPANESE National Railway (JNR) was losing $20 billion per year and was issuing debt to cover all
but the S5 billion covered by direct gov’t subsidies. By the mid-1980s, the JNR’s accumulated debt
exceeded $S300 billion. Recognizing that the JNR was not financially sustainable as a government
program, the government began privatizing the passenger rail system in 1987
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Per capita spending on rail alone in six European countries was comparable to the United States’ ENTIRE transportation budget

Spains failed “green” economy resulted in a huge recent victory for Conservatives…


China’s FAILURE

€ 3 SAMEHE rEPHNT IN U TOrma, WIFDEr 3 FEPrINT 0T N5 aMmice now

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL.

BUSINESS | OCTOBER 20,2011

Chinese Rail Projects Grind to a Halt as Funds Dry Up

By NORIHIKO SHIROUZU

BELJING—In the latest sign of trouble for China's multibillion-dellar rail ambitions, builders are being
forced to suspend work on construction of more than 6,000 miles of railway as funds have dried up in a
tight monetary environment and after a deadly July train crash, a senior railway company executive
said.

Railway builders are now facing a "serious problem"
paying for work and materials needed to implement
projects, Wang Mengshu, deputy chief engineer at
railway contractor China Railway Tunnel Group, said in
a telephone interview Wednesday. Mr. Wang cited
China's overall monetary tightening efforts meant to
rein in inflation as well as a policy shift in how railway
projects are supported.

Remere  The policy change was brought about, Mr. Wang said,

An employes washes a bullet train at a maintenance by the ‘hﬂy crash of high—speed trains near the eastern
base in Wuhan. Work on new rail projects is stalling. China city of Wenzhou, in which two of China's bullet
trains collided.

The accident left 40 people dead and nearly 200 others injured in one of the world's worst high-speed
passenger-rail accidents.

About half of the halted construction work is for high-speed rail lines where trains travel above speeds of
200 kilometers (about 125 miles) per hour, according to the railway executive.

Other observers have said lenders have grown more cautious about the highly leveraged sector, the
country’s high-speed railway technology and its ability to complete expansion plans.

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL.

REVIEW & OUTLOOK |  JULY 27, 2011

China's Train Wreck

Shiny new trains, but a dangerously inadequate system running them.

Saturday's tragic train crash near Wenzhou, in the coastal province of Zhejiang, raises important
questions about the Chinese government's ability to ensure basic safety standards as it pursues the glory
of superlative-inspiring trophy projects.

The bullet trains that collided Saturday, killing at least 38 people and injuring 192 more, did not de so
because of malfunctioning cars, though the recently opened Beijing-Shanghai line has had no shortage
of those. Nor did they collide because of shoddy track, though engineers have warned that corners were
cut in laying the concrete used to support the high-speed lines. Instead the doomed trains collided
because the signaling system, a technology first mastered more than a century ago, failed.

Ordinarily when a train stalls, as the I)3115 to Fuzhou
did Saturday evening, the system alerts other trains on
the same line, causing them to halt or adjust course.
This did not happen on Saturday. The Dgo1 careered
into the stalled train, sending six earriages off the
tracks. Some reports suggest that high-speed lines were
rushed into service before the signaling system was fully
ready. The line on which Saturday’s erash occurred
opened in 2009, leaving many Chinese wondering why
this weekend's eatastrophe did not happen two years
earlier.



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Corrucption; Carelessness and what else would expect from state planning: Communists


Solyndra-like Green Fad

In the bankrupt city of Flint, the transit authority bought 2
S1.1 million electric buses

In Lansing, the transit authority purchased a $783,000 hybrid bus.

These cost 50% to 100% percent more than a regular diesel bus -
and that doesn't include the infrastructure costs.

The cost to reduce CO2 for hybrid bus was $1,000 per metric ton.
The going rate in the “marketplace” is S10 per metric ton.

gee-whiz “green” products that sound good and make some people
feel good, but fail by any measure.... ( J
17

"Their Real Goal Is To Con Taxpayers Into Giving Them More Money”




Does NOT even “save” Energy

USA Transportation Energy Use

BTUs per passenger-mile

Galveston Light Fiail :

Avg Light rall
r (solo) _
City Bus (9 pax) _
Trolley Bus (2005) _
MinivarvSUV (1.57 pax) _
Avg Heavy rail _
Average Car (1.57 pax} [ 1l
Jet aircraft _
New York Subway _
Commuter Rail (33 pax}__
Al rail transit (22 pax) _
Honda Insight (solo) _
Tesla (solo) _
votorcyce I |
East Japan Rail (combined) _
Tango one-person E.V. _

Top Electric Scooter/Trike [
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This is purely an energy usage graph
Note however the numbers required to obtain even this.  Galvenston Light rail are ACTUAL numbers


FACTS

After decades of annual subsidies in the tens of billions of dollars, mass
transit carries an insignificant number

Transit subsidies are 100 times greater than highway subsidies,
averaging 50 cents per passenger mile and $2.50 per transit ride. Light
rail subsidies are nearly 250 times greater than highway subsidies.

Light rail transit is particularly wasteful, costing two-and-one-half to
three times as much per passenger mile as other transit modes (Who
will pay for the $10 million a year operational costs for the light-rail
system along Woodward, from Detroit a to 8 Mile?)

High Speed Rail (average speeds of only 60-70 mph in Ml) is the
Ultimate boondoggle that States (except and Ml) are running away from

Urban congestion is primarily a result of transportation planners short-
changing auto travel as they divert at least S9 billion a year in highway ( 19 J
user fees to unproductive mass transit systems.




Who Really Wants This Transit
Center Boondoggle?

* UNWILLING TO FACE REALITY, THE USUAL BIG
GOVERNMENT TYPES - BUSY REPACKAGING AN
EARLY LOSER (TROLLEYS), WITH A NEW NAME
(LIGHT RAIL) AND A NEW PUBLIC RELATIONS
CAMPAIGN.

* PASSENGER RAIL IS OLD TECHNOLOGY, ATTRACTIVE
ONLY TO GOVERNMENT BUREAUCRATS, THE SAME
PEOPLE WHO THINK WINDMILLS, TINY ELECTRIC
CARS, AND SOLYNDRA ARE THE FUTURE.

(0]
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In 1760 We traveled at 6MPH by horse
In 1860 We traveled at 60MPH by Train
In 1960 We traveled at 600MPH by Jet
Old Technology is not The future


Transit Now!
A Forum on Mass Transportation

Please join us for a discussion on Mass Transit Planning for the Detroit
Metropolitan Region with a focus on the Woodward Corridor with:

« John Swatosh, Deputy Director of Regional Transit Coordinating Council
« Jana Ecker, Birmingham Planning Director

« Panel of elected officials

« Roundtable discussions - you and your neighbors: tell your stories

= Faith, Economics, and Justice - for all

Saturday October 24 from 2:00 to 4:00 pm

First Baptist Church of Birmingham
300 Willits St., Birmingham

(one block north of Maple at Bates)

Doors open at 1:30 for refreshments and conversation

Please RSVP the First Baptist Church office 248-644-0550 or email the church at
firstbaptistbirm@sbcglobal.net with Transit Now RSVP in the subject line.

Sponsored by:
Suburban congregations of M.0.S.E.S.

Transit
Now!

A Forum on Mass Transportation
Program

1:30 Registration, Refreshments, and Conversation
2:00 Welcome & Prayer (Rev. Wesley Babian, First Baptist Church of Birmingham)
2:10 Introductions and Speakers (Rev. G. Patrick Thompson, Erin Presbytenan Church)

, John Swatosh, Deputy Director, Regional Transit Coordinating Council,
= Comprehensive Regional Transit Service Plan

> Jana Ecker, Birmingham Planning Director
= Troy/Birmingham Multi-Modal Transit Center

2:50 Panel of elected officials
State Rep. Marie Donigan , Michigan House of Representatives, District 26
Commissioner David Potts, Oakland County Board of Commissioners, District 20
o Commissioner Scott Moore, Birmingham City Commission

3:00 Legislative updates

o Kevin Hrit (Constituent Services, Rep. Gary Peters)
Tim Fischer (Deputy Policy Director, Michigan Environmental Council)

3:10 Roundtable discussions
3:30 Q&A
3:50 Action and Information

o TRU (Megan Owens, Director)
o MOSES (Ponsella Hardaway, Director)

4:00 Closing
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As support for this contention, I actually personally attended a Forum in Bham which was to Push a county wide tax increases for more buses and the transit center
Commissioner moore endorsed FAIR TRANSIT as the reason..
See the sponsorship on the bottom? AS you can see the sponsors are TRU and MOSES
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TRANSPORTATION Search | Contact Us
RIDERS UNITED
Home About Us About Transit Get Involved

Transit MNews

Links

Archived Blog

« Back to Main Blog

Tuesday, October 25, 2011
Occupy Detroit to March to Oppose Bus Cuts

The activists involved in the Occupy Detroit movement are planning a
march this Friday focused on bus cuts!

They recognize that good buses are a critical need for many of the

99% of us non-millicnaires and are as outraged as we are about lousy DDOT
bus service and massive cuts in DDOT and SMART.

Join these activists and other bus riders this Friday, October 28, at
3:30pm at Grand Circus Park. They'll march to the Rosa Parks
Transit Center, handing out action alerts along the way, then over to SMART HQ and the Spint of
Detroit at the C.AY. Municipal Center for a short rally around S5pm where bus riders, advocates
(including me) and others will speak.

It should be a great opportunity to keep the pressure on Mayor Bing to improve DDOT service and to
draw attention to the proposed SMART cuts. Come join usl!
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Basically a public sector front group
Occupy wall street nuts


E—
MOSES Members

Congregations
All Saints = Detroi
Birmingham Unitarian — Bloomfield Hills

Cathelic Community of Pontiac

Central United Methodist — Detroit

Christ Lutheran — Sterling Heights

Christ the King— Detroit

Conant Avenue UMC— Delfroit

Elyton Baptist — Detroit

First Baptist— Birmingham

First Unitarian Universalist— Defroit

Genesis Lutheran — Detrolt

Gesu Catholic — Detroit

Grenter Apostolic Faith Temple — Defroit

Greater Grace Temple — Defroit

Greater New ML Moriah — Detroit

Greater Southern — Detroit

Holy Redeemer — Detroit

Immanue| Lutheran — Detroit

Metropolitan Church of God — Detroi(

Mother of the Savior Lutheran — Dearborn

Mt. Zion MBC= Ecorse

Muslim Center — Detroit

Sacred Heart — Grosse lle

Second Baptist— Detroit

Southwestern Church of God — Detroif

Spirit of Hope — Detroit

St Cegilia— Detroif

St.John Lutheran — Detroit

St, Luke — Detrolt

S§t. Mark — Ypsilanti

St. Mary of the Hills — Rochester Hills

St Benedict/Madonna/Blessed Sacrament— Highland Park & Detroit
St. Raymond & Our Lady of Good Counsel — Detroit
St. Suzanne/Our Lady Gate of Heaven — Defroit

St. Anne — Delroit

Temple Emanu-El — Oak Park

Third New Hope Baptist— Detroit

* MOSES:

ACORN-like agitation
group associated with
the umbrella
GAMALIEL Foundation
for whom Obama once
worked as an
“organizer.”

°* GAMALIEL:

MI Council of American
Islamic relations (CAIR);

Wellspring Baptlst— Farmington ﬂ’fvlwmﬁk:u Organizing Strategy Enabling Strer 1gth
Waterfall MBC — Delroit .
. SEIU; and
Organizations P A i i
ACCESS—De o P ..teaching people to take back their communities

e . A Other Public Sector

CAIR Michgan —Southild 7 o
Ecumenical Theological Society — Detroit

Teague of Muslim Women— Delroit Chapter An !'Jﬂi.’fﬂfl’ l?f”ﬂ" Gamaliel ."‘lllfﬂ'fl'l‘!l'iml U n I O n S

LASED — Detrait

Marygrove College — Detroit o : A i
MICHUCAN — Livonin 220 Bagley St., Ste 212 * Detroit, Michigan 48226
SEMISynoed Council (ELCA)~< ]hlu» . 5 «Fays 5

SETU Locald— Detrs Phone: (313) 962-5290 - Fax: (313) 962-5633
Sisters IHM— Manroe / WWW.INO0SCS i 0rg

Southwest Detroit Business Association (SDBA) — Detroit

United Food and Commercial Workers, (FCW) Local 876 — Madison Heights
UNITE HERE — Detroit Rev. Kevin Turman Ponsella Harday
University of Micligan— Ann Arbor : n : .
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Secretary of Transportation LaHood:  “This is a way to coerce people out of their cars.

Ministers in Chicago :  “We have partners on several important issues – from public union funding to gun control,…” “but it is also important to make sure that there is funding for mass transit” [Faith Alliance for Fair Transit Funding” event, May 2009]



TRANSIT NOW! GOALS

* The “Right” to Public transit as “fairness”

* “fair transit” AS “social justice”

* on par with a “right” to health care.

* Will You Admit Support For This Agenda To Voters ?




Transit Center =
Glorified Bus Station

Table 3-2. SMART Bus FEoutes that Would Serve the Preferred Alternative

Eoute Communities Served TripsDav
415 Bekley, Beverly Hill=, Bimmneham  Detroit, Oak Park, Foval Oak, 47
Foval Oak Township, Southfield. Troy
470 Beakley, Beverly Hills, Bimansham Detroit, Cak Park, Foval Ock, 47
Foval Oak Township, Southfield. Troy
460 Berkley, Bumungham Detroat, Ferndale, Himtimgton Woods, 65

Pleasant Fidze, Roval Oak, Troy

Auburmn Hills, Berkley, Bumngham Bloomfield Township, Detroat,
465 Femndale, Fhmtington Woods, Pleasant Fidge Pontiac, Foval Ok, 12
Troy
475 Berkley, Bummngham Detroat, Ferndale, Himfmeton Woods, g
Pleasant Ridge. Royal Oak, Troy

Bomingham Bloomfield Township, Clawson, Clmton Towmship,
T80 Fraser, Eoseville, 5t. Clair Shomes, Sterling Heights, Troy, West 40
EBloomfield Towmshp

Directly linked into TROY

209 times a day (at least)
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209 BUS trips into troy…. SMART will coordinate ALL through troy.
209 Buses into troy… Direct connection with Detroit transit center…
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Who Does Actually Occupy
Transit Centers ?

* All you have to do is look at the Evidence from
Detroit Transit Center ....




Detroit Transit Center

SURSCRIBE Articles | Comments /| Thursday, November 17, 2ou
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Michigan'’s Trusted Name m News

I Assaults, robberies plague new transit center

Within the last three weeks at the Rosa Parks Transit Center, a woman has -
been caught bathing her cat in a sink, numerous drug deals have gone down

and a man who was sleeping in a bathroom stall grew testy when he was AccuWeather.con'
awakened by a guard on patrol. bz M
=
LEAVE A REPLY P

POLICE[}jLINK

DDOT Drivers Refuse To Work: ‘They’re Scared For Their Lives’ [ 57 ]
Source: CBS News, Detroit




Detroit Transit Center

Everything Michigan

Detroit and Macomb County police crack down on drug route called
"Heroin Express"”
Published: Saturday, December 05, 2009, 6:49 AM Updated: Saturday, December 05, 2009, 8:27 AM

The Associated Press

City and suburban police are cracking down on drug users riding public buses into Detroit along a corridor some

call the Heroin Express.

Detroit Police Chief Warren Evans says in a release Friday that buses are being used to avoid seizures of

vehicles by authorities under nuisance abatement laws.

Undercover operations show buses along Gratiot Avenue heading northeast out of the city are popular means of
transport. Vehicles are parked in Macomb County communities, then driven away after drugs have been bought

in Detroit.

Police in Detroit, Eastpointe, Roseville, Clinton Township, Fraser and Shelby Township, and the Macomb County
Sheriff's Department are involved in Operation Heroin Express. Police made 28 felony arrests, 16 misdemeanor

arrests and seized four vehicles early this week.

© 2011 MLive.com. All rights reserved.




The Transit Center IS Troy’s Solyndra...

* Governing ought to be about making wise choices. THE CASE AGAINST IS
OVERWHELMING. Good government can at least not make problems worse.

* THE CASE IN FAVOR RESTS ON FASHIONABLE PLATITUDES.

* Mass transit is the past; not an "investment in the future”.
 Birmingham already wasted $300,000 just planning it (that we know of).
* Costs expanded from $3 Million to over $10 Million...

* How much S has Troy already wasted ?

* Grand Sakwa Appeal (what tax revenue is Troy giving away?)

JUST STOP THROWING GOOD MONEY AFTER BAD. [ 29 ]
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NY built subways – subways did not build NY!


BORN INTO DEBT...

S from Federal Govt’ is STILL taxpayer money.

* every baby born today owes $45,000 as his share of the
federal debt.

* every taxpayer owes $127,000 of the fed debt.

JUST STOP THROWING GOOD MONEY AFTER BAD. [ 20 J
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This is not free money, irrespective of what local politicians say about federal money
To paraphrase hillary cllnton: DON’T Build it For the children…..
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RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM

The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in
the following order: McGinnis, Slater, Fleming, Tietz, Henderson, Campbell.

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR

In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the
duties of the Mayor.

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): Special
meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, or any two
members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to each member of the
Council, served personally or left at his usual place of residence; but a special meeting may
be held on shorter notice if all members of the Council are present or have waived notice
thereof in writing.

B. DOCUMENTATION: Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically
referenced in the Call of the Meeting.

Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice
calling the meeting.

Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be
personally delivered to each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-
four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. :

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the
business fo be considered shall include the items listed and in the following order:

a) Call to Order
b) Rolt Call

1) Listing of Council Members

2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule No. 21
c) ltems as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting

d) ltems Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, (Pursuant to City Charter
Sections 4.2 and 4.3)

€) See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda
f) Public Comment
g) Adjournment

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA:
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call
of the Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter).
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2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in
writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the
amendment/addition to the agenda.

4. REGULAR MEETINGS

Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7;:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year.

5. AGENDA

(a) Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall
be produced at least foriy-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of the
City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on the
agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions introduced that
do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except by suspension of
these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted on the City's Website
at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings.

(b} Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed Session
is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be included
pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the Open Meetings
Act.

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS

At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for
consideration and disposition in the following order:

. Call to Order
. Invocation
. Pledge of Allegiance
. Roll Call
1) Listing of Council Members
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule No. 21
. A. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
. B. Carryover ltems
. C. Public Hearings
. D. Postponed Items
. Public Comment - Limited to ltems Not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.
10. E. Regular Business

BWN -

0o -~No
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Council will move forward all of the “E" items on which members of the audience would like
to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council,
Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.

11. E. Regular Business
Address Remaining F Items

12. F. Consent Agenda
1. Approval of "F" ltems NOT Removed for Discussion
2. Address of “F" [tems Removed for Discussion

Council will move forward all of the “F" items on which members of the audience would like
to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council,
Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.

13. G. Memorandums and Future Council Agenda ltems

14. H. Council Referrals

Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the Mayor or Council

Members before the City Manager's agenda deadline for consideration at the next regular
meeting.

15. 1. Council Comments

ltems brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular Meeting
Agenda for Action. ltems appearing under Council Comments are not intended for
discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear.

16. J. Reports
No Public Comment received on “J" ltems at this time.

17. K. Study Items

18. Public Comment

19. L. Closed Session

20. Adjournment

7. REGULAR BUSINESS
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the
Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the
Public Comment section under item 10 “E” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for
the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with
members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is brought back to the

Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by
Council, through the Chair.

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed
meetings of City Council.
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9. MINUTES

a. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The
minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval.

b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a
pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where
a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) of a
collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not
technically required under the Open Meetings Act.

10. PROCLAMATIONS
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and
may be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be
placed on the Consent Agenda for approval.

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members®.
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members
provided that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the
members elect.”

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS

Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.”

13. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second
and the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.

14. PUBLIC HEARING
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote
of a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the
resolution. If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the
designated meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings”.

15. CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and
have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall
be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard.
Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 9 “E".
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156. APPOINTMENTS

16.

A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees:

The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or Commitiees
as governed by State Statute or local ordinances.

The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated
for reappointment.

The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit
such name, into nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or
before the time of nomination.

Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate

will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are subject
to Section "B" which appears below.

B. Method of Voting on Nominees:

1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a
roll call vote shall be used. ‘

2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting
shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is
to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies

3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of
votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot.

4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the

City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership is
required by Statute or the City Charter.

5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking
them for their willingness to serve the community.

6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community
on Boards and Commiissions.

1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND

SOCRRA

1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year November,
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2, SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation:
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.

17. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE
PUBLIC: City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the
alfention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has
not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City
Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.

» Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be

extended with the majority consent of City Council.

* Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not

more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by
the Chair.

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City
Council members.

* Agenda items that are related to topics where there is sign'iﬁcant public input
anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific
purpose.

18. POSTPONE

A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. ltems will automatically
appear on the appropriate agenda.

19. RULES OF ORDER

Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted
and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and
the City Code.

20. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is
submitted and approved by the City Council.

21. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored
by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. The
City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to specific
places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit expense vouchers
exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and conferences, with additional
allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air coach rate or gas mileage at
current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses
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may be authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form
will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, fo attend legislative committee
hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along with
receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

22. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed
to supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that
may have been scheduled.

23. SUSPEND RULES
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority.

24. COUNCIL DISCUSSION

No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all
other members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall
be allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time.

25. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to
accompany the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council
table shall be limited to 15 minutes.

26. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting

unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be
prohibited.

27. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary.

28. VIOLATIONS

The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking
sequence to the Chair.

29. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY
MEETING OF COUNCIL
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of
the City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S.
Code Title 18, Part |, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council.
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Parks and Recreation Advisory Board — FINAL September 15, 2011
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD

A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday,
September 15, 2011 at the Troy Community Center. Vice Chairperson, Jan Zikakis called the
meeting together at 6:30 pm.

Present: Jan Zikakis, member
Kathleen Fejes, member
Jeff Stewart, member
Gary Hauff, member
Joann Thompson, member
Jeff Biegler, staff

Absent: Orestes Kaltsounis, Stuart Redpath, Meaghan Kovacs, Tod Gazetti
Visitors: None

-Resolution # PR-2011-09-01
Moved by Fejes
Seconded by Stewart

NEW BUSINESS

A. Discussion regarding the status of the future make up of the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Board. At their August 29" meeting, City Council dissolved both the Troy
Daze Commitiee and the Senior Advisory Committee, which have had representatives
on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. Council will soon decide how the Board
will be structured going forward.

B. Board members decided to wait until the November meeting o consider election of
officers.

C. Parks and Recreation Status Report — Discussion regarding the split of the park

- maintenance division from the Parks and Recreation Department and its consolidation

with other DPW maintenance divisions.

OLD BUSINESS
' A. Troy Nature Center Update — The Troy Nature Society is now operating programs at
the Troy Nature Center. John Regan is the current president of TNS. They held a very
successful clean up of the Nature Center grounds on August 13" which included a
tree planting effort coordinated by a local Eagle Scout candidate. Troy Nature Society
is sponsoring a Wine Tasting Fundraiser for October 20" at Leon and Lulu’s in
Clawson.
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Staff Reports

Director's Report —
e Encore Catering has been selected to be the new catering company for the Community
Center. They are still waiting for their liguor license.
o Staff is working on new promotional packages to increase Community Center
membership. Discussion of a Corporate Packet availabie to Troy businesses as well as
a new Fitness Passport pass which will give those pass holders free access to a select
group of programs in addition o the other benefits of an Unlimited Pass member.

Next F’arks and Recreation Advisory Board meeting will be November 17, 2011.

The meeting adjourned at 7:38 pm.

/Jan ZiWice-Chairperson
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1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM

The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in
November.

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR

In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the
duties of the Mayor.

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS

A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2):
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor,
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing.

B. DOCUMENTATION:

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the

Call of the Meeting.

e Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each
specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling
the meeting.

e Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY:
Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in
advance of the meeting.

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS:
At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered
shall include the items listed and in the following order:

A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call:
1) Listing of Council Members
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21.
C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting
D. Iltems Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter
Sections 4.2 and 4.3):
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the
Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice).

Adopted: 11/08/2010
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2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in
writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the
amendment/addition to the agenda.

E. Public Comment
F. Adjournment

4. REGULAR MEETINGS

Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year.

5. AGENDA

A.

Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall
be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings.

. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the
Open Meetings Act.

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS

At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for
consideration and disposition in the following order:

Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

A.
B.

mTmoo

G.
H. Postponed Items

Call to Order

Roll Call

1) Listing of Council Members

2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21

Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

Carryover Items

Public Hearings

Public Comment — In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule
Number 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors

Response/Reply to Public Comment
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10.

11.

|. Regular Business
J. Consent Agenda
1) Approval of “I” ltems NOT Removed for Discussion
2) Address of “I” tems Removed for Discussion
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items
Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward
by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager's agenda deadline for
consideration at the next regular meeting.
. Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the
next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. ltems appearing under Council Comments are
not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear.
Reports
Study Items
Closed Session
Adjournment

rx

<

puVoZ

CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions
and Council retreats.

MINUTES

A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The
minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval.

B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a
pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c),
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.

PROCLAMATIONS

Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on
the Consent Agenda for approval.

RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS

Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*.
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members
elect.”

RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS

Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.”
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12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING

Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.

13.  PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution.
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".

14. CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion.
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda ltem F.

15. APPOINTMENTS
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees:

The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances.

The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated
for reappointment.

The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or
before the time of nomination.

Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are
subject to Section "B" which appears below.

B. Method of Voting on Nominees:
1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll
call vote shall be used.

2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall
take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to
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indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies

3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes
shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot.

4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City
of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is
required by Statute or the City Charter.

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them
for their willingness to serve the community.

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on
Boards and Commissions.

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND
SOCRRA

SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year
November.

SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation:
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15M,

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC:
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.

o Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended
with the majority consent of City Council.

e Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to
five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item.

e Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to
five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion
of the agenda.

e City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council
members.

e Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose.

e Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may
be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

POSTPONE

A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically
appear on the appropriate agenda.

RULES OF ORDER

Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the
City Code.

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is
submitted and approved by the City Council.

EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS

A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored
by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year.
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee
hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

A. Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an excused
absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their absence in
writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason
shall be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each absence.

B. In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is
directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special
meetings that may have been scheduled.

SUSPEND RULES
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority.

COUNCIL DISCUSSION
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time.

AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be
limited to 15 minutes.

VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS

Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be
prohibited.

CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM

Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary.

VIOLATIONS

The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking
sequence to the Chair.

WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY
MEETING OF COUNCIL
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the

City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code
Title 18, Part |, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council.
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1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM

November-The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat
rotation in the following order: McGinnis, Slater, Fleming, Tietz, Henderson, Campbell.

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR

In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the
duties of the Mayor.

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS

A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2):
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor,
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing.

B. DOCUMENTATION:

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the

Call of the Meeting.

e Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each
specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling
the meeting.

e Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY:

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in
advance of the meeting.

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS:
At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered
shall include the items listed and in the following order:

A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call:

1) Listing of Council Members

2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21.
C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting
D. Iltems Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter
Sections 4.2 and 4.3):
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E. Public CommentSee Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda

F. Adjeurnment Public Comment

G. Adjournment

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA:

1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call

of the Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter).
2. If all members of City Council approve agenda amendments or additions in

writing prior to desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action only
when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the
amendment/addition to the agenda.

4. REGULAR MEETINGS

Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year.

5. AGENDA

A.

Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall
be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings.

. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the
Open Meetings Act.

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS

At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for
consideration and disposition in the following order:

1.

lnrveecation Call to Order

ZQLedge%f—A#egLanee Invocation
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7.

A3.Callto-Order Pledge of Allegiance

B4 .Roll Call
1) Listing of Council Members
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21

C5.A. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

D-.6.B. Carryover Items

E-7.C. Public Hearings

£.8.D. Postponed Items

9. Public Comment —ln-accordance-with-the- Rules-of Procedure-of- the-City-CouncilRule
Number—16—-—Members-of-the-Public-and-\isitors Limited to items Not on the Agenda in
accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 — Members of the
Public and Visitors

e opendoe b e Db e el

ool Lons

£10. E. Regular Business

Council with move forward all of the “E” items on which members of the audience

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City
Council, Article 16 — Members of the Public and Visitors

11. E.Reqular Business
Address Remaining E ltems

J12.F. Consent Agenda
1) Approval of “lE” ltems NOT Removed for Discussion
2) Address of “lF” ltems Removed for Discussion
Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience would like
to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council,
Article 16 — Members of the Public and Visitors

K13. G. Memorandums and Future Council Agenda ltems

E14.H. Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought
forward by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager's agenda deadline for
consideration at the next regular meeting.

M15.1. Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be
placed on the next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council
Comments are not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first

appear.
N16.J. Reports
No Public Comment received on “J” ltems at this time.
o17.K. Study Items

P18. Closed-Session Public Comment
Q19 L. Adjournment Closed Session

20. Adjournment

REGULAR BUSINESS
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the Chair in

accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the Public Comment

section under item 10 “E” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for the purposes of gaining
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insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their

comments. Once discussion is brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will

be permitted to speak only by invitation by Council, through the Chair.

8.

CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

910.

1011.

1112.

1213,

1314.

All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions
and Council retreats.

MINUTES

A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The
minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval.

B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a
pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.
Where a Closed Session is requested ef for any collective bargaining unit, the specific
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c),
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.

PROCLAMATIONS

Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on
the Consent Agenda for approval.

RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS

Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*.
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members
elect.”

RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS

Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.”

WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING

Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.

PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution.
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated
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meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".

1415. CONSENT AGENDA

15.

7.

8.

9.

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion.
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public
comment on Consent Agenda ltems will be permitted under Agenda Item E9 “E”.

APPOINTMENTS
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees:

The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances.

The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated
for reappointment.

The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or
before the time of nomination.

Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are
subject to Section "B" which appears below.

B. Method of Voting on Nominees:

Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll
call vote shall be used.

Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall
take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to
indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies.

When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes
shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot.

10.No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, comm|SS|on or board of the City

of Troy, except the Retlrement System Board of Trustees,

A}unless membership is
requwed by Statute or the C|ty Charter

11.Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them

for their willingness to serve the community.
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12.Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on
Boards and Commissions.

156.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND
SOCRRA

SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year
November.

SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation:
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15",

167. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC:
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.

o Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended

with the majority consent of City Council.
e Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not more

than twice nor Ionqer than five (5) mlnutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair.

e City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council
members.

e Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated
should initiate the schedullng of a Special meetlng for that speC|f|c purpose.

° Publlc Comment may never be limited to the aforementloned five minutes on any item,

unless so permitted by the Chair.

178. POSTPONE

A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically
appear on the appropriate agenda.
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189.

1920.

2021.

2122,

2223,

2324,

RULES OF ORDER

Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the
City Code.

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is
submitted and approved by the City Council.

EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS

A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored
by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year.
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee
hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications.

ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

A N Mamhe \A/NO a N allalhda ilmaating

B—In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is
directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special
meetings that may have been scheduled.

SUSPEND RULES
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority.

COUNCIL DISCUSSION

No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time.

Adopted: 11/08/2010
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2425,

2526.

AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be
limited to 15 minutes.

VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS

Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be
prohibited.

26.:27.CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM

2728.

2820.

Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary.

VIOLATIONS

The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking
sequence to the Chair.

WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY
MEETING OF COUNCIL
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the

City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code
Title 18, Part |, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council.

Adopted: 11/08/2010
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